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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

H RS B B

Year ended 31 December
BE+ZA=+—HILEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
“ECEE SEF-E DR —F ZERORE O CRNE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TE ARTFr AR®TT AR¥WTT ARWTFL

Profitability data #RIRE ) iR

Revenue & 189,139 146,118 208,371 107,881 333,149

Gross profit,/(loss) EH/ (8) 28,149 35,874 67,395 (62,491) 74,102

Total comprehensive (expense),” AL X DN E T

income for the year attributable 18 4 B A 4F 1 2 T
to owners of the Company and (BI52) /Wicss 4%
non-controlling interests (70,806) (27,554) 17,216 (168,385) 4,517
Total comprehensive (expense),” N/NEIE: ZDN A R
income for the year attributable (B%) /s
to owners of the Company (80,199) (26,403) 11,336 (162,160) (813)
(Loss),/ earnings per share B (s8R /B
— Basic (RMB cents) (Note 1) —HAR (NRD) (il (26.59) (0.90) 0.55 (8.06) (0.04)
- Diluted (RMB cents) (Note 2) —HE (RS2 (Hi2) (26.59) (0.90) 0.47 (8.06) (0.04)
Year ended 31 December
®EF-H=ZF—HILEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
“ECZE CFoOE DR -F ZFIERE ZZNE

Profitability ratios FRIRE N be

Gross profit/(loss) margin EA/ (1) % 14.88% 24.55% 324.34% (57.93%) 22.2%

Net (loss)/profit margin (FEiE) /1 F% (42.40%) (18.07%) 8.26%  (156.08%) (0.2%)

Effective tax rate LS NATER NARER NARER NARER NAREH

Return on equity (Note 3) 4 FRE (M 3) (18.07%) (5.40%) 2.49% (33.78%) (0.1%)

Return on assets (Note 4) B R (M) (13.82%) (4.21%) 1.91% (25.98%) (0.1%)

Operating ratios (as a percentage BELE(WRAB2IL)

of revenue)

Advertising and marketing expenses & 5 J Tl 4574 1 B % 14.45% 16.42% 0.99% 16.14% 0.6%

Staff costs BITHA 9.51% 12.36% 11.24% 15.71% 9.0%

Research and development WF 5% R A % 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Notes: Bt -

1. The calculation of basic (loss), earnings per share is based on the 1. BRFEAR (B R TR IEAR A mIHEA A
total comprehensive expense for the year attributable to owners of JE A5 4 1A 4 T B S A AR R DA A BE D T L R AT
the Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary T 788 R 1) Jon RE - 2 B AR
shares in issue during the relevant period.

2. No diluted loss per share is presented for the year ended 31 2. BE_Z - Z4F A ="1T—HILFE AR
December 2023 as the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share AT A 2 ) 1 AR AT o 22 i RO REE L s 4 v 8
options would be anti-dilutive. ST 40 52 51 g e 48 ik e 4 o

3. Return on equity is equal to the total comprehensive (expense), income 3. HE i [7] 0 8 AR 45 H A A W) AT N R AL 4 A A
for the year attributable to owners of the Company divided by T (BH30) i AR AT DA A5 48 4R 1) % 4R 46 1
the average balance of total equity attributable to owners of the AR S T AT N RE A RE 45 AR RE Y T2 A R AT o
Company as at the beginning of each year and as at the end of
each year.

4. Return on assets is equal to the total comprehensive (expense),”income 4. JEE 7] S 36 AH 45 A A S W) BT N RE A AR R A

for the year attributable to owners of the Company divided by the
average balance of total assets as at the beginning of each year
and as at the end of each year.

7%
T (B S) Wi fi AR R DA 4 4F £ 400 B0 4F 46 1Y
HEEE NP RS R A -
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

$oF 75 19 B
As at 31 December
“t+-A=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
SEROCE R R ZEROFRE ZERUE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFE  AR®ETFE AR¥FE AR¥ETFT AR¥Tx
Assets and liabilities data B R E R
Non-current assets JEE G 199,743 223,517 216,924 190,920 226,922
Current assets WE)EE 353,691 385,557 428,915 349,283 529,102
Current liabilities )& E 52,666 39,209 66,310 42,930 92,746
Non-current liabilities AR £ 1 3,383 159 786 2,380 -
Shareholders’ equity B SO 25 403,920 483,634 493,520 417,348 579,508
Non-controlling interests I b 93,465 84,072 85,223 77,545 83,770
Year ended/as at 31 December
BET-AZt—BkEE/R+ZA=1+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
SEROCE R DR CEROTE ZERUE
Other key financial ratios and Jofh 3 B R KB B
information
Current ratios (Note 5) B L (M its) 6.7 9.8 6.5 8.1 5.7
Quick ratios (Note 6) RE) K (6 4.2 54 33 4.8 3.5
Gearing ratio (Note 7) GEAMGLER (i) - - - - -
Net asset value per share (RMB) HREEEE (ARET)
(Note 8) (H7ts) 1.66 0.19 0.22 0.25 0.33
Inventory turnover days (days) FREBHE(H) (M)
(Note 9) 408 748 553 408 373
Trade receivables turnover days HHEURFCEE A% (R)
(days) (Note 10) (Htit10) 241 314 162 296 112

Trade payables turnover days (days) B % A IR FGEE H & (H)
(Note 11) (W3t11) 15 40 36 18 17
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Notes:

11.

S 5 R 5E

Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities as
at the end of each year.

Quick ratio equals current assets minus inventory, divided by
current liabilities as at the end of each year.

Gearing ratio equals the debts incurred in the ordinary course of
business divided by total assets as at the end of each year.

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on the total
number of shares in issue at the end of the year.

Inventory turnover days are computed by dividing the average
of the beginning and closing inventory balance in the respective
financial year by cost of sales (excluding consumption tax and
other taxes) and multiplied by 365 days.

Trade receivables turnover days are computed by dividing the
average of the beginning and closing trade receivables balance in
the respective financial year by revenue and multiplied by 365 days.

Trade payables turnover days are computed by dividing the
average of the beginning and closing trade payables balance in the
respective financial year by cost of sales (excluding consumption
tax and other taxes) and multiplied by 365 days.

10.

11.

U B LU AR S T A AR AR A0 U B E R DL
B

) LL A A S T A% AR AR A& ) Ui B R AR
B DA ) £ £

P L AN S R A5 AR AR AR B T A
i A SO AR I B LA

A 6 T (E AR R AR A1 O B AT B AR BGRE
o

17 B T H SO B B AR B AR AR AR AE
15 45 8% A0 7 2 SR DA B 5 AR (R B35 T 2 B
S H AR IH ) 755fe LA365 H FHE -

B 5 IR Wi B B B A T B AR 4R )
Jo AF 58 8 B JRE AT M K A A Y ST 2 BIOSR DA 25
TR LI36S H FHE -

259 M o AR S S A B A B 4 )
A e 5 5 B R 455 4 6 F- 2 O L 8
HRA (R 35 1 9 B S AL BT ) 157 B1365 H
-
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Guangyuan

Mr. Zhang Hebin

Ms. Wang Lijun

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Jerry Y.
Mr. Zhu Minghui

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Cheng Vincent
Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert
Mr. Yang Qiang

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chan Shuk Man Lora

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Dr. Cheng Vincent (Chairman)
Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert
Mr. Yang Qiang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Cheng Vincent (Chairman)

Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert

Mr. Yang Qiang

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Guangyuan

Mr. Yang Qiang

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wang Guangyuan
Ms. Chan Shuk Man Lora

LEGAL ADVISERS
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Chiu & Partners
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LEGAL ADVISERS

AS TO PRC LAW

Jingtian & Gongcheng Attorneys At Law
34/F, Tower 3, China Central Place

77 Jianguo Road

Chaoyang District

Beijing 100025

The People’s Republic of China

AUDITOR

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

23/F, Tower 2, Enterprise Square Five
38 Wang Chiu Road

Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Unit No. 2910-11, 29/F

Prosperity Millennia Plaza

No. 663 King’s Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC
No. 2199, Tuanjie Road

Tonghua County

Jilin Province

The People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

4th Floor North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

B
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MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

4th Floor North, Cedar House
41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton, HM 12

Bermuda
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BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG
Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China Tower Branch

1 Garden Road

Hong Kong

Agriculture Bank of China
Tonghua County Branch

No. 679 Changzheng Road
Kuaidamao Town, Tonghua County
Jilin Province

The People’s Republic of China

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT
CorporateLink Limited

Unit 1802, 18/F

3 Lockhart Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.tontine-wines.com.hk

(information on the website does not form part of
this annual report)

SHARE INFORMATION
Listing date: 19 November 2009
Stock name: Tontine Wines
Number of issued shares
as at 31 December 2023: 301,561,800 shares
Board lot: 2,000 shares

STOCK CODE
389

FINANCIAL YEAR-END DATE
31 December
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

E R

2022msRRE@E x2n

IWG

Dear shareholders,

The global economy and communities experienced significant
volatility in 2023. Inflationary pressures in Europe and the United
States brought the economies of these regions to a standstill,
while the escalating Russia-Ukraine war not only drove up energy
and food prices, but also created political and social tensions in
the region.

China’s social activity and industrial manufacturing have gradually
recovered after the coronavirus pandemic. However, despite a
5.2% growth in China’s GDP last year, operations in many sectors
of the economy have yet to return to pre-pandemic levels. The
credit crisis in China’s real estate sector not only impacted on
the relevant industrial chain, the decline in housing prices added
psychological pressure on a significant proportion of consumers
due to assets depreciation, and hurt consumer sentiment.

Wines consumption has yet to become popular among the general
public in China. Amidst weak consumer sentiment and tightening
spending from the middle class and young people, there brought
a direct impact on the demand and sales of wines. Figures
released by the General Administration of Customs of China
show that China’s imported wines saw double-digit declines in
both sales volume and amount in 2023. Although the total output
of winemakers above designated size in China increased slightly
compared to the previous year’s low level, the overall market
demand and sales remained weak since the previous years.

25 AL B oR

TR T AR R BRI AL & 45 A E T Bk
AR B — AF o [k 35 B R T K 2 1 A IR R ) 4
T S R A R A S BT R BT SRR
{E i T AE TR AR B (E A% > 08 4 R R BUR A AL &
Ja B ) B ol o

HE R E R AL RAEM T RAEEZELEE -
SR > 408 25 4F o (B (80 7R 20 8 AR (E 3 R 9E5.2%
{EL K€ 37 9 1 2 IR 26 L 10 i R (R 1R 2
HiI 7K - o B A1 5 b ) A5 B A A R B B A
E SR R R Y N R R &y
7RG R (R A L BE R o T 2 RO A

=24
-2

H [ 7] 4 A AT 3 R TE R R B O 2 I 2
T AR A > T E B R DL % AR R T O 2 )
IR > HHE BRI AW mH R & - P
g Bl > A B B AT R AR A R
2 K - R 240 7 B o S o B R R LA B A
N EBMEAME E—FRRCEM T H
R R i 3 7 RO G ) R AR 2 R AR 0 s
o



CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
B2 8

In response to the structural adjustment of the market, the Group
has been reorganizing its resources and revising its business
planning in recent years. On the product front, sales of higher-
priced premium wines and ginseng wine did not show any signs
of improvement due to consumers’ insufficient confidence in
the economic outlook. During the year under review, the Group
increased sales of affordable wine products with lower gross
margins while reducing investment in ginseng wine in the second
half of the year.

In terms of marketing strategy, in addition to continuing its
online sales and influencer marketing initiatives to adapt to
new consumption patterns, the Group has also strengthened its
platform cooperation with brands in different industries, seeking
to develop new customer sources in conjunction with leisure food
and beverage brands and strengthening the market awareness of
the Group’s brands.

In terms of results for the year under review, the Group’s total
revenue increased by nearly 30% year-on-year, reflecting that the
above strategy has yielded some results. However, the Group’s
gross profit for the year under review declined year-on-year due to
a decrease in the sales volume of high-end sweet and dry wines of
higher gross margins.

During the year under review, the Group further amortized certain
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the total amount of which
increased by approximately RMB12,924,000 as compared to that
of the previous year, resulting in an increase in cost of sales. The
management believes the aforementioned accounting treatment
will lead to a healthier balance sheet for the Group in the long
run.

In terms of market presence, after years of hard work, the Group
has successfully established a foothold in the affluent Eastern
Region. During the year under review, sales revenue from the
Eastern Region more than doubled year-on-year, reflecting strong
consumer spending and abundant demand in the region, making it
the Group’s largest market. The Group’s revenue derived from the
South-West Region saw year-on-year growth of nearly 90% during
the year under review. These two regions are characterized by the
popularity of wine consumption culture and strong economic
momentum, justifying the Group’s decision to shift its sales focus
to these two markets.

A RIS AT IR A R % T SRR

TS T 45 0 5 RV SR B SR E A BT T
B EIRAE 1E 3685 M Jm) o 72 2 o 07 T > 5 (H B
V14 e i ) 0 AN 20 2 B RS AT R O R
YR B R OR TR 0 o 4R R In] AR —
pRED) PN SR ER R (PN TR R KR |
RF A T 243 A S BEA

EORM L MR T A LI R WAL R
S5 SR 5 205 A 2R R R B B AT 2
fh R B G R 7 B oK BRI PR AR B R 3L
[e] B % S 9 % UL > R DR 4R T A R A T 05 R
o

TR Iu] AF BN SE B R 4 B B0 AR R R B A
FEA T = BRI R o R b Al S WS B — 2
JCAR o SR - Fh 7 B A R Y v i T 2 I A i
R SR A BB A B A R

A [ (5] R 4 8 20 R Y 4 T RS e B R A
A B 4 AR R b AR R i &9 AN R 112,924,000
TC IR A G A A BT _E T o A B RE AR A5 AH B
GEHEMRERNESEMNEEABEE T
it B o

AE T 55 415 Jm3 75 T - AE R 2 4F 10 55 00 > I E R
TE K8 7% 3% 2 (1 3 ST 35 2 AR o 8 [0 o 4F > R
b 8 TiT 35 64 8 B AR B R — A5 DA B S
7% ML [ B o 5o i H AT TR A T R S B R
ES B SN R KR S U NN Y Ry
B4 B A2 U B[R] L4 R o b At A [ 2
AT K (¥ 7] 7P I 2 SO AL AN R Y KL IR )
b B 2 LI 5 o ) St T 0 ) R SR T
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
T

In view of the downturn in the wine market and the uncertainties
surrounding domestic and international economic outlook, the
Group has to adhere to a prudent operating strategy to maintain
profitability and stable operations. We will strictly control our
expenditure, enhance the operational efficiency of our existing
facilities and minimize wastage in raw materials and energy so as
to effectively control costs. In addition, we will explore ways to
optimize application of existing resources, including the effective
use of raw materials in stock and existing arable land.

On the financial front, the Group is proactively pushing for
settlement of outstanding trade receivables and strengthening its
financial risk management to better cope with possible changes in
the market. The Group will align itself with the national policies
of stabilizing the economy and boosting consumption, and
capture market opportunities to maintain stable development of
the Group.

Wang Guangyuan

Chairman

28 March 2024

T 355 47 70 9 T A 9 K A % I PR A A R R R
B 4R T BR R AR I B M R AR o K
A7 5 e % 42 1 B S - o 5 B O B AT Rt Y
R > AR SRR RL R RE IR A FRFE > LA A AL
JEAS o BEAN o FAM IR ER i 0T FE 43 A BUA 9 &
TR > 6 375 3 B A JEUBE et % At 1) A O

T2 B 5 75 THD - S [ IE 5 MR i B R AR A > I o o
B B B 0 AR B EE > LA 3B i 35 T R o B A
SRy o B2 I AN T I AR A - 8 0 2 B UK
TP T35 008 AR B TR e SRR

Ea
R

ZERZME=ZAZ+/NH
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2023 KEY EVENTS
CEF TS

The 8th China International Fine Wine & Spirits Challenge — Tontine Wines
won three golds and two silvers, and the awards include:

5\ e v I I R R 2 T B R PR — O RO SEAE M = R, iR
§ii -

“Tongtian Red Blueberry Mountain Wine” won the Gold Medal Blueberry
Award
[ 40 R AT T 25 1L 7 700 V1Y | A48 <5 5 15 75 V9 48

“Tongtian Cabernet Sauvignon Dry Red Wine” won the Gold Medal Dry Red
Wine
[0 K 7% B BR T AL 0 480009 | 8 < 48 T AL

“Tongtian Snow Rhyme Mountain Wine” won the Gold Medal Sweet Red Wine
(98 R T8 1L ) 430G | 0 < B8 R AL

“Tongtian Autumn Rhyme Mountain Wine” won the Silver Medal Sweet Red
Wine
(788 R BKH L) o 2 10 ) 28 SR AR i AL I

“Tongtian Original Puree Mountain Wine” won the Silver Award for Sweet Red
Wine and the top ten best value for money

(138 2% D 4 1L 4 0 TG ) A AL B R B R A L
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2023 KEY EVENTS
CECEAEESN

FEEEALEATRAD

FEMEBE, ASAFR: R
FACTREAAHES SRR

.

e

03FLEEEE, RE

RIEFEELS
El‘%ﬁca%ﬁga
&S

Rated as an enterprise with outstanding contributions to the food industry in
Jilin Province for 40 years. Tontine Wines Group’s wines and ginseng wine also
won the gold medal at the Northeast Asia Healthy Wine Industry Expo

7T 2% 7 PR B L2404 28 H AR A 3 - 4 R 36 A I O A A S N 2l g
PRI T e R S 1B 2 R L AR

The 20th Decanter World Wine Championship— “Yalu Valley No. 1 White Ice
Wine” won the DWWA Silver Prize

% = 1 Jd Decanter tH 5 5 %) W5 K 2 [ &% VLI 5 195 « B UK H 24 W | 48 0%
DWWA K % 6 &

EL TS

China Specialty Food Industry Summit — “Tongtian Wanshan Wine”, “Tongtian
Red Ice Wine” and “Yaaru White Distilled Spirit” produced by Tontine Wines
were recognized as landmark food products with Chinese characteristic, and
Mr. Wang Jun was recognized as the inheritor of food skills with Chinese
characteristic

o B R e JEL W B i 3 e — 2 DR 2 A Y [ K G L A A ) T R AL K
A ) R [ SR ) 2R MR ) BB E 2 b B R € SRR B A AR E A £ A
BB E v B R 0 JEU R £ i 57 R R A

s

The results of the “7th National Wine and Fruit Wine Appraisal Conference’
organized by the China Food Industry Association were announced, and 101
national judges and 41 national invited judges were appointed, among which
three employees of Tongtine Wines Group, Ms. Xia Jinling, Mr. Wang Junyao
and Mr. Li Wei, were hired as national invited judges

H o B A S T S [ 5L A A - R B KRR S | S A R A
o SR WEAT A A~ SR B KRR 101N B KRB R R4 > Hrh = 78 R
EEBME L EER Lt FRFELEXFHCEPEF HBRRHFETE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB i B o

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

2023 was a complex and volatile year for global economy, with
inflationary pressures continuing to plague Europe and the United
States. The ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict has kept commodity
and food prices at high levels. In addition, geopolitical tensions
have disrupted major shipping routes in the Middle East, affecting
trade logistics.

In China, there were hopes that the economic recovery following
the easing of the COVID-19 pandemic would bring opportunities
to the consumer sector. However, the economic recovery turned
out to be slower than expected, and the downward pressure on
the property sector and credit crisis of some leading property
developers further dampened market confidence in the recovery.

Although China’s economy maintained a growth rate of 5.2% in
2023, overall consumer sentiment has become more cautious, and
multiple manufacturing industries were facing challenges such
as shrinking demand and capital shortages, which has prevented
some enterprises’ operations from fully recovering to pre-epidemic
levels.

According to the data released by the General Administration of
Customs of China, for the period from January to December 2023,
the volume of imported wine nationwide was 243 million liters,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 25.67%, and the import
value was US$1,082 million (RMB7,786 million), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 19.41%, both showing a relatively
significant decline.

From January to December 2023, the total production of
winemakers above designated size in China was 143,000 kiloliters,
representing a year-on-year increase of 2.9%.

Overall, the Chinese wine market continued its downward trend
from the past few years. Demand for higher-priced premium
wines weakened significantly due to uncertainties surrounding the
macroeconomic outlook.

(e 4

SR SRR RS 8 B 1 1) %
98 T AR 1) R o 5 07 28 1 A0 T 5 R M2 0
1 R o M BT R R 4 B o i I
B 2B BB B 5 -

o IR I A SR T 8 R AR M A% o T 4 B AR AR
W T TH AT S AR o SR B A AR R
AR TR T - b B K St T R AT 2
o URR B M A 6 B B TR
T 35 B LA B A5 0 o

BER —F T AR AR 2% IR
HEEAESYE M EFR N L2 MRETER
I 5 5K 25 4 A0 4 A ok O )R & BT AR 36
BT oK RE 0] 1R 2 82 155 G K-

RPE P BB B s, SR
+ A B A D A2 4348 T [ B
T FE25.67% 5 HE O & FH 5108218 FE ot (AR
77.861% 8) > [A] HL R F19.41% > i # 34 2 BL B K
e B T ik

CECEZE-AZET A RBEEEL EAEW
N E 1438 T I Al e R2.9% -

REHE T > I A A I 5 A7) AR R A A B
9 B F R AR AL o bl A 2 BB AR IR T SR AR TE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B s S o

FINANCIAL REVIEW

In 2023, the wine industry continued its trend from the past three
years and remained in a downturn. This, coupled with a sluggish
domestic economy as a whole, has dented consumer sentiment and
spending power, leaving the industry languishing at the bottom.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year under
Review”), the Group recorded total revenue of RMB189,139,000,
representing an increase of approximately 29.4% as compared to
the previous year. In particular, the sales revenue of sweet wine
and dry wine in aggregate accounted for 78.0% of the Group’s
total revenue for the Year under Review, while the sales revenue
of brandy and other wine products (including ice wine, Chinese
liquor and ginseng wine) accounted for 22.0%.

The Group’s revenue maintained the trend from the first half of
the year, with a modest year-on-year growth. However, as the
domestic demand for high-end wine products decreased amidst
an uncertain economic outlook and a more cautious consumer
sentiment, sales revenue from high-end wine products with higher
gross profit margins declined significantly as a percentage of the
Group’s total revenue. During the year, the Group’s gross profit
decreased year-on-year to RMB28,149,000, with a gross profit
margin of 14.9%. The decrease in gross profit was also attributable
to the write-off of certain obsolete and slow-moving inventories
in the amount of RMB20,189,000, representing an increase of
RMB12,924,000 as compared to the write-off of RMB7,265,000
for the previous year.

The following table shows the Group’s gross profit, gross profit
margin and change for the twelve months ended 31 December
2023:

BBEN ARETT)
BB B R

Overall gross profit (RMB 000)
Overall gross profit margin
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Twelve months ended 31 December
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Year-on-year

2023 2022 change
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28,149 35,874 -21.5%
14.9% 24.6% -9.7
percentage points
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 > the Group recorded total
comprehensive expenses of RMB70,806,000.
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For the Year under Review, the Group’s total cost of sales was
RMB160,990,000, representing a year-on-year increase of 46.0%,
which was mainly due to the increase in the Group’s revenue and
the write-off of certain obsolete and slow-moving inventories.
The main raw materials required by the Group for the production
of wine include grape juice and packaging materials. For the
Year under Review, the Group’s cost of raw materials amounted
to RMB130,824,000, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 47.7% and accounting for approximately 81.3% of
the Group’s total cost of sales.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the costs required
for production by the Group for the twelve months ended 31
December 2023:

B R S E BB O A A AR
160,990,0007C - [7] tb & 7+46.0% > & B i i £ [
B AT g 3880 % S T T BREE T i Y R A T B e
42 [ AR R A T R B EOR R A4S A
SRR NI SR N N N N R
130,824,0007T > [7] bt & F+&147.7% > A5 4E 4] 42 54
A AR £981.3% o
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Twelve months ended 31 December

BE+ZA=+—HiE+Z=MWAH

Percentage of

2023 2022 Change
ZROZAE —E WS4

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(ANR¥T ) (NR#T)
Total cost of raw materials JEME ) B A 4 AR 130,823 88,582 +47.7%
Production overheads A EMEER 4,888 4,349 +12.4%
Consumption tax and other taxes T2 B L HAb B A 25,279 17,313 +46.0%
Total cost of sales 8 B A T 160,990 110,244 +46.0%

During the Year under Review, the Group’s selling and
distribution expenses amounted to RMB38,842,000, representing a
year-on-year increase of 15.3%. As China began to relax its strict
control measures against the COVID-19 pandemic in early 2023,
in order to capitalize on the market recovery, the Group deployed
financial resources in product exhibition and promotion at the
Food and Drinks Fair in the first half of the year to enhance
market recognition of the Group’s products and brands, leading
to a year-on-year increase in the Group’s selling and distribution
expenses. In addition, in view of the change in consumption
patterns, the Group strengthened cooperation with various
online media platforms for online marketing, which effectively
consolidated the market coverage of the Group’s products. During
the Year under Review, the Group continued its strategy to
broaden online marketing channels and contracted with several
well-known internet celebrities to expand sales and increase brand
awareness.
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In anticipation of a possible rebound in consumption after the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group increased its advertising and
marketing spending to RMB27,337,000 during the Year under
Review, representing a year-on-year increase of 13.9%.

For the Year under Review, the Group’s administrative and
other operating expenses increased significantly year-on-year to
RMB47,038,000 due to the provision for expected credit losses on
trade and other receivables.

OPERATION REVIEW

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, China’s
gross domestic product (GDP) in 2023 grew by 5.2% year-on-year
to exceed RMBI126 trillion, and the consumer price index (CPI)
rose by 0.2% year-on-year. However, the CPI fell by 0.3% year-
on-year in December 2023, marking the third consecutive month
of year-on-year decline. Prices remained at a low level, which, to
a certain extent, reflecting insufficient effective demand. In 2023,
the total retail sales of consumer goods amounted to RMB47.1
trillion, representing an increase of 7.2% over the previous year.

During the Year under Review, the Group initiated strategic
collaboration with other enterprises to achieve synergies through
co-development or sharing of platforms and co-branding. Such
cross-industry cooperation helps the Group to reach out to
different consumer groups to broaden its customer base and
effectively deepen market penetration of the Group’s products.

The ginseng wine product developed by the Group attracted
certain extent of market attention in the early stage of its launch.
However, this new product with a higher price tag failed to achieve
the expected sales results due to the impact of the economic
downturn and cautious spending on high-end products. In view of
this, the Group adjusted its sales strategy in the second half of the
year and reduced its investment in ginseng wine products.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the output of all categories
of products manufactured by the Group’s two production bases
located in Tonghua, Jilin Province and Baiyanghe, Shandong
Province reached a total of 6,375 tonnes. Specifically, the output
of the Tonghua production base was 1,543.6 tonnes, which was
lowered as compared to the previous year due to a considerable
amount of inventory during the Year under Review; and the
output of the Baiyanghe production base was 4,831.4 tonnes,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 116.4%.
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OUTPUT VOLUME AND SALES
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s products

were sold through 86 distributors located in 19 provinces, one
autonomous region, and three direct-controlled municipalities in
China.

REGIONAL MARKET PERFORMANCE

During the Year under Review, the Eastern Region saw a
more pronounced economic recovery, which, coupled with the
resumption of tourism, led to a rebound in wine consumption.
During the Year under Review, revenue from the Eastern Region
market amounted to RMBS81,555,000, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 106.0% and being the largest
contributor to the Group’s total revenue with its proportion
further increasing to 43.1%, making it the market with the most
outstanding performance during the Year under Review.

There was also a significant year-on-year increase in revenue from
the South-West Region. For the Year under Review, revenue from
the region amounted to RMB46,877,000, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 88.9% and accounting for 24.8% of
the Group’s total revenue. Revenue from the South-Central Region
decreased slightly year-on-year to RMB35,242,000, accounting for
18.6% of the Group’s total revenue. Revenue from the North-East
and Northern Regions experienced relatively significant decline
year-on-year, and in aggregate accounted for approximately 13.5%
of the Group’s total revenue.

BUSINESS INDICATOR REVIEW

INVENTORY TURNOVER DAYS

The inventory turnover days of the Group at the end of the year
stood at approximately 408 days, as compared to 748 days of the
previous year. This was mainly due to the effective utilization of
existing inventories with a “gift with purchase” strategy, using
slow-moving inventories to encourage customers to promote the
sales of Group’s products.

TRADE RECEIVABLES TURNOVER DAYS

As at the end of the year, the Group’s trade receivables amounted
to RMB117,247,000, and the turnover days were 241 days,
representing a modest decrease as compared to 314 days as at the
end of the previous year.
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OPERATION ANALYSIS BY PRODUCT

DRY WINES

For the Year under Review, the Group’s sales revenue from dry
wine products amounted to RMBI101,103,000, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 51.3% and accounting
for 53.5% of the total revenue. The gross profit margin for the
Year under Review was 26.0%, representing a decrease of 11.2
percentage points as compared to 37.2% for the previous year,
which was mainly due to the decrease in the sales of high-end dry
wine products as a proportion in total sales.

SWEET WINES

For the Year under Review, the Group’s sales revenue from sweet
wine products amounted to RMB46,432,000, representing a slight
year-on-year decrease and accounting for approximately 24.5% of
the total revenue. The gross profit margin was 11.8%, representing
a decrease of 7.8 percentage points as compared to 19.5% for the
previous year, which was mainly due to the decrease in the sales of
high-end sweet wine products as a proportion in total sales.

BRANDY

For the Year under Review, the Group’s sales revenue from brandy
amounted to RMB28,033,000, accounting for approximately
14.8% of the total revenue. The gross profit margin of the product
was 41.0%. Both the sales revenue and gross profit margin of
the product increased remarkably as compared to those of the
previous year. However, there was minimum impact on the
Group’s gross profit margin as the product’s revenue accounted
for only a small proportion of the Group’s total revenue.

OTHER PRODUCTS

The Group’s other wine products include ginseng wines, high-end
ice wines and Chinese liquor (Yaaru Liquor (HZE ) ). For the
Year under Review, the sales revenue of other products amounted
to RMBI13,571,000, accounting for 7.2% of the Group’s total
revenue. The gross profit margin of other products for the Year
under Review was 37.3%.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

China’s economic growth target for 2024 is 5%, while the
International Monetary Fund forecasts a global economic growth
rate of 3.1% for 2024. As observed from the first quarter of this
year, the international situation remained tense, with the Russia-
Ukraine War and the Israeli-Palestinian conflict showing signs
of escalation instead of easing, adding uncertainty to the global
economy. China is actively seeking to improve its trade relations
with western countries, but results are yet to be seen. The credit
crisis of domestic real estate enterprises has not subsided, and the
chain effect of declining housing prices will continue to weigh on
the economic outlook.

The wine industry in the China is expected to remain under
pressure due to weak consumption. Compared with other
alcoholic beverages, wines in China have yet to develop into mass
consumer goods, and per capita consumption is low, which has
contributed to the continued downward trend of the market.

In response to the market situation, the Group has adjusted
its marketing strategy by reducing its traditional marketing
promotions and increasing its cooperation with other retail and
food and beverage platforms for promotion of its products and
consolidation of its brand awareness.

With regard to production processes, the Group will further
tighten its cost control and strive to enhance its overall operational
efficiency by cutting unit costs and expanding the sales volume of
well-received products.

In the face of economic uncertainties and a sluggish wine
market, the Group will maintain a prudent operating strategy to
broaden income sources and reduce expenses, and seek to further
strengthen its financial position to cope with changes in the
market.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Guangyuan ( EJ£ %), aged 62, was appointed as
our executive Director on 8§ September 2008. He is also the
chairman and a member of the nomination committee of our
Board and the chief executive officer of our Company. Mr. Wang
is one of the founding management team members of Tonghua
Tongtian Winery Co., Ltd * (Z#{b % R EA R A F) (“Tonghua
Tongtian™) since its establishment in 2001. He is responsible for
the overall business strategy, development and management of our
Group. Prior to establishing our Group, from November 1986 to
August 2000, he served with Tonhwa Winery Limited (% k7 %5
A R/ F]) , a wine company currently listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, and in September 1995, he was promoted as a
deputy general manager. Mr. Wang is currently a member of the
People’s Representative of Tonghua City 8th People’s Congress
G b Vs AR MR K ) and a member of the Standing
Committee of Tonghua County 16th People’s Congress (#H{b 5%
FHAEARARFRGMRERZE), the Chairman of Tonghua
County Industry and Commerce Association (1L §& T p% 25 46 )
and the Vice-Chairman of Jilin Chamber of Commerce ( 5P &) .
Mr. Wang was awarded as the “Outstanding Worker of Tonghua
County 1996-2001" (1996-20014F %% 1k §% 45 B #5 #i) by People’s
Government of Tonghua County (#{b# AR BUN) in October
2002. He was also conferred with the title of “Excellent Sales
Manager” (875 #5844 4¢3) jointly by China Winery Industry
Association Grape Wine Sub-branch ( A [ B T 2 1 & % 45 78
/7% ) and China Agriculture Association Grape Sub-branch (H
B 2 B2 Er i 4 4> &) in June 2006. He was certified as a senior
economist by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC ( H ¥ A [ 4t
FER B4 B ) on 29 May 2003. Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in business management from Jilin University (35 #k K
£L) in July 1993. Mr. Wang is the brother of Ms. Wang Lijun, an
executive Director of our Company.

Mr. Wang is beneficially interested in the 51% of the issued share
capital of Up Mount International Limited (“Up Mount”), a
substantial shareholder of our Company, and is also a director of
Up Mount.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Hebin (3R fi#) , aged 63, was appointed as our
executive Director on 8 September 2008. He is one of the
founding management team members of Tonghua Tongtian since
its establishment in 2001. Prior to May 2011, he was primarily
responsible for sales, marketing and products promotion of our
Group. Since May 2011, he has assumed responsibility for and is
in charge of the merger and acquisition activities of our Group.
Prior to joining our Group, from April 1984 to August 2000,
he worked with Tonhwa Winery Limited (%81t 7 %5 5 % 3 A R
/NH)) , a wine company currently listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, and in February 1986, he was promoted as a district
sales manager. He obtained a junior college diploma of economic
management from the Party School of Jilin Province Government (
M ZE# A ) and graduated in July 1991.

Ms. Wang Lijun (ERFE ), aged 55, was appointed as our
executive Director on 2 May 2017. She joined our Group in
January 2010 as executive manager. In December 2010, she was
promoted to deputy general manager and is responsible for
administration and human resources matters of all the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC. Prior to joining our Company, from
August 2006 to September 2009, she worked in Dubon Property
and Casualty Insurance Company Limited Jilin branch (&8
2 PR B B {3 A PR S B &5 MR 4r A 7)) as business general manager
and was responsible for business management. From July 1994 to
August 2006, she was the deputy general manager in China Pacific
Life Insurance Company Limited Tonghua branch ( # [# X °F
N R B I 0 A7 PR A /] 48 fb .0 L2 \l) and responsible for
administration matters. Ms. Wang graduated from Jilin Industry
University ( % # T2 K £) with a bachelor’s degree in accounting
in July 1998. Ms. Wang is the sister of Mr. Wang Guangyuan,
the chairman of our Board, the chief executive officer and an
executive Director of our Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Jerry Y. (Z=5i#) , aged 25, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 31 August 2022. He graduated from the
University of Sydney in Australia with a Bachelor degree of
Science, majoring in Nutrition and Metabolism. From September
2021, Mr. Li served as the vice general manager of Shenzhen
Sanshun Pharmaceutical Limited* (G = NER £ BR/A A]) .

Mr. Li is one of the members and directors of Sky Source
International Investments Limited (“Sky Source”) which holds
49% of shareholding of Up Mount International Limited (“Up
Mount”), a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Zhu Minghui (& B f) , aged 25, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 31 August 2022. He graduated from Bryant
University in the United States of America, with a Bachelor
degree of Science in Business Administration, majoring in Finance
and Economics. Mr. Zhu is currently the Investment Manager in
Shenzhen Maoanyuan Investments Company Limited* ( Gl T %

LRBEARATA)

Mr. Zhu is one of the members and directors of Sky Source
International Investments Limited (“Sky Source”) which holds
49% of shareholding of Up Mount International Limited (“Up
Mount”), a substantial shareholder of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. Cheng Vincent (3 5 fi) , aged 60, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 17 November 2018. He is
also the chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of our Board. Dr. Cheng obtained a doctorate
degree in Business Administration from European University
in Switzerland in October 2016, a master’s degree in Business
Administration from Deakin University in Australia (as a joint
program of Deakin University and CPA Australia) in May 2003
and a bachelor of arts degree in Accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong (formerly known as City Polytechnic
of Hong Kong) in November 1993. Dr. Cheng was admitted as a
fellow of CPA Australia in December 2000, a fellow of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute in October 2000, a fellow
of HKICPA in April 2008 and a fellow of the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong in September 2010. He was also recognised by
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong as a Chartered Tax Adviser
(CTA HK) in September 2010. He is currently recognized by
International Professional Advocates Association as a Certified
International Mediation Advocate.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. Cheng Vincent has years of experience in the fields of
finance and accountancy. From December 1987 to September
2000, Dr. Cheng was employed with a financial planning firm
and was promoted to chief accountant (Hong Kong) before he
left. During October 2000 to February 2002, Dr. Cheng had
been a project manager responsible for fund raising activities
and relationship management in a company in Australia which is
principally engaged in chemical and pharmaceutical business and
was subsequently listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (now
known as GEM) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). From May 2003 to July 2010, Dr. Cheng
had joined Continental Holdings Limited, a company engaged
in consumer goods business and listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 513), and had held various positions
(including project manager, head of finance and accounts
department, company secretary and qualified accountant) during
his tenure of service. In January 2011, Dr. Cheng was appointed
as the deputy finance director of a multi-disciplinary architecture
firm and is currently its finance director.

Dr. Cheng had been the independent non-executive director of
Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited (a company listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3332)) from
August 2013 to October 2018. He has been an independent non-
executive director of Flying Financial Service Holdings Limited
from April 2012 to February 2023 (a company listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8030)).

Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert (&%) , aged 62, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 28 October 2009. He
is also the chairman of the nomination committee, as well as a
member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee
of our Board. Mr. Lai has over 30 years’ experience in the jewelry
industry. He had worked for and held key management positions
in various established jewelry companies, both listed and private,
in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. Lai has rich experience in sales
management, marketing, distribution channel and resource
planning strategies.
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Mr. Yang Qiang (#3%) , aged 63, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 15 January 2016. He
is also a member of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of our Board. Mr. Yang
holds a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from Beijing
Institute of Technology (dL T ¥ T. k&) | He is experienced in the
wine industry in the PRC and has been serving as the secretary of
the expert committee of the Grape and Fruit Wine of the China
National Food Industry Association ( H [ £ i T 2 1 & %5 7 ~
R H K Z: B ) for many years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Jun (EH) | aged 61, has been appointed as the chief
winemaker of our Company since 1 January 2017. Prior to joining
our Group, from August 1985 to January 2014, he served various
positions in Tonhwa Winery Limited ( %t 75 275 B A PR A ) |
a wine company currently listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
including director of chief engineer’s office, director of research
office, head of technical division, director of research institute
and general manager. In 2014, Mr. Wang joined Hangzhou
Oriental Culture Tourism Group (HTH 58 77 XL FE iR EHEH) as
general manager of one of its subsidiaries, Liaoning Northern
Latitude 41 Degrees Wine Company Limited ( 7 & 4t #4157 3£
FBRZH) . He has been a member of the China Alcoholic Drinks
Association ( 1B 21 ) , China Food Industry Association (
B & L2 &) , Wine Expert Panel of National Wine Quality
Inspection Center ([ 5% %] % W B fg b O A1 A W B X 4) and a
national liquor judge since 1997. Mr. Wang was appointed as an
international judge by Union Internationale des Oenologues ([
% B2 Y R B 55 ) in 2008, certified as the first batch of state level
senior winemaker (& #% BEVE i) and first-class sommelier (— %K
AhiFE AT ) in 2012, and elected as a member of the First National
Wine Brewing Standard Technology Committee Grape Wine
Sub-branch (& & 4 [ G A% YE AL 452 1l7 25 B & #4579 20 &) in
2014. He graduated from Food Science & Engineering of Dalian
Institute of Light Industry (R TEELRE) (currently known
as Dalian Polytechnic University (K#E T26K£) ) with a college
diploma of industrial fermentation in August 1985.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Zhao Dan (¥ F}) , aged 44, is the chief financial officer and
the deputy general manager of our Company. She joined our
Group in September 2001 and was promoted to the position of
deputy general manager in December 2014. She was the chief
financial officer of our Group from December 2014 to December
2015, and was re-appointed as the chief financial officer of our
Group from July 2018. She is responsible for the financial and
accounting management of our Group. Ms. Zhao graduated from
Jilin University (% MK £ ) with a higher diploma in finance and
accounting in July 2000. She obtained her qualification of mid-
level accountant in May 2005.

Mr. Zhang Xuexin (JRE2 # ), aged 42, is a deputy general
manager of our Company. He joined our Group in December
2001 and is responsible for project management of the Group. In
December 2010, Mr. Zhang was promoted from project manager
to his current position. Mr. Zhang graduated from Jilin University
(75 KB ) with a higher diploma in economics in July 2002.

Mr. Wang Kai (EHL) , aged 42, is a deputy general manager
of our Company. He joined our Group in November 2021
and is responsible for the Group’s investment and finance
management, promoting our products of the Group and our
Group’s corporate image. Mr. Wang graduated from Harbin
University of Science and Technology (M4 # 1& # T K £) with
a higher diploma in Human Resource Management in January
2007 and he also obtained Master of Business Administration in
Executive Management from Royal Roads University in Canada
in September 2012.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Shuk Man, Lora (B#{ %) was appointed as the
Company secretary of the Company from 22 January 2021.
She obtained a bachelor’s degree of Business Administration in
Accounting (Hon.) from the Coventry University and a MBA (Banking)
from the University of Stirling in the United Kingdom and is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a Chartered Tax Adviser
(Hong Kong). She has over 25 years of experience in auditing,
accounting, banking and financial management. She has been the
credit analyst of a Japanese bank and a European bank in Hong
Kong. She later joined an international accounting firm in Hong
Kong for 14 years, providing audit, taxation and consultancy
service. She was the senior director for a few years.
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The board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) is pleased
to present the Directors’ Report together with the annual report
(the “Annual Report”) and the audited financial statements of
China Tontine Wines Group Limited (the
subsidiaries (collectively the
December 2023 (the “Year”).

“Company”) and its
“Group”) for the year ended 31

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group continue to be the production and sales
of grape wine in the mainland China. Revenue and contribution
to operating profit are mainly derived from activities carried out
in the mainland China. Particulars of the principal activities of
the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to 172.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final
dividend to shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the additions of approximately RMB4,267,000
in property, plant and equipment was mainly for the expansion
and enhancement of the Group’s production capability. Details
of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the Year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 19 November
2009. At the annual general meeting held on 10 May 2019, the
Company adopted another share option scheme. At the annual
general meeting held on 16 June 2023, the Company adopted the
third share option scheme (the “2023 Share Option Scheme”) and
terminated the second one.

The “2023 Share Option Scheme” is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years. The maximum number of share options that
can be granted by the Company was 294,054,800 shares. Special
General Meeting was held on 18 August 2023 and approved
Share Consolidation of every ten issued and unissued ordinary
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company into one Consolidation Share of par value of HK§$0.1,
the maximum number of share options that can be granted by the
Company was revised to 29,405,480 shares.

On 15 December 2023, the Company offered to grant share
options to subscribe for an aggregate of 29,405,480 ordinary
shares of HKS$0.10 each to ten full time employees of the
Company.
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2023 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The principal terms of the 2023 Share Option Scheme are

summarised below.

(i)

(i)

The purpose of the 2023 Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to the Participants for their
contribution to the Group and/or the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group.

Eligible participants include: (a) For Employee Participants; (b)
Related Entity Participants; and (c) Service Providers.

The basis of eligibility of any of the class of Participant to
the grant of any options shall be determined by the Board
from time to time on the basis of their contribution to the
development and growth of the Group set below:

(a) For Employee Participants: the Board will generally
consider their general working performance, time
commitment (full-time, or part time), length of
their service within the Group, working experience,
responsibilities and/or employment conditions with
reference to the prevailing market practice and
industry standard.

(b) For Related Entity Participants, the Board
will generally consider their participation and
contribution to the development of the Group and/
or the extent of benefits and synergies brought to
the Group.
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(c)

Service Providers include those distributors that
provide e-platform services and supply chain
management services using blockchain technology.
For Service Providers, the Board will generally
consider their experience and expertise, continuity
and frequency of their services to the Group, their
involvement in promoting the business of the Group,
or where appropriate, contribution or potential
contribution to the long-term growth of the Group.
Set below is the identification of each category of
Service Providers and the criteria for determining a
person’s eligibility under each category:

(1) In accessing whether the Service Providers
provides services to the Group on a
continuing and recurring basis, the Board
shall take into consideration the length
(over twelve (12) months’ of contractual
relationship with the Group) and type
of services provided and the recurrences
and regularity of such services, and will
benchmark such metrics against the
performance of the employees, officers and
Directors of the Group to whom the Group
provides equity incentives, while taking
into account the purpose of the of the 2023
Share Option Scheme and the objectives in
engaging the Service Provider.

(i1) In accessing whether the Service Provider
provides services to the Group in the
Company’s ordinary and usual course of
business, the Board or the committee of
the Board shall take into consideration the
nature of the services form part of or are
directly ancillary to the businesses conducted
by the Group, as disclosed in the Company’s
financial reports.

(©)
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(iii)

R

The total number of Shares which may be issued in respect
of all Option(s) and Award(s) to be granted under the 2023
Share Option Scheme and any Other Schemes (excluding
for this purpose Option(s) or Award(s) which have lapsed
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 2023
Share Option Scheme and any Other Schemes) (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”) shall not exceed 10% of the total number
of Shares in issue on the Adoption Date.

Within the Scheme Mandate Limit, the sublimit on the
total number of Shares that may be issued in respect of all
Option(s) and Award(s) to be granted to Service Providers
under the 2023 Share Option Scheme and any Other
Schemes (excluding for this purpose Option(s) or Award(s)
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the 2023 Share Option Scheme and any Other
Schemes) (the “Service Provider Sublimit”) shall not exceed
1% of the number of total issued Shares on the Adoption
Date. The Service Provider Limit shall not be valid unless:

(a) the Service Provider Sublimit is separately approved
by the Shareholders in general meeting; and

(b) a circular regarding the Service Provider Sublimit
has been despatched to the Shareholders in a
manner complying with, and containing the matters
specified in, the relevant provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules (including, among others, the
basis for determining the Service Provider Sublimit
and an explanation as to why the Service Provider
Sublimit is appropriate and reasonable).

Subject to the provisions of the 2023 Share Option Scheme,
the Scheme Mandate Limit and the Service Provider
Sublimit may be refreshed by ordinary resolution of the
Shareholders in general meeting after three (3) years from
the date of Shareholders’ approval for the last refreshment (or
the Adoption Date).
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(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

R

Unless approved by shareholders in a general meeting, the
total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted to any eligible
participant under the 2023 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Group in the 12-month
period up to and including such further grant must not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for
the time being.

An option may be accepted by an eligible participant
within 21 days from the date of the offer of grant of the
option. A nominal consideration of HKS$1 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the 2023 Share Option Scheme at any time during a
period (which may not expire later than 10 years from the
date of the grant) to be determined and notified by the
Directors to each grantee.

The subscription price per Share under the 2023 Share
Option Scheme will be a price determined by the Directors,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of the offer for grant (which
must be a business day); (ii) the average closing price of
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of the offer for the grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of a Share.

The Option(s) to be granted under the 2023 Share Option
Scheme shall be subject to a minimum vesting period of
Option(s) to be granted under the 2023 Share Option
Scheme shall be twelve (12) months. Any shorter vesting
period in respect of Option(s) granted to Employee
Participants must be approved by the Board and/or the
Remuneration Committee (where the arrangements relate
to grants of Option(s) to Directors and senior managers of
the Company) at the Directors’ discretion.

(iv)

™)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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(ix)

(x)

R

Except otherwise imposed by the Board pursuant to the
provisions of the 2023 Share Option Scheme and stated
in the offer of the grant of the Option(s), there is no
performance target that has to be achieved before the
exercise of any Option(s).

The right to exercise an Option (to the extent not already
exercised) shall lapse automatically where the Grantee
ceases to be a Participant by reason of summary dismissal
of such Grantee, or on any one or more of the grounds
that such Grantee has been guilty of misconduct, or other
breach of the terms of his employment contract or other
contract constituting him a Participant (including, among
others, causing material misstatement of the financial
statements of the Company), or the date on which he
begins to appear to be unable to pay or has no reasonable
prospect of being able to pay his debts or has become
insolvent or has made any arrangement or composition
with such Grantee’s creditors generally, or has been
convicted of any criminal offence involving such Grantee’s
integrity or honesty or (if so determined by the Board) on
any other ground on which an employer would be entitled
to terminate such Grantee’s employment summarily at
common law or pursuant to any applicable laws or under
such Grantee’s service contract with the Company or the
relevant subsidiary. The Board or the board of directors
of the relevant subsidiary, or any person delegated by the
Board or the board of directors of the relevant subsidiary
shall determine whether the employment or other relevant
contract of a Grantee has or has not been terminated on
one or more of the grounds specified in this paragraph.
Such decision shall be final, conclusive and binding.

(ix)

(x)
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During the Year, the movements in the options granted by the
Company under the 2023 Share Option Scheme were as follows:

A RIS AT IR A R % T SRR

AERE N AR RAR IR T T AR I R R 4R
Hh D S s ) 5 8

Number of options

Tt e %
Outstanding Outstanding
Closing price as at Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at
Category of Exercisable Exercise price ~ per Share on 1 January  Granted during during during during 31 December
grantees Date of grant Vesting date  period per Share  date of grant 2023 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2023
REZZE
RERDEE +ZA
RE A ~A-R ES
RENHR fH A BERA AR BERATHR BRI WAGHE  ERARY ERAGE O ERREE  EERRH WA 71
(ddfmmfyyyy)  (ddfmmlyyyy) (dd/mm/yyyy) HKS HKS
(R/R/%®) (R/H/%) (B/R/%) I #r
Employees 151212023 15/12/2023 - 15/12/2024 - 092 0.92 - 29,405,480 - - - 29,405,480
33 1412004 14122025
Total - 29,405,480 - - - 29,405,480
it
The total number of Shares granted on 15 December 2023 under R4 I #li 4 7% 2 WEEHERT #Ih —F =4+ =

the share option schemes disclosed above is 29,405,480 (2023
Share Option Scheme), representing approximately 9.75% of
the total number of Shares in issue of the Company as at 31
December 2023.

The maximum number of Shares available for issue upon exercise
of options not yet granted under the share option schemes
disclosed above is Nil Shares (2023 Share Option Scheme),
representing approximately 0.00% of the total number of Shares
in issue of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

Options granted under the Company’s share option schemes were
recognized as expenses of the Company in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 28 to the audited consolidated
financial statements. The determination of the fair value of the
options is set out in note 28 to the audited consolidated financial
statements.

A #H B 8% 00 AT (50 0 1 RE 5 A7 09 i £ 28 8
7529,405,480 % ( —F — = FWERAERT ) 5 M54
AFIR R T ZAEF A = — BB BT R G
HHEY £99.75% -

MR I ol Bl 55 > W I ST 1 1 o 4% s Y I
AT ARSI N REEE BER (=
T AR RS RESEE)  AE AR A AR ZF AT
T A = H B AT R S £90.00% e

HRABE AR 2 ) W B w3 432 1 1 8 2 9% IR A
AL K G 5 3R WA RE28 P A1 Y 8 R Tl
B I A ) B S o B SRR Y A T (L R E RO KE
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 109.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately RMB123,446,000 (2022:
RMB127,594,000).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results containing information on
the Group’s assets and liabilities for the last five financial years is
set out on pages 2 to 4. The summary does not form part of the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors comprising the Board during the Year and up to the
date of the Annual Report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Wang Guangyuan (Chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Zhang Hebin

Ms. Wang Lijun

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Jerry Y.
Mr. Zhu Minghui

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Dr. Cheng Vincent

Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert

Mr. Yang Qiang

it i
7 4 ) 4 2 A0 B il A 5 B 16 SO 55 109 B A9 £
o HE o S B 3 o
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A 5 BB 2

o 7 74 4 T 25 (81 St B4 % AR
F 25 S5 1 10 A S5 28 S o % M I
RSB A B AR 01— ¥4 o

i
G ) AR AE B F s L
i -

PAT P
FORIES A (I FITEH )
s A SoE
ERAE XL

FEPAT HE
2 Fnith B R
RIBEA

S AT R
U 5% A 1
g e

5 98 55



DIRECTORS' REPORT
R AR e

The Company’s bye-laws provide that, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at least once every three years. Further, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing
Board will hold office until the next following general meeting of
the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company (in the
case of an addition to the existing Board), unless re-elected by the
shareholders. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election
and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at
which he/she retires. Every Director is therefore subject himself/
herself to the absolute and free choice of the shareholders for re-
election at the annual general meetings.

The Board comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
representing more than one-third of the Board. The independent
non-executive Directors play an important role on formulating
the Group’s objectives and strategies and ensuring that the Board
maintains high standard of corporate governance. The Company
has received annual confirmations of independence from Dr.
Cheng Vincent, Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert, and Mr. Yang
Qiang pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considered all of its independent non-executive Directors were
independent during the Year and as at the date of the Annual
Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 20 to 25 of the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors had a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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AN F B 2N ARSI R RE 5 S g i B R AR R
bR =02 — i E S (S E E AR E =
B =BG B R AR DR = 2 — 1
N8 Hi (R AT Mg RS E D g =4
i (BB AT — WK o MUk AT f] iy 3 2 o 22 AT LU
B R 2 R B AR 2 B O o R 0 R B 2 T M
AR AR 2 AR i e R OR (0 2 SR Bl ey 22
B ) B AR m) N T e O RO (2 B
I 2 S BRI A B ) > B I A IR SR 3 U A ol
BALTE BT & E AR AL I R R
K& DR ES - FIL > 54 #H AR BOR
BAE KRG b b R 2 HE B b g HRE S AT

EHOOT 4B TESR (hERE =
U b B FRATERER G EALEA
1 B SR DL L e DR B A ME SR KT SR R
J7 T 3 96 5 L A € o AR R B T BRI A3 13
AR ) O O AR T L BRE R Se A A R
56 A 110 A T S e R o AR B IR R R A AE i H
A > F R FC I A S AT S S B O o

g6 B W B AT P el I

7 A ] TE B N AR T Y B R R R AR
205 25H o

o 2 1 R 4 K9

4 S0 B A 2 ) AT ] B 8 T A AR
R LS — 4 1R G o B AR (3 5 B AR A ) T ¢
Ik 19 B 45 49 o

35



36

CHINA TONTINE WINES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

DIRECTORS' REPORT
R AR e

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

None of the “Related Party Transactions” as disclosed in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements for the Year constituted
discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-exempted
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the Year.

DIRECTORS AND/OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF

THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and/or the chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) as recorded in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

(1) LONG POSITION IN ORDINARY SHARES

I Rl Ty 28 B

G B 2 B B AR Y 34 9 155 19 T B 38 53 |
S 408 4 % 17 A0 9 S T 4 8 10 R g
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(1) A2 vl 45 Bewi 4H0. 109 5C w9 35 28 Bt

(THE “SHARES”) OF HK$0.10 EACH IN THE (TRl 2% 8
COMPANY
Approximate
Name of Group member/ Number of percentage of
Name of Director associated corporation Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held shareholding
AL H ﬁk’ BAW,/
EHEY i i L2/ £ Ly i 5 e 4 i H HBE 24 J HE VT 43 B
(Note 1) (Note 3)
(HtzEl) (Hf#t3)
Mr. Wang Guangyuan The Company Interest of a controlled 49,517,872 16.42%
Tt sk VNN corporation Shares (L)
2 il i B HE 2 (Note 2)
B4 (L)

(Wtit2)
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Name of Director

HEEA

Mr. Li Jerry Y.

R TR

Mr. Zhu Minghui
RUIRUEE

Notes:
(1
(2

3)

“)

Name of Group member/
associated corporation
ALEBBE AW/

W6k 3 P 4% R

The Company
H/AT

corporation

A Wl T Y R 2

Beneficial owner

B A A

The Company
EN/N

corporation

S 1 I B i

Beneficial owner

A A

The letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares.

These Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Up Mount International Limited (“Up Mount”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”) and whose issued share capital is owned by Mr.
Wang Guangyuan (51%) and Sky Source International
Investments Limited (49%).

As at 31 December 2023, Sky Source held a total number
of 69,517,872 Shares of the Company, representing
approximately 23.05% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Both Mr. Li Jerry Y. and Mr. Zhu Minghui
are members and directors of Sky Source International
Investments Limited (“Sky Source”) which holds 49%
of shareholding of Up Mount International Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis
of 301,561,800 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2023.

By, HE B 1 E

Interest of a controlled

Interest of a controlled

Capacity/Nature of interest

Wit

0]
(€]

3

“
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Approximate
Number of percentage of
Shares held shareholding
Jife % T 4 B H HBE 24 JB¢ HE 7 40 b
(Note 1) (Note 3)
(HiFEL) (Mf7E3)
49,517,872 16.42%
Shares (L)
20,000,000 6.63%
Shares (L)
(Note 3)
JBC M43 (L)
(Wtit3)
49,517,872 16.42%
Shares (L)
20,000,000 6.63%
Shares (L)
(Note 3)
JBe B3 (L)
(Wtit3)
L] RO B -
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(2) INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTIONS OF THE
COMPANY
Each of the Grantees of 2023 Share Option Scheme
granted on 15 December 2023 is neither a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, nor
an associate as defined under the Listing Rules of any of
them.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares in or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31
December 2023.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, so far as is known to any Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the following parties, other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company, were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company, as being
directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be interested in 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

Capacity/Nature of

(2) A2 il Jik JBe HE A 25

MR-F =+ _A+THAREN -F
T AR ORE R P R R IR A JE A
AFER BRTEABREZERR IR
FEAAT TN L2 BB N E R A LR
HJ

B ECRT iR E SN R FE = A=
HoAQARKEFREZTHEABBMERAL
) BT AT AR B ik (G 6 LB 2 %O R e 1
55XV ) B 4 ~ A B B 6y B R P A B
HR R 5 % S0 B8 kA1 A0 2 0 A A A R i R

F BB AR A 2 w27 i

MRoF =4+ A=+ — B A g
AN E EEATEN B A AN W AR IR A
e 5 A5 1) 565 3366 77 B 1 5w M RT 8k o 5 A
AN A E O M A S B A AR
Al EBATRAS% MU LRSI £ (EHRA
ANTE EEATEABBRAN) I

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name interest Shares held issued Shares
16 B #AT A
EA Ve XS B by HE 23 VR B Pt & ¢ 4y B H B E L
(Note 1) (Note 6)
(KtzEL) (Bt 7t6)
Sky Source International Investments Limited Interest in a controlled 49,517,872 (L) 16.42%
(Note 2) corporation
KGR B EHRA T (M 7E2) 1 1 v T HE A
Beneficial owner 20,000,000 (L) 6.63%
Hu A A
Up Mount International Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 49,517,872 (L) 16.42%
ERBEERAR (HiE3) Ham A A
Ms. Zhang Min (Note 4) Interest of spouse 49,517,872 (L) 16.42%

SRt (Hfit4) T, i HEE i
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Name

£ 8

Bon Voyage Development Limited (Note 5)
NE 2% 5% e A RN ) (MFAES)

Mr. Yu Xinxin
Tkt

Mr. Yan Shaohua
AR

Notes:

Capacity/Nature of
interest

B by HE 35 TR

Beneficial owner

HaHA A

Beneficial owner

HaHEA A

Beneficial owner

HaEHA A

[ R P S A A TR

L RESRE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares held issued Shares
e BT RkM

Jt ¥ ik 8 H BEZ A 43 e
(Note 1) (Note 6)
(Btat1) (Htite)
40,000,000 (L) 13.26%
25,760,000 (L) 8.54%
23,758,200 (L) 7.88%

(1
2

3)

4)

®)

(6)

The Letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares.

Sky Source International Investments Limited (“Sky Source”) is
a company incorporated in the Samoa. It is beneficially owned by
Mr. Li Jerry Y. (50%) and Mr. Zhu Minghui (50%), non-executive
directors of the Company. Sky Source holds 49% of shareholding
of Up Mount, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Up Mount International Limited (“Up Mount”) is a company
incorporated in the BVI, and is beneficially owned by Mr.
Wang Guangyuan (51%), the chairman, an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company and Sky Source
International Investments Limited (49%).

Ms. Zhang Min is the spouse of Mr. Wang Guangyuan and is
therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Mr.
Wang Guangyuan (through Up Mount International Limited) by
virtue of the SFO.

Bon Voyage Development Limited is a company incorporated in
the BVIL.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
301,561,800 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as the options granted under the Company’s share option
scheme(s) disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for its qualifying employees
in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the government of the People’s Republic of China
for the employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established in
the People’s Republic of China. As at 31 December 2023, there
was no forfeited contribution receivable for reduction of future
contribution (2022: Nil).

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the business of the Group or the provision of services to the
Group to which any controlling shareholder of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party, or in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of the Annual Report, no
Directors were considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group.

o 15 Y B By A 2 1 RE R

B b 34 R AR AR O ) R R 2 i 0 AR
RESL > 47 BE AT AT IR ) > 7 2 ) BCHAT: foT K 2
AL BT S AT AT 22 P > R EE A A A 0 i A
O ) A AR At 35 1 ) B A3 B S T A i

SO i A -

7% S AR5 7 5 % 1 548 S 3 4k 0 2 3t
{1 o A R B AT 5 A A A R
B B 7% o A R RN B R S 2 AR 4 ) 2
28] 2 A R A o e AR B R
FOBRAEA G BN —F S A S
F o 08 406 L 34 i M 86 T P S 41l e A 63
(ZRT AR ) -

T £ & B BE 2
A% 4 ) 5HAE AT G 2 ) 9 £ 7 4 A R SRS 47
JEE 65 SR 47 T 7O A I ] > A0E 40 5T 7 B A
S 1B 19 26 5 ) A A O B2 56 AR s L 9 B
A B o B TR 1 K
5 H A -

R 8 T P S 0 Y B 2

ERER L H B AR OH W B R A R
BELAS £ [ 19 6 15 L 4 TR 0% 80 T AT RE B
B T B SEHS A AT



DIRECTORS' REPORT
R AR e

REMUNERATION POLICY, EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Quality and dedicated staff are our most important assets and
are indispensable to our success in the competitive market. As
part of our corporate culture, we strive to ensure a strong team
spirit among our employees for them to contribute towards our
corporate objectives. In achieving the goal, we offer competitive
remuneration packages commensurate with the industry level
and provide various fringe benefits, including trainings, medical,
insurance coverage as well as retirement benefits to the employees
in Hong Kong and in China. The Company has also adopted
share option scheme with the primary purpose of motivating
employees of the Group to optimize their contributions to the
Group and to reward them for their performance and dedications.
Employees are encouraged to enroll in external professional and
technical seminars, and other training programs and courses to
update their technical knowledge and skills, enhance their market
awareness and improve their business acumen. The Group reviews
its human resources and remuneration policies periodically with
reference to local legislation, market conditions, industry practice
and assessment of the performance of the Group and individual
employees (including Directors).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a work force of
249 (excluding Directors) in Hong Kong and in China (2022: a
work force of 263). The total salaries and related costs (including
the Directors’ fee) for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB17,980,000 (2022: RMB18,059,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers and
purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
around 14.4% and 60.9% of the total sales and purchases of the
Group respectively. The Group’s largest customer and supplier
accounted for around 3.0% and 40.6% of the total sales and
purchases of the Group for the Year respectively. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or any of their
close associates or any shareholders of the Company which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established its audit committee (the “Audit
Committee™) which comprises all the independent non-executive
Directors (namely, Dr. Cheng Vincent, Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert,
and Mr. Yang Qiang).

The Audit Committee had reviewed the accounting principles,
accounting standards and methods adopted by the Company
together with the management, discussed the matters concerning
the Group’s risk management and internal controls systems, as
well as reviewed the Group’s audited annual results for the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had
maintained the prescribed public float as required under the
Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of the Annual
Report.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, every Director, secretary and
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses or other liabilities (to the extent
allowed by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended))
which they or any of them may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duties in respect of their respective offices or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage to indemnify
the Directors and officers of the Group, and such indemnity was
in force during the year ended 31 December 2023 and remain
effective as at the date of the Annual Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
LEGAL COMPLIANCE

The Company is committed to protecting the environment where
it operates and ensuring that it complies with the environmental
protection standards applicable to the Group and its business
operation from time to time.

During the Year and to the best of our Directors’ knowledge,
the Group had obtained the required permits and environmental
approvals for its business and production facilities, and had
complied with such laws, rules and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group, its business and operations.

Please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
contained in the Annual Report for further information on the
work done and efforts made by the Company on environmental
protection, legal compliance and other aspects for the sustainable
growth and development of the business of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH BUSINESS
PARTNERS AND CUSTOMERS

We value our relationships, and have been maintaining good
relationships, with our business partners (including farmers,
suppliers and distributors), customers and the employees of the
Group. We believe that building long-term beneficial relationships
with each of them is of paramount importance to establish
mutual trust, loyalty and business development, and on which the
Company’s success and sustainability depend.

AUDITOR

PROPOSED RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, the existing auditor of the
Company, will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“AGM”) of the Company and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of
the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from on
the date of holding the annual general meeting (the “AGM”) and
three business days before holding the AGM (both days inclusive)
for the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates should be lodged for registration with
the Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the
Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited by 4:30 p.m. on the
fourth business day before the AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Wang Guangyuan

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong

28 March 2024
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The board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of the
Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) formulates
and reviews the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance to keep their effectiveness from time to time in order
to meet the rising expectations of shareholders, to comply with
the increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill
its commitment to excel in corporate governance. The Board
is committed to maintaining a good standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that
they are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’

confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The principles in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) have been followed
by the Company to shape its corporate governance structure. The
CG Code sets out two levels of corporate governance practices
namely, “code provisions” that a listed company is to comply
with or explain its decision if there is any deviation from the
code provisions, and “recommended best practices” that a listed
company is encouraged to comply with but need not explain if it
does not.

The Company had complied with the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”),
save for the following:

CODE PROVISION A.2.1

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
officer (the “CEQ”) should be segregated and should not be
performed by the same individual. However, the Company does
not have a separate chairman and CEO and Mr. Wang Guangyuan
currently performs these two roles. Mr. Wang is responsible for
the overall business strategy and development and management
of the Group. The Board considers that Mr. Wang, by serving
as the chairman of the Board and the CEO of the Company, is
able to lead the Board in major business decision making for the
Group and enables the Board’s decision to be effectively made,
which is beneficial to the management and the development of the
Group’s business. Therefore, Mr. Wang assumes the dual roles of
being the chairman of the Board and the CEO of the Company
notwithstanding the aforementioned deviation.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Group. The Directors, both individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Group and the shareholders of the Company. The Board is
responsible for formulating the Group’s overall objectives and
strategies, monitoring and evaluating its operations, financial
performance, compliance controls and reviewing the corporate
governance standard of the Group. It also decides (after
considering the recommendations from time to time from various
committees established by the Board) on matters such as annual
and interim results, major transactions, appointment or re-
appointment of Directors, and dividend and accounting policies.
The profiles of the Directors are set out in this report.

Senior management is delegated with the responsibility for the
execution of the business plans and strategies adopted by the
Board, assisting the Board in the preparation of the financial
statements for approval by the Board, the implementation of
adequate procedures as put forward by the Board and/or the
committees established by the Board regarding, among others,
internal control and risk management and reporting regularly to
and seeking approval from the Board on important matters from
time to time.

The Directors acknowledge that, notwithstanding the delegation,
it is the responsibility of the Board for preparing the financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the financial results
of the Group.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions of the Company, which are set out in the written
terms of reference. The Board had, among others, reviewed the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
their effectiveness, reviewed the Group’s compliance with the
applicable laws, rules and regulations, reviewed and monitored the
training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management of the Group and reviewed this corporate
governance report in the discharge of its corporate governance
functions and to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules.
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The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain Board #HHETE MW FSMENIRTH THEFEZE S H
committees including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration J5#HEEE & *ﬁ@h‘l%ﬁ@*ﬂ&g@ ZE® (5
Committee and the Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board [EHFZE &)

Committees”).

Our Board comprises 3 executive Directors, 2 non-executive AWM EF G H = AWAITEF WA FHATE
Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors. During FM = ZW L AT EFAM - FER > EF &
the Year, the Board had meetings regularly to discuss the overall 5 ] & 8% 17 & &k DL 5 oy A5 42 [ S 2y &1~ 8
strategy, the operational and financial performance and the FMBERBD KMCEBTR - FHEFBF RN
corporate governance of the Group. The attendance record of  FEERHA T 3 -

each of the Directors is tabulated as follows:

Number of
Annual general board meetings
meeting held on attended/held
16 June 2023 during the Year
BT E=AENA
TAHBRGMBRE EENHE BT
Name 4 EA HAERE MEFTFERAY
Number of meeting(s) R B 1 11
Executive Directors WATHE S
Mr. Wang Guangyuan Tt e 1/1 11/11
(Chairman and CEO) (EREFITEA )
Mr. Zhang Hebin gie A S A= 1/1 11/11
Ms. Wang Lijun TRE L& 1/1 11/11
Non-executive Directors IEHAT HF
Mr. Li Jerry Y. 2 F i e 0/1 10/11
Mr. Zhu Minghui KR A 0/1 10/11
Independent Non-executive Directors Br Ik WATE F
Dr. Cheng Vincent W AR L 1/1 11/11
Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert Bk ek 1/1 11/11

Mr. Yang Qiang By e 2k 0/1 10/11
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Save for the sibling relationship between Mr. Wang Guangyuan
and Ms. Wang Lijun, the Board members have no financial,
business, family or other relationships with each other. Each of
the independent non-executive Directors has provided a written
annual confirmation of his independence, and the Board is
satisfied that his independence met the independence criteria set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules up to the date of this report.

Since the listing of its shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 19 November 2009, the Company has adopted the
practice of holding board meetings regularly for at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings
will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy
as well as financial performance of the Group. Notice of board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a
regular board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given to the
Directors for ad-hoc board meetings. Directors may participate
either in person or through electronic means of communication.

The Company has adopted the practice to provide relevant
materials to all Directors relating to the matters brought before
the meetings. All the Directors will be provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, and, upon reasonable request,
the Directors will be able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. Each
of the Directors will have the opportunity and is encouraged to
include matters which he/she deems appropriate in the agenda for
Board meetings.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a specific term of three years, and is
renewable automatically thereafter for successive terms of one
year subject to termination in accordance with the provisions of
the service contract or by either party giving the other not less
than three months’ prior written notice.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a specific term of two
years, which is renewable automatically for successive terms of one
year each commencing from the date next after the expiry of the
then current term of his appointment and is subject to termination
in accordance with the provisions of the service contract or by
either party giving the other not less than one month’s prior
written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, each year, one-third
of the Directors (including executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) for the time being will retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years at the general
meeting of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance practices, the
Board established the Board Committees to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s affairs. The Board Committees are
governed by the respective written terms of reference approved by
the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee has been established by the Board with
clear written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code,
which clearly define the role, authority and function of the Audit
Committee and are available on both the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

During the Year, the members of the Audit Committee were Dr.
Cheng Vincent (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lai Chi
Keung, Albert and Mr. Yang Qiang, who were all independent
non-executive Directors. The Chairman of the Audit Committee
has the appropriate professional qualification as required under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the review
and supervision of the financial reporting process and assessing
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
controls, internal control and risk management systems. It is
also responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and removal of external auditor. The Audit
Committee had reviewed the accounting principles, accounting
standards and methods adopted by the Company together with
the management, discussed the matters concerning the Group’s
risk management and internal controls, adequacy of resources
for performing the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and
internal audit functions, provided recommendation to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of external auditor, as well
as reviewed the Group’s annual and interim results for the Year.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the findings of its review
of the engagement, effectiveness, independence and objectivity of

the external auditor engaged by the Company.

Attendance of meetings
The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Year.

The attendance record of each Audit Committee member during
the Year is set out below.

Directors R

Dr. Cheng Vincent (Chairman) Wa a4 (L)

Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert b YA
Mr. Yang Qiang ¥y Je tk

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board
with clear written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code, which clearly define the role, authority and function of the
Remuneration Committee and are available on both the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the Year, the members of the Remuneration Committee
were Dr. Cheng Vincent (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert and Mr. Yang Qiang,
who were all independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include,
but not limited to, making recommendations to the Board on
the overall remuneration policy and structure, as well as the
remuneration packages, relating to all the Directors and senior
management of our Group; reviewing their remuneration packages
with reference to corporate goals and objectives of the Company
so as to attain such levels as is sufficient to attract, retain and
incentivise them to make positive contribution to the long-
term development of the Group, and ensuring that none of the
Directors determine his/her own remuneration. During the Year,
the works performed by the Remuneration Committee mainly
comprised assessing the performance of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, reviewing the terms of the service
agreements governing the appointment of the Directors and senior
management of the Group and recommending to the Board their
remuneration packages.

Details of the remuneration paid to members of senior
management of the Group (inclusive of executive Directors) by
band for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below:
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AR L )E

Remuneration band i i N i
Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 oG A T 7

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

Further particulars of the remuneration of the Directors (both
executive and independent non-executive Directors) for the Year
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements for
the Year.

Attendance of meetings
The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year.
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The attendance record of each Remuneration Committee member
during the Year is set out below.

Directors W

Dr. Cheng Vincent (Chairman) M AR L ()

Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert LA YA
Mr. Yang Qiang 1 o8 S AR

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination Committee has been established by the Board
with clear written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code, which clearly define the role, authority and function of the
Nomination Committee and are available on both the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Year, the members of the Nomination Committee
were Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and an independent non-executive Director), Mr.
Wang Guangyuan (an executive Director) and Mr. Yang Qiang (an
independent non-executive Director).

Diversity policy

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include,
but not limited to, making recommendations to the Board
regarding candidates for directorship, either to fill vacancies on or
appoint additional Directors to the Board, the structure, size and
composition of the Board and succession planning for Directors.
In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Nomination
Committee will take into account the diversity policy of the
Company, which has been in place since August 2013 and reviewed
by the Nomination Committee from time to time. The diversity
policy includes the consideration of various elements including
gender, age, culture, qualification, ability, work experience,
leadership and professional ethics of the candidates and against
the objective criteria set out by the Board. These elements were
recognised and were taken into account of in the composition of
the existing diverse Board.
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Nomination policy and procedures

To ensure the composition of the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business, the Company has, with
the recommendation of the Nomination Committee, adopted a
formal, considered and transparent procedures for the selection,
appointment and re-appointment of Directors. The criteria to be
taken into account when considering the suitability of a candidate
will be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the
Board (based on the diversity policy adopted by the Company)
as well as the effective carrying out of the responsibilities of the
Board, in particular, the following:

(a) bringing an independent judgment and make constructive
recommendation on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards
of conducts;

(b) taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

() serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and/or other
committee(s) as may be established by the Board from time
to time, if invited;

(d) devoting sufficient time to the Board and/or any
Committee(s) on which he or she serves so as to allow
them to benefit from his or her skills, expertise, and
varied backgrounds and qualifications and diversity
through attendance and participation in the Board and/or
Committee meetings;

(e) scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the
reporting of performance;

(f) ensuring the Committees on which he or she serves to
perform their powers and functions conferred on them by
the Board; and

(2) conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitutional documents of the Company
or imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules, where
appropriate.
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If the candidate is proposed to be appointed or offers himself
or herself to be re-appointed as an independent non-executive
Director (INED), his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made
by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the
totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience
shall also be evaluated to consider whether he or she has the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise for filling the office of an INED
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Annual confirmation on independence is sought from each INED
to re-assess his/her independence.

Prior to the issue of this report, the Nomination Committee,
having reviewed the Board’s structure, size and composition,
nominated Mr. Wang Guangyuan (an executive Director), Dr.
Cheng Vincent (an independent non-executive Director) and
Mr. Lai Chi Keung (an independent non-executive Director)
to the Board for it to consider and as appropriate, recommend
to shareholders their re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. The nominations were made in
accordance with the nomination policy and the diversity policy of
the Company.

Attendance of meetings

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year
in which, among other things, the structure, size, composition
and diversity of the Board, the nomination policy, the diversity
policy and its implementation, the suitability of the Directors who
stood for re-election by the shareholders at the last annual general
meeting of the Company and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors were reviewed and its recommendations
were put forward to the Board for consideration and approval.

The attendance record of each Nomination Committee member
during the Year is set out below.

Directors W

Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert (Chairman) AR (L)
Mr. Wang Guangyuan FolurE e A

Mr. Yang Qiang 58 56 e

W0 R AL 2 N B N B 4R WS T R AT
MBS BATE S AR (b ag) Bl
AR 553,130 (KEHE 2 BT AT REAS IR AR B T B
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1/1 100%

1/1 100%
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Company encourages its Directors to acquaint themselves
with the general duties of directors as well as up-to-date
knowledge so as to discharge their duties.

During the Year, the Directors were advised to attend director
training webcast and other e-learning programs, which were
readily accessible from the website of the Stock Exchange
and other sources, and provided with materials covering legal,
regulatory, corporate governance and/or other aspects (including
but not limited to updates on the Listing Rules and guidance
letters for listed issuers issued by the Stock Exchange) for
reference/self-reading. The level of participation by each Director
is briefly set out below:

Name of Directors W EH

Mr. Wang Guangyuan FoltiE A
Mr. Zhang Hebin gR A S A
Ms. Wang Lijun ERE L
Mr. Li Jerry Y. ZEHIG SE A
Mr. Zhu Minghui RUIRUE A
Dr. Cheng Vincent 5 A
Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert R SR
Mr. Yang Qiang B 9 Se A

The Company also encouraged all Directors to participate from
time to time seminars, presentations and courses which they
considered relevant at the costs of the Company so as to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills for better fulfillment of
their duties as directors of a listed issuer.
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Training matters
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is the principal
administrative officer of the Company and is responsible for
(including) organizing meetings of the Directors and Shareholders
of the Company and ensuring that all procedures for convening
and conducting such meetings comply with the bye-laws of the
Company and the laws, rules and regulations applicable to the
Company. During the Year, the Company Secretary had conducted
15 hours of professional training to update and develop his/her
knowledge and skills.

Ms. Chan Shuk Man, Lora has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company with effect from 22 January 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has in place a dividend
policy. Under the dividend policy, the Company may distribute
dividends by way of cash or by other means that the Board
considers appropriate. Any proposed distribution of dividends is
subject to the discretion of the Board and, where applicable, the
approval of the Shareholders. The Board will consider various
factors before declaring or recommending any payment of
dividends which factors include the results of operation of the
business of the Group, the retained earnings and distributable
reserves of the Company and each of the members of the Group,
the Group’s actual and expected financial performance, the general
business conditions and strategies, the Group’s expected working
capital requirements and future expansion plans, the general
economic conditions and business cycle of the Group’s business,
the future prospects of the business of the Group, shareholders’
interests, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividend and other internal or external factors that the Board
deems appropriate.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, has
overall responsibilities for maintaining good and effective risk
management and internal controls of the Group. During the Year,
the Board conducted an annual review of the effectiveness and
adequacy of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, covering financial, operational, compliance control
and risk management functions for the year ended 31 December
2023 after the end of such financial year. The Group’s system of
internal control includes the setting up of a management structure
with limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group achieve
its business objectives, protect its assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with
relevant laws and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material mis-
statement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate all risks of
failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the achievement
of the Group’s business objectives. After reviewing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, the Board considers
that the systems are effective and adequate for the Group as a
whole. The Board further considers that (i) there was no material
issue relating to the Group’s risk management and internal
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions of the Group; and (ii) that there
were adequate staff with appropriate and adequate qualifications
and experience, resources for accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and adequate training programmes
had been provided during the Year. The control and compliance
department of the Company plays a major role in monitoring the
risk management and internal controls of the Group and reports
directly to the Audit Committee. It has full access to review all
aspects of the Group’s activities, risk management and internal
controls. All types of audited reports are circulated to the Audit
Committee and key management, which will follow up on any
actions and measures taken to improve risk management and
internal controls on the recommendations of the control and
compliance department.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for
that period. In preparing the accounts for the Year, the Directors
had selected suitable accounting policies and had applied them
consistently, adopted appropriate accounting standards which
were pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial
statements, made judgments and estimates that were prudent and
reasonable, and had prepared the accounts on a going concern
basis. The statement of the auditor of the Company, ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to the auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the auditor of the Group
were as follows:

I 57 % 7 it
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Audit service 12 B 1,370
Non-audit services IE A% B
— Agreed-upon procedure work on preliminary —-gmEE_F-_=F+_HA=+—H
results announcement for the year ended 1E4F B B 25 2R N 5 3T
31 December 2023 W ERE P TAE 20
1,390

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code for
securities transactions by Directors and relevant employees of the
Group who, because of office or employment, are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information in relation to the
Group’s securities. The Directors and such relevant employees
are required to strictly follow the Model Code when dealing in
the securities of the Company. The Directors and such relevant
employees, after specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the Year.
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CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there were no changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING (THE
“SGM”)

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s bye-
laws, the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, as amended or
supplemented from time to time (the “Companies Act”) and
applicable legislation and regulation.

1. Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition sent to the Company’s registered
office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and the Company’s principal office of business
in Hong Kong at Unit no. 2910-11, 29/F, Prosperity
Millennia Plaza, No. 663 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require a SGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of the
general meeting, signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned
and may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of those Shareholders.

3. If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to
all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the
requisition is invalid, the Shareholders concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not
be convened as requested.
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4. The notice period to be given to all the registered 4. W5 A BRI R TE B R R I R & AR

Shareholders for consideration of the proposal raised by B B 22 T ) A B RS RE R AR LAY 2 0

the Shareholder(s) concerned at a SGM varies according to PR AR T £ 8 09 1 B I A5 S A R > 5F 1

the nature of the proposal, as follows: N

. at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less . i 5% VL £ 58 A AR 2 ] 9 R Il
than ten (10) clear business days’ notice in writing if MECBEHREL T —QQDHEER
the proposal constitutes a special resolution of the B0  (10) 1l B & 26 H Y 2
Company, which cannot be amended other than to T8 78 0 HLBR T 5 OF B 2 i i S
a mere clerical amendment to correct a patent error; BFTINAAFAEAR AT B s K
and

. at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten (10) . 18 5% JE $ 58 A A N )Y A A
clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal O BEHREDT WA MER K
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company. AP A (10) 10 8 2 2 H R T

A

PUT FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL B KK € i B kR

MEETINGS
1. Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act allow certain 1. I3 AV B T9 B 80 HE FF A T IR R FE oK AR
Shareholder(s) to requisition the Company to move a O YRSy ) T CROB AR R g ([ BRE 4R
resolution at an annual general meeting (the “AGM”) Kal) bsak— kR % sSOR”ME il A
of the Company or circulate a statement at any general 4 T M SRR e B — T R A S o AR
meeting of the Company. Under section 79 of the BT AETE R AE AT &R (BRIEA L
Companies Act, at the expense of the requisitionists unless A AAWRE) MIER N AAFAES R
the Company otherwise resolves, it shall be the duty of the JRER Y < T A SR B AT T A AT -
Company on the requisition in writing by such number of
Shareholders:—
(a)  to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice (a) 1A REMCECR JE R ROA AR K g E
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which i B R SRS A A 3 A AT o A]
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved EFEsZ K& b F Bk R e 8 ik
at that meeting; R R4
(b)  to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have (b) [ A HE Wi BUAT AT B AR OK &
notice of any general meeting sent to them any Ji R B — f EOR 2 ik — T
statement of not more than one thousand words MIBRZE > WA A BRTEZ R g BT
with respect to the matter referred to in any ] 6 it 2 PR R 28 TN T AR A
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with oA o B 1 T

at that meeting.
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The number of Shareholders necessary to make the above-
mentioned requisitions to the Company shall be:—

(1) either any number of Shareholders representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all the Shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requisition relates; or

(ii) not less than one hundred Shareholders.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and
any such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders
entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by
serving a copy of the resolution or statement on each such
Shareholder in any manner permitted for service of notice
of the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall
be given to any other Shareholder by giving notice of the
general effect of the resolution in any manner permitted
for giving him notice of meeting of the Company, provided
that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of the
resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same
manner and, so far as practicable, at the same time as
notice of the meeting and, where it is not practicable for it
to be served or given at that time, it shall be served or given
as soon as practicable thereafter.

Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions
to be met before the Company is bound to give any notice
of resolution or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to
section 80 of the Companies Act, the Company shall not
be bound to give notice of any resolution or to circulate
any statement as mentioned in paragraph 3 above unless:—

(a) a copy of the requisition signed by the
requisitionists, or two or more copies which
between them contain the signatures of all the
requisitionists, is deposited at the registered office
of the Company:—

) in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution, not less than six weeks before
the meeting; and

(i1) in the case of any other requisition, not less
than one week before the meeting; and
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(b) there is deposited or tendered with the requisition
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expense in giving effect to the procedures in
paragraph 1 above (i.e. the giving of notice of
resolution and/or circulation of statement).

Provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring
notice of a resolution has been deposited at the registered
office of the Company, an AGM is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy
though not deposited within the abovementioned time shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.

PROPOSED A CANDIDATE FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR AT AN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The Company has an established procedures for shareholders
of the Company to propose a person for election as a Director
and the procedures are published at the Company’s website at
http://www.tontine-wines.com.hk.

The Company welcomes enquiries from its shareholders. The
Board or designated senior management of the Company will
review shareholders’ enquiries on a regular basis. Specific
enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can be sent in writing to
the Board or the Company Secretary by e-mail (ttwinery@tontine-
wines.com) or at the address of the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATIONS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency
in communication with shareholders and investors in general.
The various channels via which the Company communicates with
its shareholders include interim and annual reports, circulars,
notices, financial reports, information posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company, and general meetings.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s general
meetings where the Chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each of the Board Committees (as appropriate) are invited to
attend to answer questions. Notice of the annual general meeting
of the Company and related papers are sent to shareholders of
the Company at least 21 clear business days before the meeting
and such notice is also made available on the Stock Exchange’s
website. Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
on each substantially separate issue. Poll results of the meeting
will be posted on the website of the Stock Exchange on the day of
the meeting. The financial and other information relating to the
Group is disclosed on the Company’s website, http://www.tontine-
wines.com.hk.

In order to facilitate the communication with shareholders of
the Company, the Group has maintained the Company’s website
as a channel to provide the latest information and to strengthen
communication with its shareholder and the investing public. The
Group’s corporate correspondence and information will also be
published on the website in a timely manner.

The above communication policy is reviewed by the Board from
time to time to ensure its effectiveness.
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ABOUT THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

This is the Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") Report
(the “ESG Report” or “Report”) issued by China Tontine Wines
Group Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “We”), which
details the sustainability policy implemented by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”) and the Group’s
performance in social governance and corporate citizenship under
the practice of the concept of sustainable development.

REPORTING SCOPE

This Report covers the overall performance in environmental
and social aspects of the Group’s core business in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”), including the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. Such scope is determined
by reference to the significance of the business segments directly
under the Group’s operational control and their materiality to the
ESG impact.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “Reporting
Guide”) contained in Appendix C2 to the Main Board Listing
Rules issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Report has been prepared applying the
four reporting principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency, and is in compliance with the “comply or explain”
provisions and recommended disclosures in the Reporting Guide.

The ESG issues identified, the identification and
engagement of stakeholders, and the criteria,

“Materiality”:

process and results of materiality assessment
have been disclosed in this Report as the basis
for the preparation of this Report and addressed
in this Report.
“Quantitative”: The statistical standards, methods, assumptions
and/or calculation tools used for reporting
emissions/energy consumption, as well as
the sources of conversion factors, have been
disclosed in the definitions and/or explanatory
notes in this Report.
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“Balance”: This Report provides an unbiased picture of the
Group’s performance during the Year and avoids
selections, omissions, or presentation formats
that may inappropriately influence a decision or
judgement by the reader.

“Consistency”: The Report follows a consistent approach to
disclosure and there is no change in the way
this Report has been prepared from last year.
The Group’s statistical methodology remains
the same as last year, and any changes are
clearly explained in this Report to ensure the
comparability of data.

In the preparation of this Report, the Group has adopted the
international standards and emission factors specified in the ESG
guidance issued by the Stock Exchange for calculation of key
performance indicators (“KPIs”)".

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group has been working with our stakeholders to understand
and focus on their needs through various channels, and to help
us better understand our current level of development at the ESG
aspects through feedback. This Report has been prepared with
the participation of colleagues from various departments of the
Group. The information we gathered not only summarizes the
Group’s ESG-related efforts during the Year, but also provides
us with a basis for formulating short-term and long term
sustainability strategies.

INFORMATION AND FEEDBACK

For detailed information regarding the financial performance and
corporate governance of the Group during the Year, please refer
to the official website (http://www.tontine-wines.com.hk) and the
annual report of the Group.

Your opinions will be highly valued by us. If you
have any suggestions or feedback, please email us at
ttwinery@tontine-wines.com or write to us at the principal
business place of the Group in Hong Kong.

APPROVAL OF THE BOARD
This Report was approved by the board of directors (the “Board”)

of the Company on 28 March 2024.
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Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs at https://www.hkex.com.hk/-/media/HKEX-Market/Listing/Rules-and-

Guidance/Environmental-Social-and-Governance/Exchanges-guidance-materials-on-ESG/app2_envirokpis; Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs at https:/
www.hkex.com.hk/-/media/hkex-market/listing/rules-and-guidance/environmental-social-and-governance/exchanges-guidance-materials-on-esg/app3_socialkpis

Qo7 405 5 B BT A B IR T — BR Bk T BRE B B AT A B BE R JE 51> hitps://www.hkex.com.hk/-/media/hkex-market/listing/rules-andguidance/environmental-
social-and-governance/exchanges-guidance-materials-on-esg/app2_envirokpis_c 5 Fff $ = : 1 & [ 5 45 %8 £ FE 245 51 > https://www.hkex.com.hk/-/media/hkex-market/
listing/rules-and-guidance/environmental-social-and-governance/exchanges-guidancematerials-on-esg/app3_socialkpis_c
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ESG MANAGEMENT
STATEMENT OF THE BOARD

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been adhering
to the concept of sustainable development and actively
fulfilling its corporate social responsibility by incorporating
environmental protection and environmental management into its
business decisions. In addition, the Group has been focusing on
maintaining closer ties with different stakeholders, listening to the
voices of all parties, caring for and growing with its employees,
and taking on more social responsibilities.

The Group has established a governance structure to enhance
its ESG-related efforts. The Board has overall responsibility
for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting, and has overall
oversight of ESG-related risks and opportunities. The Board
conducts a corporate risk assessment at least once a year to
identify, assess and monitor ESG-related risks in the ordinary
course of business. The Board is also responsible for formulating
the Group’s ESG-related management policies, strategies and
objectives, regularly reviewing the objectives set by the Group and
its performance regarding such objectives, mitigating ESG-related
risks through the progress in achieving these objectives, and
revising its strategies as appropriate. To implement the concept
of sustainable development and effectively manage ESG issues,
the Group has established an ESG working group to assist the
Board in overseeing and promoting the implementation of various
ESG strategies. The ESG working group is also responsible for
assisting the Board in identifying and prioritising key issues in
terms of their materiality, reporting to the Board regularly on
the effectiveness of the ESG system and the performance of the
Group in relation to environment and social KPIs, and preparing
an annual ESG report.

Going forward, the Board will continue to oversee and refine the
Group’s sustainability initiatives and performance, with a view to
creating long-term value for all stakeholders and the communities
in which we operate.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

‘i

The Board is responsible for overseeing and managing ESG related issues,
Board including formulating relevant policies and strategies.
(¢
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ESG The working group is responsible for assisting the Board in

Working Group
ESGI e/

implementing various daily management works for ESG issues.

THENEEEHESENTEIRESCEENAEEETF -

Each functional department is responsible for implementing various
Functional measures formulated by the Group in connection with ESG issues.

Departments
BB BE BB P EBALErIAE

STAKEHOLDER IDENTIFICATION AND
COMMUNICATION

The Group is constantly aware of key issues of concern to
its stakeholders in the course of its operations. Through
comprehensive and transparent communication, the Group
understands the expectations and needs of its stakeholders
and continues to improve the Group's sustainable development
strategies and plans based on the views of its stakeholders, so
as to consolidate mutual trust and cooperative relationships
to jointly realise its sustainable development plans, and create
a future with the coexistence of sustainable economic growth,
friendly environment and social development.
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INFORMATION ON STAKEHOLDERS

Stakeholders
e RS
Stock Exchange

It 52 e

Governments

B

Suppliers
ke 75

Investors

BEH

Media

[o8]

Customers

B

Employees

(=

Community

L 1

Possible issues involved
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Compliance with the Listing Rules, publishing
of announcements in a timely and accurate
manner

Ay BRI B R AR 4 ff

Compliance with laws and regulations, social
welfare and prevention of tax evasion
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Payment schedule, supply stability
AR 3K I [H) 2% ~ RS S

Corporate governance system, business
strategies and performance, investment return
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Corporate governance, environmental
protection and human rights

38 i ~ BRUT IR o A A

Quality of products/services, reasonable
prices, value of services, labour protection
and work safety

FE i, IRBS VR A PR  IRBS - 45 T
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Rights and benefits, employee salaries,
training and development, working hours and
working environment

2 S AR~ IR BT - B B R R - AR
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Community environment, employment and
community development and social welfare

A [ B35 ~ R AR A0 A [ 5 2 A AL € A A
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Communication and response

i 7 B [e]

Meetings, trainings, seminars,
programmes, updating of website and
announcements

B ak o WAl OF T B Al
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Interactions and visits, government
inspections, tax returns and other
information
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On-site research

B A

Organization and participation of
conferences, interviews, general
meetings, provision of financial reports
or business updates for investors, press
and analysts
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 ECE
Posting of communications on the
Group’s website
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Site visits and after-sale services

B35 7% 5 A 18 M B

Conducting team activities, training,
interviews, issue of staff manual and
internal memorandum
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Launching community events,
employee volunteer activities and
community welfare sponsorships and
donations
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In order to ensure that the key issues of concern to stakeholders
are fully covered and addressed this Report, in addition to regular
communication with stakeholders, the Group has drawn on a
number of resources such as the issues covered in the previous
year’s ESG report, its internal policies, industry trends and the
Materiality Map introduced by the Sustainability Accounting
Standards Board(“SASB”), to identify issues that have potential
and actual impact on the Group’s sustainable development.

Based on the analysis, the Group considers that there have been
no significant changes to the issues of materiality to stakeholder
and that the prioritization of ESG issues remains consistent with
the previous year, the results of which are as follows

o 28 Pk P A
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3% & g 5 M Il 2% B & (Sustainability Accounting
Standards Board) [ 5 % 1 [ 55245 25 T & I > L)
ok I A A T R A TR B T AR R G
S H o

RE X M7 &5 3 A 42 B R 2 A i AR B B0 B S
el XA K 8 AL - ESG 5 JH #9 48 Je JIE )y B A
AR B SR

Identified ESG Issues

EMBINWESGEER

® Air and greenhouse gas emissions
¢ Energy consumption

¢ Climate change

* ER M BAEREHH

THE GROUP AND THE ENVIRONMENT

The grapes for the Group's production come from Ji'an, one of
the major grape-producing regions in China, which is not only
a demonstration zone for standardised green agriculture and a
standardised production base for green food materials in China,
but also one of the few regions worldwide cultivating the vitis
amurensis variety of grapes. Over the years of development
and enhancement, the production model of the Group has been
gradually improved with our plants equipped with the whole set of
professional production lines of cleaning, destemming, crushing
and pressing. The Group’s industrial park has been listed as a
National 4A-level Scenic Area.

SASB’s Materiality Map, https://materiality.sasb.org/
LR A R g e ) 2 5 ) S PR 5 - https://materiality.sasb.org/

® Employees’ health and safety

® Employees’ development and training
® Supply chain management

® Product responsibility
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND LEGAL
COMPLIANCE

The Group has been in compliance with local laws and regulations
related to environmental protection in the PRC, including but
not limited to the Law of the People's Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Law of the
People's Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the People's Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Waste, the Law of the People's Republic of China on
the Promotion of Clean Production, and the Environmental
Protection Law of the People's Republic of China.

The Group strictly complies with a series of national and local
regulations in respect of environment protection in all business
activities and production processes. During the Year, the Group
obtained all the necessary local and national-level licenses, as well
as a series of approval and authorization on discharge, including
but not limited to national industrial product production permit,
waste discharge permit, water intake permit, hygienic license, and
a range of legal obligations and requirements related to corporate
business and normal operation. Notwithstanding the above, the
Group has formulated and required its staff to comply with the
energy conservation policy and green measures so as to enhance
their awareness of green practices.

During the Year, the Group complied with all the regulations
related to environment protection and was not involved in any
confirmed incidents of non-compliance relating to environment
protection that had significant impact on the Group.

POLLUTANT DISCHARGE

Air Emissions

The Group’s air emissions are mainly from flue gas produced
during the operation of boilers and the use of company vehicles.
The main pollutants of the flue gas are nitrogen oxides (NO),
sulphur oxides (SO,) and particulate matters (PM). After being
filtered by equipment for desulfurization, denitrification and dust
removal, the flue gas will be emitted through a high chimney, to
ensure that the exhaust gas can meet emission standards. As the
plants of the Group are located in the northeast and northern
regions of China, there is a need for heating in winter. In order
to minimize the emission of gases directly generated from the
combustion of fuels, the Group operates its boilers in different
ways according to the seasons, i.e. the gas supply equipment is
operated independently in summer, and the heating system is
operated in conjunction with the gas supply in winter. The dust
and slag ash from chimney and dust removal equipment will
be processed according to the waste recycling process disclosed
in section headed “Waste Recycling and Giving Away” below.
During the Year, Group’s air emissions generated from the
operation of its boilers registered a reduction, mainly due to a
decline in production; whereas air emissions from use of motor
vehicles increased significantly, mainly due to the increase in the
use of motor vehicles as a result of the easing of the COVID-19
pandemic restrictions and the increase in the Group’s demand
for business travel. The Group is committed to the reduction of
emissions and aims to achieve the goal of maintaining or reducing
the emission of air pollutants in the next reporting year, with the
year of 2023 as the base year.
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EMISSION DATA 8% S, T T 0%
Emission data of boilers Unit 2023 2022
S0 HE e B bR b7 A —EC= - SR
Nitrogen oxides (NOy) tonnes 11.23 17.00
REILY (NO,) N
Sulphur oxides (SOy) tonnes 11.88 17.00
i S8 AL 77 (SOy) N
Particulate matters (PM) tonnes 6.91 10.00
FERLY) (PM) L
Emission data of vehicles® 18) 113 2023 2022
TRCHE PR B RS ¥ pr —EBE= e S
Nitrogen oxides (NOy) kg 46.47 11.93
AEAL Y (NOy) T3
Sulphur oxides (SO,) kg 0.30 0.20
fim AL ¥ (SOy) T
Particulate matters (PM) kg 4.32 1.01
FERLY) (PM) T3

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions ik 5 5 4 B i

The Group's direct GHG emissions are mainly from the  ZN4E [Bl 2 B #2 % FUH PE i E 2ok 3 4 2E Bl
combustion of coal during the production process and the use  F& H0 /5 7R 38 A0 A% 42 |30 03 85 50 0 S AH B 2R ) 19
of the Group's commercial vehicles and relevant fuels (including i J » G148 4% il B Vil » T i 2 B B 3= 222k A
diesel and gasoline), while indirect emissions are mainly from the  ZMi§7E J1 i fH i »

use of purchased electricity.

The coal is mainly burnt by the boiler in the production base in 4 fif i #4488 & 2 7 48 Ak T A= 728 5= b 79 6 0 -
Tonghua City. The boiler is used in winter to maintain the indoor SRR 7 F 7 B 5t 26 728 BR A0 b 9 o0 84 F0 25 68 41 »
temperature required for the grape treatment and brewing, in UL & 7F 4 2= F A (R 35 &5 R > DLE 3] 3 4 R
addition to the heating and distillation in the production. The 3% 7 [ i (14 il 3 B2 5K o A 4 [ B0 W55 1 ) 0% 428 {H
Group currently uses coal with a higher combustion value to & 9 55 DA 2> — AL B 19 HE & A (B i
reduce the emission of carbon dioxide (“CO,”). The production Vi 4= /& & b HI 2% i J2 & 77 BT BE A BR £~ J5 I A9
base in Baiyanghe replaces coal with electricity for heating in 3K » 4 i 78 A8 4 B AR B A SR B o

response to the environment protection requirements of the Yantai

Municipal Government.

The Group's energy conservation policies and green measures, A5 4 [ 5 25 i & 66 VR B B &k 45 56 > DL ) A=
coupled with the decline in production, reduced the Group’s total — 7£ & F [ > & A% 42 [B 76 A 4F B (A 19 8 — AL ik
CO, emissions to 2,242.06 tonnes* of carbon dioxide equivalent Bl & i 2 2,242, 06M* — A AL ik & & (=&
(“tCOe™) during the Year (2022: 3,870.00 tCO,e) with total = —4F:3,870.00Mi — %k fix & &) » M 42 — %1t
tCO,¢ emission intensity down by 53.85%, achieving the target HR PR N F53.85% 0 = B b AR E R E
set in the previous year. The Group is committed to reducing Y H 1% o 7% 4 [ 25 Jy g AN 5 5B HR - 1 35 1
GHG emissions through energy conservation policies and green & ABUREL R KAk At BAE U —_F = =
measures, and aims to achieve the goal of maintaining or reducing A% 4F & 73 HL & > 7 T IR 5 A B T A R D
the total CO, emission intensity in the next reporting year, with %0 fb il 48 PE AC % B 19 H AR -

the year of 2023 as the base year.

The calculation of the emission data is based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange.

JBE SR P R R T 2 R S T A Y ] A B o R IR O — B R T BT I S AR AR R AR 51D -

From 2023 onwards, these figures are rounded to two decimal places to allow for more meaningful comparisons.

R AR A R A BN B A N L DA S AT R SR L
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GHG EMISSION DATA>

GHG emission data

5 ST T R

GHG emission data Unit 2023 2022
B S RS P B R B A - < - Sy

T 25 o Pk SR
Scope 1° Coal tCOse 1,705.99 3,314.00
i [ 16 IR W — 4 A ik =
Diesel’ tCOse 7.79 6.47
Se W — 48 A ik =
Gasoline’ tCOse 45.40 29.53
bRkl WE — 48 A ik =
Scope 28 Purchased electricity tCO,e 479.82 519.00
o [528 SRR ) M — Al ik
Employees' business trips
Scope 3° by air tCOse 3.06 1.00
o [ 3° 1§ B oAk ek b b A we M AL IRE R
Total Total CO, emissions tCO,e 2,242.06 3,870.00
HF Ak e = W 4L Bk =
Total CO, Emission (tCOye/revenue in
Intensity thousands of RMB)!? 0.012 0.027
MosAbmE B E (M A RE RS
BT oo N R B licas ) o

WASTE RECYCLING AND GIVING AWAY

The grape processing and winemaking process only produces a
small amount of non-hazardous waste, which mainly includes
grape stems after de-stemming and crushing, grape skins and seeds
after pressing, and solid residue generated during tank transfer
and ageing. In order to minimize the environmental issues caused
by the wastes, the Group forwards the stems and solid residue to
the nearby farmers for use as fuel. Other small amounts of non-
hazardous wastes are collected by the municipal waste treatment
facilities for centralised treatment.

10

3% B 4 Il W A I B el
MEEMMAE N REAEAGEENEEE
JIE W) - 3 B R R AR 7 A A A A A - R
VE 4% 1 1R B0 ) A R A A ORF o LA R E % (R I
R O AR I I B A o Ry BBl B SR W) T A A Y
B 55 ) L > A A ] i e ) R 0 DR T A B
ATt B> PR AR ORGSR
Yy B 738 208 T B A B AR A AT S — i B

GHG emissions data is presented on a tCO,e basis with reference to, including but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard” and “Greenhouse Gas Accounting System: A Carbon Reporting Tool for Small and Medium-sized Enterprises in China” issued by the
World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, the Global Warming Potentials in the “Sixth Assessment Report” issued by the Intergovernmental Panel on
Climate Change, and the “Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Enterprises — Power Generation Facilities” issued by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the PRC.

i 2 SR P ORI e — SR i SR B 5 S 2 R B AS R R TR T Rt A T R A L L B A Y UL SR A R R Rl B B )

Fo GRLZESBAZFM R - op B /N3 (SME) B i TR )~ B2 ir 8% 19 Cln 4o 3 B 05~ Ak @ % A8 0 ik B — B B8k — - B0 ) 0 628098 B RE AR 51 )~ RO [ S
AL Z B @ B 1 BN URPAG ) 10 2 Bk T VR A (B > % v [0 A B BRSE R A 1) (i SR 2 S B D R B Oy TR B A R — B I o

Scope 1: GHG emissions refer to the direct emissions from fuel combustion in stationary sources. The figures presented include only coal consumption and are
expressed in tCO,e.

i [+ 3 2 SRR R R B IR o MR A A ) L P T 2 5 A A R A R S DA T AR R R o

From the Year onwards, data related to vehicle use will be separated by diesel and gasoline to allow for more meaningful comparisons.

Py A J3E B 0 o RO LD SR 2 2 S B Y Y R A B DU S R L e

Scope 2: GHG emissions refer to indirect energy emissions. The figures presented include only the electricity purchased from power companies and are expressed in
tCO.e.

08 [ - 30 2 S B R A B R TR 452 PG > T 2 5 W A 4 1) B ) A WA B g A AL RO

Scope 3: GHG emissions refer to other indirect energy emissions, and are calculated using the carbon emissions calculator of the International Civil Aviation
Organization.

A 3 < T 2 SR D A R TR A [ B> SR Ok R I R A 4 ALK Y B R R S

The Group’s revenue in thousands of RMB for the Year was RMB189,139 (2022: RMB146,118). This data is also used in calculation of other intensity data so as to
comply with the principle of consistency, being one of the reporting principles set out in the Reporting Guide.

7% A B 42 [ 1 5 T 70 N RN AR 45 189,13970 (=% = 2 4F : 146, 1187C) = M BORHIS & 1 AF it 34Kl o8 1 0B 5 75 A4 4 W96 5 Tl o 4 51 2 — Bk B i B
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In accordance with national regulations, the Group delivers a
small amount of hazardous waste to the designated garbage
recycler for subsequent treatment to ensure that no secondary
contamination occurs. The Group collects wastes and delivers
them to the enterprises with secondary recycling capability
for treatment, for example, the slag is disposed by brickworks,
electronic waste and ink cartridges are disposed by computer
companies. Due to high utilisation of the aforesaid wastes in PRC,
the Group gives the wastes to enterprises in need of them for free,
so as to minimise the emission of wastes.

Since the Group's operations do not generate significant amounts
of non-hazardous waste or hazardous waste, and the limited
non-hazardous waste and hazardous waste generated have been
recycled or given away, the Group does not have total emission
data regarding non-hazardous waste and hazardous waste and has
not set relevant emission reduction targets.

USE OF RESOURCES

In line with the Group's internal energy conservation measures,
currently energy saving lights are used group-wide. The Group
strictly requires that all landscape lighting must be turned off at
10 p.m. every night except on holidays. The control system of the
landscape lighting is located in the main office building of the
production base in Tonghua City, which is switched off by the
guard on duty. Except for essential facilities, duty officers will
turn off the power supply of the office building, while employees
need to turn off the power supply of office equipment when
leaving work, so as to save electricity. As a result of the above
measures, the Group has maintained a relatively low level of
electricity consumption and ensured no significant impact on
the environment and society. During the Year, the Group’s total
electricity consumption amounted to 841,352.00 kWh* (2022:
910,179.00 kWh). The Group’s major sources of energy include
coal, diesel, gasoline and purchased electricity. During the Year,
the Group’s total energy consumption was 7,037,842.58 kWh*
(2022: 9,653,849.00 kWh), with total energy consumption intensity
of 37.21 kWh/revenue in thousands of RMB' (2022: 66.07 kWh/
revenue in thousands of RMB). During the Year, the Group’s
total energy consumption decreased by 27.10% and total energy
consumption intensity decreased by 43.68% > meeting the targets
attributable to the effective
energy conservation policies and green measures as well as the

set in the previous year. This was

decrease in the Group’s production during the Year. The Group
continues to aim to achieve the goal of maintaining or reducing
its total energy intensity in the next reporting year, with the year
of 2023 as the base year.

e BB 2R ) B > A B B AR D B E B
TEW) AZ A 5 1 S5 3% (] Wi A AT A% A R B il
PRAS EE AR U5 e o AR 42 1] B 2L A = 0k [m] i A1)
FARE ) B A3 B AF > o W SR AR 09 BE SE W > 0 i
K A8 B T8 3> R RO R R SR
I 2 ) B B o pR A B PR S b Al B 3 A AR
o PR A B Tt bl B SR S B T
A3 > F R BRJEE Y 3 A1 B 2 ) B i B o

P AR SR T A 655 310 R AT A LY A B
W) R A E RS WOR > I N B B ) R
A E BE ) O )R B R - DR e A 4
RAT RO THIE T BE Y KA R Y PR
A5 T 5 5 A Bl 9 D AR

R

By A5 A A 5 1) O I B RE A e A 4R 18 B R
T REEE - Bx TR H 4> A% 5 & ENITH
e IRF 1E B P — &R 21 5% 80 0 R A o B ER
P 2 11 2R 0 A6 A A S (9 3 AL T 2R A R L S B
ot R M AR s TEAHE
Mrabh Bt (H¥E N B S B PR A B E
T8 1T S5 H IR 7 B PR HE A B M5 1 R o i
PRHLT bl 15  > A S T 3007 PR R A B IEIK Y
FETE B K> BB WK BR B Rk a
KB o A N AE R B FEE )
£4841,352.00 T FLIF4 (& — 4 :910,179.00
TRLIRF) o A 4R [ 3 A & RIS A
S~ VRO B A I ER T o AS AR N A AR [ Y R
T ARE R 557,037,842 58 T UM (&
9,653,849.00T KL ) » RE VR 44 48 & % & /537.21
TR/ BT oo AR (F 7 7166.07
TR BT ARk s ) « ARG FENA
BEVRARFE B T I27.10% > MAE R BB HEIE T
K443.68% » 7 5| _FAF B T sl 2 1Y B AR IR A
A0 i B RE IR O RN AR O 5 G > DL S A 4 R
AKEBENMEER FETR -ALBNBEAEE
Bl DL U AR e B AR T R R AR R A A
PR D RER AR A H AR
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In terms of water consumption, the Group has not encountered
any difficulties in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. The Group
uses underground water and therefore does not have aggregate
data on water consumption. Wastewater generated is mainly
from domestic wastewater and production wastewater, including
water used for canteen, equipment cleaning, glass bottles washing
and cleaning. With an aim to conserve water, the Group uses
glass bottles that meet with high sanitary standards. Wastewater
is collected and then purified through a wastewater treatment
system, and the treated wastewater should meet the requirements
of the relevant standards set by the municipal government of
Tonghua. Such treated wastewater is not drinkable, and is used for
garden irrigation to save water.

In response to environmental protection, the Group has used
recyclable materials for packaging, such as recycled and used
paper boxes, reducing the use of new paper boxes. The wine corks
used by the Group are made of natural oak wood. Oak wood is
soft and has two layers of bark. The inner layer of bark has the
ability to regenerate and is the basis for the growth of new bark
every year. The cork used by the Group is made from the withered
outer layer of the bark which is removed from oak trees without
hurting the inner layer so as not to affect the continuous growth
of the trees.

The Group's efforts to reduce emissions through energy saving
policies and green measures, have resulted in a reduction in
packaging materials used for the Group's finished products during
the Year to 1,469.77 tonnes* (2022: 5,019.00 tonnes), with an
intensity of 0.008 tonnes/revenue in thousands of RMB (2022 :
0.034 tonnes/revenue in thousands of RMB)!''. During the Year,
the intensity of packaging materials consumption decreased by
approximately 76.47%, which was mainly due to the decrease in
production. The Group continue to aim to achieve the goal of
maintaining or reducing the intensity of its packaging materials
consumption in the next reporting year with the year 2023 as the
base year.

In addition, following the principle of sustainable development,
the Group leaves its vineyards fallow for over four months in the
cold winter each year to maintain soil fertility, so as to continually
provide abundant nutrients for the grapes.

15 7K J7 T > 7 4R TSI S = R A 8 K IR O T
78 78 AT {7 R] 3 o AR AR RO 0 UK TR AR £
KA T FEK BRI T E LB K EZERA
FEIE 15 K MR EE 5K > ELAE B A ~ SO T se B K
6 Tl B T R R 3 SR R K S o 5 T A K - AR
1 R A°F 5 e S A A R Y 0 B L o A 4R
G KR AR > K3 K e B R BUEAT TR AL
H 7K 72 B 48 b 5 Hh T R R AR B AR YE ZEOR o
IRASTT R > JBE /K KRG B PRLAR > (o] 1A A ) 3
2 B B K 3 A4 o

T EREBRO AL R M T A E Wk RHE
4 0 [E] WO B AR D B R AR - A
P ¥ 9 062 1R R IR AR R R o AR SRR oy T
Aot Rz A0 A8 o TR G S B A P A RE ) 5 R AR R A
B2 A R 1Y) L B o A SR ] ) B AROK 2 7E BR A AR
A AR P A BURG 22 0 5 R > DL R B K
FEER-

A 4 B B AR B k> 3 A AR TR BUR KAk
T it > A A AR SR B R T Y B S B R B
D E1,469.7TAMEN( ZF 41 5,019.004M) >
H % £50.008AME, B T ou A R i (ZF
TIAE D 0.034AME BT On NRE ISR 1o AR
A A B SE R RLTE FE S WD £76.47% > T E
JRHZEEERE FE-AEBMPNEEERU %
AR B B ME S AE N W R AR R TR A R B D
1 SE T BT FE 2 B H A -

T3 8 > A 4L T A 4 M A T OT O b I ) T Ve
A2 DU AT AR TR H B R B o R B
i B A 7E i fR 2 S AL IR > 0 #  OR 4R T R 1Y
B > LLRLE w45 A R R R

1 Starting from 2023, the Group started to disclose the intensity of packaging materials used for finished products for more meaningful comparisons.

F120235H - A% 45 [ A 0 9 % S0l it T D 60 6 A 61 11 285 > DA S AT RE S 2 B b -
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TOTAL ENERGY CONSUMPTION12 i U5 4 FE 112

fie U5 fl 8 b WA - -
Coal kWh 6,000,000.00 8,612,579.00
A5 T B IR

Diesel kWh 31,624.10 11,300.00
Sedh T LI

Gasoline kWh 164,866.48 119,791.00
il TR

Electricity kWh 841,352.00 910,179.00
B T L Iy

Total energy consumption kWh 7,037,842.58 9,653,849.00
RE VR A FE &= T BL I

Total energy consumption intensity kWh/revenue in thousands of RMB!

RE T A FE B2 TRk 5T x ARl 37.21 66.07

DATA OF PACKAGING MATERIALS USED FOR SR PO D 3 R
FINISHED PRODUCTS

Type of packaging materials Unit 20234 2022
1,55 b4 ) B WG o | o

Cartons tonnes 190.65 651.00
A4 NL
Bottles tonnes 1,270.94 4,349.00
b N
Corks tonnes 8.18 19.00
A% N
Total tonnes 1,469.77 5,019.00
st N
Intensity of packaging materials used tonnes/revenue in thousands of RMB!! 0.008 0.034
2% B e 2 L YN VESS SN &

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL BB KR ARE W

RESOURCES

The Group does not have a significant impact on the environment 442 B (19 B & 2% %8 o 0 485 3 BR 55 ok KSR & PR
or natural resources in its day-to-day operations. In the course & H K 5 % o A< 48 [ 5 H 35BS o A2 vp — B BR 5T
of its business, the Group has always adhered to the principle of {7 3 5% & K #& & W 1 7 HIl > 25 5F ESG B3k B
protecting the environment and natural resources, complied with 2% » £ JH AH I ) £ & B8 VR BRI fk €0 15 it > 3
ESG policies and procedures, adopted corresponding energy-  Z(Jj ik %0 3 B 35 45 A 3 K% 22 ot 4 6 A R K
saving policies and green measures, and endeavored to avoid any & e

significant impact on the environment or excessive consumption

of natural resources.

12 The unit conversion method for energy consumption data is based on the “Energy Statistics Manual” issued by the International Energy Agency.

T 90 11 6 S 9 L6 80 B Ty 2k U AR R R O T B A 2 CRBURCBUBR T BT RET -
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CLIMATE CHANGE

In response to the international community’s concerns over
climate change, the Group has included climate change-related
risks as one of the ESG issues and made relevant disclosures
in accordance with the recommendations of the Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures.

The Group’s analysis of the potential financial risks arising from

H kAL

SECMEE s AL AR B R B A9 A BESG sk L 2 — > i AR
5 5510 AR B B4 S 18 %% LA /N 4 (Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures) [ i i

7 B 5 -

7% £ [ 35 SR Aok 2 A A 2 Y Y 7E B 5 DL g o T %

climate change and the strategies to address them set out follows: JRE S SR s 4
Potential financial impact Short term | Medium term | Long term Response strategy
i EIER e (this reporting (1 to 3 years) (4 to 10 years) ]
Risk period)
category Miow [MMedium [HHi psb 8 =2
3 gh
B Rl & o & (EEE) | (—Ez=®) | (mE+E)

Acute

The loss of assets (including crops)
or disruptions to supply chain due
to extreme weather conditions such
as intensive flooding

by
i KRB K SN gl B
HEE  BREEREVNELR
Physical RIS R

risks

geem | Chronic

The increase in electricity
consumption due to weather changes
such as persistent hot or cold
weather, and its subsequent impact
on operating costs

g :3
RRE( > LB FEERRS
RERREFEERIEM - 4

Policies and regulations

More stringent climate policies and
regulations (such as more stringent
electricity restrictions) may increase
compliance and operating costs

BrsRELER
BREARNRIRBCREDER (0
BEREAIRES) REMER
Transitional | pf 7 [ &8 p AN

risks

BERR

Market

Consumers switching to products
that more actively incorporate
environmental concepts, resulting
in lower income

Libd
HEEE QB EEEARRE
SWEMR  BBWATRE

Developing safety code and contingency
plans to deal with extreme weather
conditions . If the current supply chain is
affected, the Group will temporarily use
other suppliers

FIEZ2FAREST R UELHER
IRRRIEN  AEAHEES R
 REESE R AR E AR

Adopting energy saving policies and
green measures to avoid excessive
consumption of natural resources
RAHHERERRECER - B
RBEFARRER

Strictly implementing emission reduction
measures (e.g. vehicle management
measures and different boiler operation
modes by season) to maintain low
emissions
BIRETRES RN

(IR EERIER R IREHERT
EHEETAR) - RIHEBERBUK
qz

The Group adheres to the concept of
sustainable development and strictly
controls its product manufacturing
process, such as using recyclable materials
for packaging and using

coal with higher combustion value to
reduce emissions
AEMBFAHFREBRIEL  RIE
LEEREERE - MEAAE
MRRBEYREAREERSH
BEUR DB
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Although the climate change risks identified by the Group are not
expected to have a significant impact on its business, the Group
reviews the potential impact of climate change on its business
annually and adopts appropriate measures to mitigate any
potential risks.

SOCIETY

HUMAN RESOURCES OVERVIEW

The Group is committed to protecting the legal interests of all its
employees and in strict compliance with a series of labour laws
of the PRC, such as the Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of
China,.

During the Year, the Group focused on nurturing its talent pool,
selecting talents based on long-term development needs and the
policy of putting ethics first. We have introduced a system with
a series of human resource policies, including but not limited to
procedures concerning employee remuneration, talent assessment
and selection and human resources management. The Group has
established a diversified position system and promotion paths for
management, professional, technical and support staff according
to the latest market standards to maintain staff motivation. Our
human resources development plan includes following strategies:

. Promoting the selection of senior management of the
Group

. Attracting talents with great potential

. Nurturing a rich reserve of talent

. Enhancing talent exchange

. Regularly evaluating the performance of employees

. Maintaining fair and reasonable competition mechanism

The Group's employees have different religious beliefs and come
from different backgrounds. There is no any discrimination against
gender, age, race, religious belief or physical disability during our
recruitment process.

The Group complies with the Provisions on Prohibition of Child
Labour of the PRC. A strict background check is part of the
recruitment process to avoid employing child labour inadvertently.
In addition, we would never force any employee to work by means
of violence, threats, or illegal restriction of personal freedom
during the business process.

i 7 A 282 1 T e ) ) SR Ak 3 AL T B A B
B PR OR R B AR AR IR A A R SRk
Al 365 5 365 1) T 7 52 28R 3 R A R B 9 5 e LA
AT o 7 75 J gt o

i

VIR-¢7:8 3/

7 2 B BT e R T AT A B Y E M) i NI R A
AAF N RILFE R — R 515581k - mE ¢
N RICAE 55 8 & [ %) - P AR
Bk o (b AR EAL g R BRL) o

AAEJE N > A AR T E B N R IR R
B R SR LLAE S Se i BUROE A e A 5
A — R I N T8 IR B ) BE > LA E AN R
B TH & A SPGB ) &R 0 A B A
JF o A S5 T ARBE o o i O B R A A L S
il X S Rp A8 N B AL T 2 JuAb B9 R R A
THE B PR EF B TR ) J7 o AN 7 & IR B R
AT # AL DU B SR
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. BEEMEAL
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. PRAR 22 1 BB 358 % Tl
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R R AL 5 AT o] B3 R AR MR SR B
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AR R IR AR TR R A e BT B o AR
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The Group has adopted a standard working hour system for its
employees, limiting employees' working hours to eight hours per
day and 40 hours per week. The Group strictly complies with
national regulations to ensure that its employees are entitled to
home leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave, maternity leave
and paid annual leave in addition to all statutory holidays. The
Group also contributes various social insurance premiums for
all employees, including unemployment, medical care, maternity,
work injury, pension, housing provident fund. Prior to joining
the Group, employees are required to take health examinations
organised by the Group, in order to guarantee the personal health
of employees and a safe production environment. We are seriously
concerned about the physical and mental health of our employees
and actively encourage them to participate in sports activities
to improve their physical fitness and enhance the vitality of the
Group. The Group is committed to supporting its employees in
their pursuit of work-life balance. We will continue to explore
opportunities, invest resources and encourage our employees to
participate in activities to maintain their physical and mental
health.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 252 (2022: 263) employees
in total, all of whom were on long-term labour contracts with the
Group. Our total workforce by age group, gender, employment
type and geographical region is as follows:
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AR S5 IR o [A] IR 4 BT A B 80 36~ B
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i AR A o FRAM B U B A B0 f BR > 5 M 50
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MRoF =+ H=+—H> RAEHILF252
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By age group 2023 2022
A B AL RS - Y

Total number
HNB

<25

25-29

30-39

40-49

>50

252 263
0 0

0 1
37 45
149 146
66 71

By gender
5l

Male
BHiEAR
Female

Lotk B

By employment type
0 O 0

Full time

X

Part time

i

118 125
134 138
252 263

0 0

By geographical region
Hb [ 8] 7y

The PRC
T 2

Hong Kong
i

249 260
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Statistics of employee turnover are set out as follows: PLTF % U8 B Ak 2 5T

Employee turnover rate 20238 2022
f B i 25 b & TR TSR e St

Total turnover 6% 22%
ESNTEN

By gender

PEHI

Male 7% 19%
HrEfR 8

Female 5% 24%
LR B

By age group

A% AR

<25 0% 0%
25-29 0% 200%
30-39 5% 4%
40-49 2% 12%
> 50 15% 51%
By geographical region

b [ ) 7y

The PRC 6% 22%
i

Hong Kong

i 0% 0%

HEALTH AND SAFETY fidt e B 3¢ 2

The Group complies with the Law of the People's Republic of AN 4T & (3 AR I B Ju 5% B g k) -

China on the Prevention and Control of Infectious Diseases, Crp e NI B B S B YR L)~ (S B B
the Law of the People's Republic of China on the Prevention i BB U ) R (el A5 B AR e )

and Control of Occupational Diseases, the Provisions on the o B TN iR A A ] B Bk 2E L A R s AR

Supervision and Administration of Labour Protection Articles & B T A9 { A Fl &5 & ff B 8 T 0% 2& iy Bt &= %
and the Regulations Concerning the Labour Protection of Female 4 il & T A4 8 N & % & A FE G - RAEEE
Staff and Workers. In order to enhance occupational safety, [ &5 — TG & £ 1 00 B > e £ 5 0 A4
improve working conditions, safeguard employee’s personal EBRBEAEGLEE R BHLXE2LAERESE
interests and ensure protection of life and property, the Group  H » [F] RF £ 455 Az 2 55 i 35 SR fi 26 o A 4 8] o 1) 22
has formulated its internal production safety regulations. The 4785 &8 M & & g¥ 15 H % TAE % 2 MK L
Group has been committed to the principle that “safety comes 4F#BFM B TiEE RIFHEERMW TERE, T
first and prevention is crucial” which requires that our entire  {F#RFR o 8% & A A BUTE B 10 -

production process should meet the safety requirements, with an

aim to ensure workplace safety and excellent management and to

maintain a clean and hygienic production site. Inter-departmental

meetings are held regularly to review the safety and efficiency of

work routines, reminding employees of each department to keep a

clean and tidy working environment and to prioritise safety in the

work process.

13 The employee turnover rate for the Year is disclosed in accordance with “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by
the Stock Exchange.
A A A7 A 5 U 2 b R 02 BRI S T A A B R BRI A MR = R B S ORI B RE R AR 5 1) R
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When recruiting for special positions, interviewees are required
to provide relevant qualification certificates. The Group requires
that employees whose positions are exposed to occupational
hazards should accept a complete set of responsibility system for
occupational diseases prevention, and support the management
measures for the prevention of occupational diseases. All the
employees of the Group are required to undergo annual health
checkups and safety training, and records of their examination
results shall be kept to demonstrate the importance we place on
the knowledge on occupational health of employees as a whole.
The Group requires that production and technical workers
should have effective health certificates before commencement
of work. In addition, the Group has taken various measures to
prevent accidents, requiring personnel engaged in the repair and
maintenance of machinery to use gloves and wear a series of
safety equipment during the repair process, and emphasizing on
the monitoring and control management of the plant as well as
the safety management and education of the employees.

The Group has not sustained any work-related injuries or fatalities
in the past three years, including the current year.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group attaches great importance to human resources training,
and has therefore launched a comprehensive and detailed training
program every year to enhance the vocational knowledge and
ethics of its employees through the provision of education and
vocational training on professional ethics and relevant regulations
and systems, thereby assisting them in the production of high-
quality wine products. Through professional training, the Group
has effectively enhanced its staff's understanding of the details
of the production process, the Group's management culture and
safety measures. In order to ensure product quality, the Group
provides enhanced training on professional knowledge and skills
for the personnel in key production positions so as to equip them
with adequate working knowledge and corresponding support
capabilities.

During the Year, the Group organised training on laws and
regulations to keep our employees informed of major national
laws and regulations and to ensure strict compliance with
the corresponding national laws and regulations in our daily
operations. In the future, we will continue to explore opportunities
and allocate resources to provide appropriate training to our staff.
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Details of the training provided during the Year are set out below: 24 B ;) (19 55 FI #E& W R -

Staff training

B THI % —F
No. of employees % of total employees'*
I 1V
Total number of employees trained 32 12.70% 10.00%
T 55l AN S
By gender
g il
No. of employees % of trained employees'
I v vl NN v v A
Male 37.50% 35.00%
1
Female 20 62.50% 65.00%
Lt
By employee category
1 B %5 il
No. of employees % of trained employees's
T —— T REU S
Junior staff 53.13% 50.00%
Ik 8 T
Mid-level staff 4 12.50% 19.00%
HREAT
Senior staff 11 34.37% 31.00%
g BT
Training hours
Total number of hours (hours) 48.00 52.00
ARy g (/NI )
Average training time (hours)'® 0.19 0.20

ALY SUNCIR

Average training hours completed per employee
(by gender)"’

F 35 O 5 B 3% A B (k) 7

Male (hours) 0.15 0.14
S (/NEF)
Female (hours) 0.22 0.25
o (/)

Average training hours completed per employee
(by employee category)!’

- 35 8 58 B3 A 8 (3 0@ EO 0N )

Junior staff (hours) 0.12 0.11
WA B L (/INRF)
Mid-level staff (hours) 0.35 0.63
==
g B T (/)
Senior staff (hours) 0.83 0.94
= g B L (/NEF)
14 Percentage of total staff trained = total number of employees trained/total number of employees x 100%.
M2 E TR =208 TS8R T A%x100% -
15 Percentage of employees trained by category = number of employees trained by category/number of employees by category x100%.
AR R 2 A B b= R A2 A B N R BTN 100% ©
16 Average training hours completed per employee = total training hours/total number of employees.
45 858 B2 I T 24 5 B = 832 R A B TG
17 Average training hours per employee by category = training hours of employees by category/number of employees by category.

AU 32 90 BT 748 2 R = 2 A BT 2 I R BT e
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group complies with the Provisions on Prohibition of Child
Labour of the PRC and conducts stringent background checks
during the recruitment process to avoid inadvertent use of child
labour. The Group is committed to the protection of human rights
and complies with all relevant laws and regulations. We strictly
prohibit the employment of child labour and require applicants to
provide identity cards, professional certificates and employment
separation certificates issued by their former employers for
verification of identity during the recruitment process. Moreover,
we enter into legally binding service agreements with successful
candidates (hired on fair grounds) to protect the legal rights of
both parties. Labour contracts contain detailed provisions on,
among other things, labour compensation, working hours, rest
and vacation, social insurance and employee benefits, labour
protection and working conditions so as to eliminate forced
labour.

In addition, if there is a violation of labour rules, we will take
appropriate action in the interest of the workers concerned. For
example, if we become aware that there is/are minor(s) among
our workers, we will immediately report this to the relevant
labour administration department. During the Year, there were no
instances of forced and child labour in the Group.

OPERATING PRACTICES

PRODUCT AND SERVICE

The Group is committed to researching, developing and launching
a wide range of new products. In order to satisfy different
needs of customers, the Group has launched wines of different
price levels and grades. In terms of the sales model, the Group
continues to rely on traditional distribution channels on one hand,
and vigorously develops and expands channels on online e-commerce
platforms on the other hand. Since 2016, it has been selling wine
products online to fully utilise the market potential of the e-commerce
model, with a view to developing diversified distribution channels
and expanding its sales scope.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has always aimed to provide high-quality products to
its customers. In order to manage the potential risks arising from
our suppliers, the Group conducts specific risk analysis before
entering into contracts with suppliers. In addition to the quality
of goods, the Group is also concerned about whether there are
negative reports on the environmental and social performance of
our suppliers. If any such reports come to the knowledge of the
Group, the Group will make enquiries to the suppliers concerned,
submit the review plans to the suppliers, and consider whether
it will affect the contracting with the suppliers. The Group also
sends its management staff to visit the suppliers' production
bases and conducts random checks on the suppliers' written
records and other documents to ensure that each supplier satisfies
the conditions stipulated by the Group prior to the signing of
contracts. At least one month before the expiry of a supplier's
contract, the management of the Group will conduct a detailed
product and risk assessment of the supplier again to determine
whether to renew the cooperative relationship.
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In selecting suppliers, the Group gives priority to those who
provide environmentally friendly products to enhance the recycling
and reuse of materials and to practically minimise the adverse
impact on the environment in the procurement process. The
Group prefers to engage suppliers that provide packaging made of
recyclable materials and wine bottle stoppers made of natural oak
cork.

During the Year, we had a total of 37 suppliers, all of which were
from the PRC.

RIGOROUS PRODUCTION PROCESS

The Group owns a full set of professional production lines
and a professional winemaking management team to provide
comprehensive quality guidance and control for each bottle of
wine produced. The Group has obtained Food Production License
and Quality System ("QS") Certificate. From the very first stage
of wine production, we have high standards in the selection of
hand-picked fresh grapes. With the professional instruction of
winemakers and our advanced equipment, the grapes go through
a number of general processes such as cleaning, stem removing,
squashing, canning, temperature-controlled fermentation,
base wine ageing, base wine adjustment, laboratory testing,
sterilization, bottling, packaging, finished products, storage and
transportation to produce the wines that we are so proud of.

During the Year, there were no cases of products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons or products and
services related complaints received.

Emphasis on Quality

The Group attaches great importance to its product quality
with strict quality management system in place and has been
awarded ISO9001 Quality Management System Certification.
The mountain grapes cultivated and the mountain grape wine
produced in the Group’s organic grape production base in Ji’an
City has obtained GB/T19630.1-2011 Organic Products (Part
I: Production) Certification and GB/T19630.2-2011 Organic
Products (Part II: Processing) Certification, and also obtained
GB/T19630.3-2011 Organic Products (Part III: Labelling and
Marketing) Certification and GB/T19630.4-2011 Organic Products
(Part I'V: Management System) Certification. In addition, some of
the Group’s wine products have been obtained certificates issued
by China Green Food Development Center, including Mountain
Grape Wine, Dry Wine, Ice Wine, Red Full-Juice Mountain Grape
Wine and Original and Wild Mountain Grape Wine, which are in
line with the Grade A standards for green products and have been
recognised as Grade A green food products.
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During the Year, the Group's Tontine Red full-juice mountain
grape wine was awarded a gold medal at the 22nd China Green
Food Expo. The achievements demonstrate the Group's great
efforts in quality control.

To ensure the stability of the Group’s production supply, the
sales, production and supply departments hold interdepartmental
meetings to formulate production plans before commencement
of mass production. Prior to the procurement period each year,
the Group sends inspectors to check the ripeness of the grapes in
the vineyards and fills out a glucose checklist to confirm that the
conditions for winemaking have been met. After the pressed grape
juice is delivered to the production plant, the inspectors will first
conduct a quality check on the grape juice, and samples will be
taken to check the glucose level in order to ensure the quality of
the grape juice. Meanwhile, winemakers will adjust the brewing
formula according to the sugar content of raw juice to guarantee
the consistent quality of all the finished products. In addition, the
raw grape juice purchased from external suppliers will be tested
by the technical department, and then delivered to the production
site after passing the test.

Production will not commence unless the samples taken by the
Group’s laboratory technicians from the raw materials purchased
and delivered to the workshop have passed the physical and
chemical indicators test in laboratory. Unqualified raw materials
will be taken out and returned to suppliers. Throughout the whole
production process, laboratory technicians will sample and test the
product in progress or finished product in warehouse irregularly,
and record the results to ensure the quality of the wines produced
meet the standards.

Emphasis on Safety

The Group has formulated management systems in respect of
various aspects such as personnel, equipment, raw materials,
packaging materials, procurement and acceptance inspection,
product technical standards, testing standards and production
environment control, and required the staff of relevant
departments to strictly comply with and implement relevant
guidelines.

The production process of the Group complies with the
Regulations on the Implementation of the Food Safety Law of the
People's Republic of China, which requires that the production
sites should be kept clean at all times to ensure food safety.
Raw materials shall be processed according to the requirements
of hygiene standards and containers for raw materials shall be
cleaned regularly to minimise contamination. The Group has
set stringent requirements for workers entering production sites.
Before entering the production sites, workers must wash and
disinfect their hands and pass through the foot-washing sink.
After entering the production sites, workers are required to wear
neat and tidy work clothes, pants and hats and overalls that are
washed on a regular basis. Tools, production equipment and
containers will be thoroughly cleaned and disinfected both before
and washed after use.
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Emphasis on Reputation

The Group has been committed to building a long-term
relationship of mutual trust with our customers. Therefore,
all the Group’s employees have been required to enter into a
Confidentiality Agreement, undertaking that they will keep and
handle the confidential information of customers with due care
without disclosing confidential information to third parties.
At the same time, in order to further safeguard our customers’
information, the Group requires that all vehicles and outsiders
entering and leaving its premises must be registered to minimise
the risk of leakage of our customers' and our own proprietary
information. We have strengthened our employees' awareness
of information security, enhanced technical measures for data
confidentiality and prevention of data leakage,
monitoring, detection and response measures, standardized

improved

emergency response measures and operational procedures for
information leakage, and strengthened inter-departmental
cooperation, so as to ensure that emergency response plans are
effective and efficient, and that we can quickly control the affected
areas and minimise losses.

As a responsible enterprise and partner, the Group strictly
complies with the established procedures set out in the Finished
Goods Inventory Management with an aim to sell products in the
best condition through a prudent storage method. Products shall
be stored by categories and managed on a quantitative basis. In
addition, products should be inspected and maintained on a daily
or regular basis according to their varieties, characteristics and
storage conditions. Warehouse temperature, humidity and other
indicators are also recorded on a daily basis to prevent products
from getting deteriorated, moldy, expired or damaged. The Group
also conducts final inspection before delivery to ensure that the
products sold pass the quality management test.

Furthermore, the Group has a well-established return process in
place. If any raw materials or packaging materials are found to
have quality issues, such materials will be immediately returned to
the suppliers as the Group refuses to use substandard materials.
Meanwhile, the Group is committed to providing quality services
to its customers and accepts any return of products due to quality
issues.
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Emphasis on Management

To improve the management of the Group, the Group regularly
conducts comprehensive inspections on corporate environmental
sanitation and staff disciplines. Any irregularities found during
the inspections will be reported to the relevant department heads
for action. Besides, the Group maintains frequent communication
with its staff. The Group also emphasises communication with
its employees and strives to ensure that there are proper rules
and procedures in place for employees to follow with any non-
compliance being investigated, so as to improve the quality of

services.

In terms of product sales, the Group carefully chooses distributors
by evaluating their marketing approaches and creditworthiness,
and only cooperates with the most appropriate ones after prudent
consideration. By managing and monitoring the performance
of our distributors on an ongoing basis, the Group ensures that
customers are provided with quality services.

In strict compliance with the Advertising Law of the People's
Republic of China and other laws and regulations, the Group
implements stringent vetting procedures in respect of advertising
and labeling policies and requirements and conducts cross-
checking of electronic documents with cooperation partners,
in order to ensure that the public can have a good and correct
understanding of the product information.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group strictly complies with the Criminal Law of the People's
Republic of China, the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC
and the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong. Our
employees are prohibited from engaging in any illegal behaviors by
taking advantage of their positions, including but not limited to
bribery, fraud, and illegally obtaining or accepting properties from
others under condition.

The Group also actively combats any money laundering activities
conducted through corporate accounts or private accounts, in
order to prevent any corruption or bribery within the Group. If
an employee become aware of a suspected case of corruption that
needs to be reported, the employee may report the case to the
relevant managers of the Group or the local competent authority
by phone, email or letter. All reports will be handled in a discreet
and confidential manner to prevent retaliation against the
whistleblower. Once a report is found to be true, the Group will
handle it in accordance with relevant laws and regulations.
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Due to the nature of the Group's business, the potential risk
of corruption is not high. As such, the Group sent out anti-
corruption information on a regular basis and did not organise
anti-corruption training during the Year. The Group will arrange
anti-corruption training for its directors and staff as and when
necessary based on actual needs.

During the Year, there were no lawsuits and allegations of
corruption involving the Group or its employees.

CHARITY CAMPAIGNS

In the past, the Group organised a volunteer group to visit
a welfare home in Tonghua City to show our care and
encouragement to children there by donating books, fruits
and monies. We recognise the importance of giving back to
the community and spare no effort in providing assistance to
the community. During the Year, the Group was committed to
resuming normal operations and adjusting its business strategies,
and therefore did not organise any social welfare activities. In
the coming year, the Group will actively seek to cooperate with
various public welfare and charitable organizations and help
address the difficulties and needs of the community and the
underprivileged, such as showing care for the underprivileged and
taking the initiative to giving back to the community, with the
goal of promoting social harmony.
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REPORTING GUIDE #l
Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)
M A% | ESG Report Disclosure Section Notes
(KPI) (BB A& LA R 1 7 75 i vk

A. Environmental

A BB

Aspect Al: Emissions

[BHE AL - PRy

General Disclosure

— B R

Information on:

A 15 SR B i 3 SRR PR~ e K R M BR Y
AEREEEEY N ELESEN :

(a) the policies; and

R 5 ]

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation

of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

AL EBEAT A A T R A A R o R S L

Environmental Protection and
Legal Compliance, Pollutant
Discharge

BRI IR BOR GRS )
PRk

(&R
Al.l The types of emissions and Pollutant Discharge > Air
respective emissions data Emissions Data
BT T AR B B T 15 Qe W) Pk R SR Pk Tk R
Al.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy GHG Emission Data

indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse
gas emissions and intensity
B (S L) K ae iM% (& E
2) U % S B i X

2 5 P R
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Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)
(KPI)

ESG Report
CBLBE A& R B R D)

Disclosure Section

1 % 5

Notes
sk

A. Environmental
AR

Al3 Total hazardous waste produced | Waste Recycling and Giving The Group’s operations
EEAEBEREAE Away do not generate significant
5% FE W) [ g ) Y % o amounts of non-hazardous or
hazardous waste.
i U E 7 i Sl o
B I B ) S A BE
Py
AlA4 Total non-hazardous waste Waste Recycling and Giving The Group’s operations
produced Away do not generate significant
ST A A JBE B ) ] A ) ) T amounts of non-hazardous or
hazardous waste.
A% 55 1B (1 SE 50 R A P A W
BRI e B ) B B
W -
Al.S Description of emissions Greenhouse Gas Emissions
target(s) set and steps taken to | THL% Z B4 PE K
achieve them Use of Resources
T TR SL A BERCE B AR R Ay | B IR
B 5 H BT PR AL 2 B
Al.6 Description of how hazardous Waste Recycling and Giving

and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives
and results Achieved

il A F R EFEEREYN
J5 ¥~ WK EE A & 0 45 it 2 BT
15 R AR

Away
B S ) [ g ) Y B o
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Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)
(KPI)

ESG Report
CBRBE -~ k& B R )

Disclosure Section

1 9% %

Notes
i sk

A. Environmental

A. BB

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
fETmE A2 B IHEMH

General Disclosure

— M4

Policies on the efficient use of resources,

including energy,

water and other raw materials.

AR B IR (RS BEUR - K B A R RL) /Y

Use of Resources

R

BUK o
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Use of Resources
consumption by type R AT
P JE AL W) 43 1 T e KB
W AL
A2.2 Water consumption in total and | N/A The Group currently uses
intensity AN water from underground wells
HAFEK B % and the Group has obtained
from competent authorities
the permits for water intake
and sewage discharge, which
specify the amount of water
that can be extracted for use.
7 4 9 B Iy 2 £ T R K
7 45 T 08 B 2 A % )
IR B 35 7K B TR B 5 B E
THUK & -
A2.3 Description of energy use Use of Resources
efficiency target(s) set and steps | & IR i Ff
taken to achieve them
Tl 2t BT AT 5764 RE R A 4k
PR B 4 B
A2.4 Description of whether there Use of Resources
is any issue in sourcing water &R
that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them
i 2t SR OB A K U8 b AT A AT AT
fil R - DL R i 5T 52 19 ) 7K 28
B e /72 31 73 26 H AT BR B
14 2 B
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Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)

[P S5 5 R B ESG Report Disclosure Section Notes
(KPI) (BRI~ o R P 9 7 0 fhi 7k
A. Environmental

A BRE

A2.5 Total packaging material used Data of packaging materials

for finished products and the
portion per production unit
LR it T P2 bR Y A i R
g A i AL

used for finished products

R P L e R

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

JE T A3 2 BRBE MR AR B IR

General Disclosure

— B

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant
impacts on the environment and natural
resources.

AR B AT N B BRI B K 9K R A i RS B
B3 -

The Environment and Natural
Resources

B R RRE R

A3.1 Description of the significant
impacts of activities on the
environment and natural
resources and the actions taken
to manage them.
il 2t 2E 95 0 By BB e RARE
TR R R ORI A
HENAT

The Environment and Natural
Resources

BRI T RN E IR

Aspect A4: Climate Change
J T A4 - SRR L

General Disclosure

— M B R

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.

il | e S L A8 B T R o R AT N AR R BRI
L AR SR A AH IR S L ) BB

Climate Change
e X[

A4l Description of the significant
climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.
il O 88 To] re & B AT A

R KR AR B
BT ) o

Climate Change
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Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)
I S 2 2 A B ESG Report Disclosure Section Notes
(KPI) (BRI~ & R 15 25 5 i &k

B. Social
B.#L &

Aspect Bl: Employment
JE T B1 : & i

General Disclosure Human Resources Overview

— MR PR UNVIB ¢/

Information on:

A BRI K AR SR R B T AR R B -

PR~ Zondl - OB DA % At R 8 % AE A

Y -

(a) the policies; and
B K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.

A EERAT AN R B BE R &

B ) E L o
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, Human Resources Overview
employment type, age group N T & VAR DL

and geographical region
TR R A R R ~ A AH I
b [ 3 53 1Y 18 4 48 2

B1.2 Employee turnover rate Human Resources Overview
by gender, age group and N 77 & R AL

geographical region.
T R~ A S AR A % s s 1 4y
4 0 R L 2K P R
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Key Performance

Indicators (KPI)

[P S5 5 R B ESG Report Disclosure Section Notes
(KPI) CBLBE A& R B R D) ¥ 7 = B fhi vk
B. Social

B.#L €

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
JEE T B2 - filt i B2

General Disclosure

— MR

Information on:

A7 B B Bt 22 A AR BT K ORI AR 5 ol S ik
f& B -

()

the policies; and

B K

Health and Safety
il B B 22 4

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
ESF B BT NA RSB R BH VS R
BLER -
B2.1 Number and rate of work- Health and Safety
related fatalities it e B 22 4
P A BRI AE T N B bR
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury Health and Safety
R A5 R 2k TAE H # ik B B 22 42
B2.3 Description of occupational Health and Safety
health and safety measures fi e B 22 4

adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored
ol 0L T R A 114 W S i e B 22 A
fe it - DA SO B AT M B 7
%
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Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)
I S 2 2 A B ESG Report Disclosure Section Notes
(KPI) (BB A& R IR ) 1 % 55 B fli ik

B. Social
B.#L &

Aspect B3: Development and Training
J& T B3 : #% & S 3

General Disclosure Development and Training
— M R B T g AN

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.

A BB TR B AT A IR A Rk B B ) B
SR o it 5 I I

B3.1 The percentage of employees Development and Training
trained by gender and employee | #FJ& Jz 353l

category

e K A B TR #2393 3
= NERig= 4

B3.2 The average training hours Development and Training
completed per employee by B e Je 35N

gender and employee category
Ak B AR BB B 7Y B4
fE B 58 B2l 1 -1 47 155 4
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Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)
[P S5 5 R B ESG Report

(KPI) CBRE g REREE)

Disclosure Section

1 % 5

Notes
sk

B. Social
B.# &

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
JE T B4 - 45 T HEH

General Disclosure

— MR

Information on:

A BRI B 1E B 0 55 T

(a) the policies; and
UK K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.
P BT N O B AN R s A
BT ) R o

Labour Standards
25 THeR

B4.1 Description of measures to
review employment practices to
avoid child and forced labour
il A ot A 081 1Y 5 e DA A
Yo 28 T I 8 ] 55

Labour Standards
&5 T HEH)

B4.2 Description of steps taken to

eliminate such practices when

discovered

il 2t 7 5% B A A LR T BR A
I 17 DU BT PR A A5 B

Labour Standards
&5 T HEH
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Key Performance

Indicators (KPI)

I S 2 2 A B ESG Report Disclosure Section Notes
(KPI) (BRI~ & R 15 25 5 i &k
B. Social

B.ih &

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
J& T BS - it g A P

— A

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.
i P R B Y R A & TR B BOR o

Supply Chain Management
A e g 4 3

BS5.1

Number of suppliers by
geographical region

F o 1 9] 14 3 7

Supply Chain Management
Ak e g A7 P

All suppliers are located in
the PRC.
JT A AL 7 4 2 v I 4L R

B5.2

Description of practices relating
to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, and
how they are implemented and
monitored

il 20 A O D 4 A 41
Ie] HC AT A I AL f51 1 £ R s
B~ DLR A BB AT e B 56
5 ¥

Supply Chain Management
A 8 g A 3

B5.3

Description of practices used
to identify environmental and
social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored
il 2t A ) sl 1 4 I {1 B
FA BRI B At & e 1 1 > DA
Ko AR BRBAT I B 5507 i

Supply Chain Management
At e g A7 7

B5.4

Description of practices used
to promote environmentally
preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and
monitored

il 2t 7 2R 43 v IR AR A 2
BROREE i B MBS A8 4> DL e
AR BABAT B B 5807 Tk

Supply Chain Management
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Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)
o 1 205 28 4 B ESG Report

(KPI) CBRBE Ak & R RS

Disclosure Section

1 5 7 B

Notes
sk

B. Social
B. it &

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
J& T B6 : 7 i 3 AT

General Disclosure

— MR P BE

Information on:

A TR 4 Rk A R IR S A (R B 22 A~ B

£ PSEN T NERVYSE R RN

(a) the policies; and
B 5 &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact

5

on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

LAY AT N A G B A B i A
B ) E L o

Operating Practices
B 1

B6.1 Percentage of total products
sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health
reasons

OB ol 7% P i M B &
A B { e . ¢l 77 28 [0 Wi 1)
5

Operating Practices
B A

B6.2 Number of products and service
related complaints received and
how they are dealt with

B BT FE bl MR 5 19 45 B

Operating Practices

BEAE

H LA K e 3 5 ik
B6.3 Description of practices relating | N/A The Group mainly engages
to observing and protecting AN in the production of wine

intellectual property rights
it BEL A G R R s Rk 7 HE A
B 4 4 1)

products and does not possess
any significant intellectual
property rights.

A 42 ) DA I RS o
A B A KRk HE o
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Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)
I S 2 2 A B ESG Report Disclosure Section Notes
(KPI) (BB A& R IR ) 1 % 55 B fli ik
B. Social
B.ih &
B6.4 Description of quality assurance | Operating Practices
process and recall procedures B EAE
i 0t VB A A AR R B T R U
[i5g
B6.5 Description of consumer data Operating Practices
protection and privacy policies, | & #& & {4l
and how they are implemented
and monitored
il 20V R R R % LR
5> LA B B UAT T B %58 U5 v
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Key Performance

Indicators (KPI)

[P S5 5 R B ESG Report Disclosure Section Notes
(KPI) CRBE G RE RIS 15 2 5 i &k
B. Social

B. i &

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

JETE BT : &5

General Disclosure

— A

Information on:

A BB 11~ B3 SR vk B AR R
(a) the policies; and

B K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,

fraud and money laundering.
ST PR AT N R B A R &
BT ) R o

Anti-corruption
e

B7.1

Number of concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the
issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases

i HE i 403 o 3 B AT N ECHCR B
& I A A R BT R A R A
F S E B AR A R

Anti-corruption
-

B7.2

Description of preventive
measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
il 20t By SR 4 it B B R T - DA
Lo AR B BAT B B 5507 %

Anti-corruption
i

B7.3

Description of anti-corruption
training provided to directors
and staff

il 2t o) B S e B TR &
5

Anti-corruption

i
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Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)
I S 2 2 A B ESG Report Disclosure Section Notes
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B. Social
B.#L &

Aspect B8: Community Investment

JE 1 B8 : AL W&

General Disclosure Charity Campaigns
— M B #R N EE

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

A R DAA [0 2 B A T fuft 8 8 T A A [ R R
PR L SE 5 U ) 5 AL [ ) 45 Y BUK -

BS.1 Focus areas of contribution Charity Campaigns
O Rk At B

B8.2 Resources contributed to the Charity Campaigns
focus area Ny
T 21 6 W08 T By A R




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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ol

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA TONTINE WINES
GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Tontine Wines Group Limited (the
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the

“Company”) and its
“Group”) set out on
pages 106 to 172, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

INVENTORIES

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of inventories for impairment.
This impairment test is significant to our audit because the
balance of inventories of approximately RMB132,836,000 as at
31 December 2023 and write off of inventories of approximately
RMB20,189,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 are material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s
impairment test involves application of judgement and is based on
estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on ordering and holding
of inventories;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

- Assessing the marketability of the inventories;

- Assessing the ageing of the inventories;

= Assessing the net realisable values of the inventories; and
- Checking subsequent sales and usage of the inventories.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for inventories is
supported by the available evidence.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Refer to notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets for impairment. This impairment test is
significant to our audit because the balance of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of RMB108,717,000
and RMB36,236,000 respectively as at 31 December 2023
and the provision for impairment losses on the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB19,858,000 and RMB2,726,000 respectively for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test involves
application of judgement and is based on assumptions and
estimates.

Our audit procedures for those using value-in-use calculations
included, among others:

- Assessing the identification of the related cash generating
units;

- Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations;

- Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow
projections;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions (including
revenue growth, profit margins, terminal growth rates and
discount rates); and

- Checking impairment data to supporting evidence.
We consider that the Group’s impairment test for property, plant

and equipment and right-of-use assets are supported by the
available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
M8 S A% B e

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
M8 S A% B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s
website at:

https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/Our-
views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P05988
Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSSAND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o v 1 2t B LA v Y 2 R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =44+ _H =+ —H L4

2023 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &1 AR T ANRHET T
Revenue W % 7 189,139 146,118
Cost of sales B A (160,990) (110,244)
Gross profit EA 28,149 35,874
Other income, gains and losses HoAtb st A~ i i B e 15 9 (80) 4,270
Selling and distribution expenses BH B B aH B 2 (38,842) (33,698)
Administrative and other operating A7 B B HoAth 58425 B 52
expenses (47,038) (36,100)
Impairment loss on property, plant and W~ s R 5% A 9 (E N 1R
equipment (19,858) (7,776)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets o R W 1R (2,726) (2,036)
Change in fair value of biological assets WG E ST E S ) 18 10,264 12,049
Share-based payments DR 03 70 B8 19 45 3K 29 (485) =
Finance costs il A 10 (190) (137)
Loss before tax e B2 i s 18 (70,806) (27,554)
Income tax expense T 15 i BA 52 11 - -
Total comprehensive expense for the year AR P 4 T P SZ AR 12 (70,806) (27,554)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income JE AN AE 9 &0 (B Z)
for the year attributable to: e i 4 7
Owners of the Company A A A N (80,199) (26,403)
Non-controlling interests I FE R RE 25 9,393 (1,151)
(70,806) (27,554)
(Restated)
(Tt )
Loss per share 5 Ji% s 4R 15
Basic (RMB cents) FEA (NR¥E) (26.59) (9.00)
Diluted (RMB cents) B (NRES) (26.59) (9.00)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
w7 e B IR Dl 2R

At 31 December 2023 B -FE =4+ A =+—H

2023 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ANR¥ET ot NR¥ET
Non-current assets Ik i B B
Property, plant and equipment W W Tk A 16 108,717 141,228
Right-of-use assets i Y RE B 17 36,236 36,986
Biological assets EYERE 18 52,390 43,703
Prepayments TA AT BIE 21 2,400 1,600
199,743 223,517
Current assets b S g3
Inventories ety 19 132,836 170,332
Trade receivables 54 5 IRE Wi B K 20 117,247 132,485
Other receivables, deposits and L Al R oA BRI 4 K
prepayments FAAT I 21 2,574 4,296
Current tax recoverable BV HA AT i [m] o I8 5,551 5,551
Bank and cash balances SRAT I B4 & 22 95,483 70,893
353,691 383,557
Current liabilities i Bh £ £
Trade payables B 5 EAT 3K 23 8,909 2,221
Other payables and accruals At 8 AT 35 I R R R B 24 18,721 19,972
Amount due to a substantial shareholder M — 4% 32 B ik o 3k I 25 13,452 6,301
Lease liabilities ISR 26 1,623 754
Current tax liabilities R 303 750 0 2 9,961 9,961
52,666 39,209
Net current assets Ui B 301,025 344,348
Total assets less current liabilities H8 O s DR B AL 500,768 567,865
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
#r B BB AR DL AR

At 31 December 2023 R -E =4+ _"H=+—H

2023 2022
RO T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B N B ARBET T

Non-current liabilities Ik B £ fF
Lease liabilities & A fE 26 3,383 159
NET ASSETS & e A 497,385 567,706
Capital and reserves B A B il i
Share capital i A 28 25,829 25,216
Reserves it 378,091 458,418
Equity attributable to owners of AR E) AN A HE 45

the Company 403,920 483,634
Non-controlling interests JE F2E B A 5 93,465 84,072
TOTAL EQUITY HE % 48 5 497,385 567,706

The consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to 172 were  # H & it — & “ U4 = H =+ )\ H b L4z #E
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28  FII#F X 55 106 % 1 72 A 454 5 i 3% > 3t b LA

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: AR
Wang Guangyuan Zhang Hebin

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

e ik A

#HH #HH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o BE 2 SR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2023  # % =F = =4+ H =+—H IL4FE

Share Non-
Share Share Special Statutory options Other ~ Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserves reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
Bk RBEE BRRE ERA O MRERE  RRRE  RHER ait o RS it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFE  ARBTFr  AREFT  AREFX  ARETr  AREFT  AREFr  AR¥Fr  AREFT  ARETx
(Note a) (Note b)
(WaEa)  (HiEb)
At [ January 2022 e St oy Rt 22,748 954,776 86,360 135, 2334 13,143 (721,613) 493,520 85,223 578,143
Total comprehensive expense LS et
for the year B, , : B B, Ce) ek () 15
Consideration shares allotied and % RE {72 RER K
issued (note 28(a)) (}3E28(a) ) 816 6,691 - - - (7,507) - - - -
Share option exercised (note 29)  ©ATHEBEIHE (Jif3k29) 1,62 17,199 - - (2.334) - - 16,517 - 16,517
At 31 December 2022 S o5 gy I o 25,216 978,666 86,360 135,112 - 5,636 (748,016) 483,634 84,072 567,706
At 1 January 203 e St R 25,216 978,666 86,360 135,712 - 5,636 (748,016) 483,634 84,072 567,706
Total comprehensive expense AT
fo theyear - - - - - S @) 9% (08
Consideration shares allotted and B R BT fRER D
issued (note 28(a)) (MzE28(a)) 613 5023 - - = (5,636) - - = -
Share-based payments (note 29)  BUREf A HEBEAY T3¢
(29) - - - - 485 - - 485 - 485
At 31 December 2023 REFZ=FFZ =40 25829 983,089 86,360 135,712 485 - (828,215) 403,920 93,465 497,385
Notes: (T
(a) Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value  (a) R T AR T AR O B A A TR T S 5 B T
of the shares of the Company issued and the aggregate of the FRRA AT 32 T 1) b Tl i > 2 i 4 o] 22
nominal value of the issued shares and the share premium of the T AT A 25 AR > AN B B8R AT B 1 T
holding company for which the shares of the Company have been {Eﬁﬁﬁfﬂx/\ A RS mA N C BT RGN E
issued in exchange upon a corporate reorganisation to rationalise BEAT I O T B RE 0% Ve B T A AR 2 TR 1 2
the group structure prior to listing of the Company’s share on The %E °
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the Stock Exchange).
(b) In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the  (b) AR A AN RS (T ) A BE AR

People’s Republic of China (PRC), the PRC subsidiaries are
required to provide for PRC statutory reserves, including enterprise
expansion fund and general reserve fund, by way of appropriations
from its net profit (based on the PRC statutory financial
statements of the subsidiaries) but before dividend distributions.

All appropriations to the funds are made at the discretion of the
board of directors of the subsidiaries. The board of directors
shall decide on the amounts to be appropriated based on the
profitability of each subsidiary each year.

The enterprise expansion fund may be used to increase registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries subject to approval from the
relevant PRC authorities. The general reserve fund may be used to
offset accumulated losses or increase the registered capital of the
subsidiaries subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities.

o R Jo 2 ) 2L 4 DR S T A O R T (R
W g 2 1 0¥ v R 2k A B R ) v 4R TR o R
JE b ik 4 (B A S B R ik i T — iR £ 4 2
W) e

Jor A O < R 8 e B S F RO T S e
At o 3 g AR R 4 AR 25 B 2 mD A0 &2
FE 3 Tl R S T £ U S

A 3 B 5 | T 390 v 12 TR 4 m A SR
W A e 2R A7 B ol R A 0 o — ol A
R <l T HIE 9 I 2> w9 2 Rl R 4R E0U%
Rk A Ml 2R A e R A o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

o BB R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =44+ _H =+ —H L4

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ANR#F ot
Cash flows from operating activities KRBIEE) P T B 4w &
Loss before tax I 0 I e 1 (70,806) (27,554)
Adjustments for: T 0 IE B A i
Interest income FLE WA (337) (244)
Finance costs Rl & R AR 190 137
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y ERY NS L R 16,920 15,683
Depreciation of right-of-use assets i P P A 8 3,731 3,159
Gain on disposal of property, plant and B S T At DA
equipment and right-of-use assets it ) RE 5 7 1Y R 2 = (3,723)
Impairment loss on property, plant and Wy~ R B R At W (R T 1R
equipment 19,858 7,776
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets o7 RE & 7 W (E s 4R 2,726 2,036
Write-off of inventories sy 7 & 20,189 7,265
Share-based payments l/‘J» A5y 1oy SR 1) A5 K 485 =
Loss allowances for trade receivables Z 5 MEWCIR 3k 2 s 18 3845 12,196 2,348
Loss allowances for other receivables, S fth JE S BKTE -~ 4% 4 K
deposits and prepayments TEAT 3KTE 2 e 48 B8 1,600 =
Change in fair value of biological assets LR E N T ) (10,264) (12,049)
Operating cash flows before working capital R A S B T Y
changes 8 B (3,512) (5,166)
Change in biological assets A W) A (3,647) (3,953)
Change in inventories fFHREH) 22,531 38,477
Change in trade receivables B 5 B W K 5 ) 3,042 (16,092)
Change in other receivables, deposits and /E\:WJWEW KIH ~ e
prepayments T A5 K T A B (178) 6,047
Change in trade payables é’%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁb 6,688 (15,764)
Change in other payables and accruals Al 8 A ek T e R w2 T
58 (1,251) (10,580)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEWB NG (i)
operating activities B &3 23,673 (7,031)
Cash flows from investing activities N B B AR 0 B A R R
Purchases of property, plant and equipment W B W 2~ W B R A (5,372) (23,399)
Interest received EALE PSS 337 244
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEYZE - MR KR
equipment T 15 3K H 1,900 2,045
Net cash used in investing activities % N B i o B 4 R (3,135) (21,110)




HEE R EEARA R B SRR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HABERER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ANR#T T
Cash flows from financing activities REESHMBNB &N R
Advance from a substantial shareholder F2 R R 7,151 372
Repayment to non-controlling shareholder 18 7 I 2 T e SR IE = (1,089)
Repayment of lease liabilities & A (3,099) (2,632)
Net proceeds from exercise of share options AT {60 i e e 75 o S 33 AR = 16,517
Net cash generated from financing activities Al B S B & 4,052 13,168
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ¥4 KB &% EWHm,~
(WA ) 8 24,590 (14,973)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year AERI R B & KB & EY 70,893 85,866
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year WK B &R &% HY 95,483 70,893
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents Bl & B B4 S H Y 4 b
Bank and cash balances SRAT T B A B 95,483 70,893
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =44+ _H =+ —H L4

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Tontine Wines Group Limited (the “Company”)
is a public limited Company incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong is Unit No. 2910-
11, 29/F Prosperity Millennia Plaza, No. 663 King’s Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the
Group. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise stated.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are
relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting
year beginning on 1 January 2023. HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”);
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the
Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and amounts reported for
the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group
has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position
to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would
have a material impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of biological assets which are carried at their
fair values less costs to sell which are carried at their fair
values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise the judgements in the process of applying
the accounting policies. The areas involving areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below.

CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties, to determine whether it has control. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

3.

A RIS AT IR A R % T SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED
CONSOLIDATION - CONTINUED
Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of total comprehensive income or expense
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the

entity operates (the “functional currency”).

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

CONTINUED
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION -
CONTINUED

(b)

(©)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements — continued

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Group’s presentation currency are
translated into the Group’s presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
exchange reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

3.

o2l 8OR - 4
Ah W ¥ 57 —

(b)

HEHBM W R 5 KA -

]

(CE R NENON & 7K
At 22 T WA i A R S AT R A i e
18 09 AT o #8550 38 20 € R HL At 4 T
Wi 4 e o i B W TEC Y Ui 2R
s $E 7S 15 i A R > B A BRI i s
A5 PO AT o] #5550 23 A 48 4 e

RARHEZ M

A 4R [ A i A 2 e R B A 4R
SHN WA 2 R e R Y
B AR UL TS % T 5 J5 X5 I A 4
Bz 25

- KWMHERILKRFEINZE
FE M AR 1 IS IR DL AR
) 2 i i BE AR5

- e A Je B 3 $% T 1 i 2
B (BR IR T 32 M 3 0 J
A2 oy O 2 AT TE A R
W ABO TR DL
o WA S B AR AL 5 B
ZMEARIF) 5 K

- PrEE AT RE L2 R
TEE S fif 445 10 e 2

T e B R > 400 B O A1 BT R G
BUE B SR AR B R R 2 B S
2 B B 50k 5 R 8 o S e 1 0
ST I > AT I T 0 2 9 4 4
A8 WA SR 1R 2 — By

W 8 i A B AR T B RN
EF 89 F Bz i AN M E &
Fe £ AR B Sl 42 W5 T BEE e 4 5 o

115



116

CHINA TONTINE WINES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

o o B 5 i M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their costs less their residual
values over the estimated useful lifes on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:
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Bearer plants

VAR

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending for
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are available
for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Biological assets comprise ginseng planted and grapes
growing on bearer plants in the PRC which are measured
on initial recognition and at the end of reporting period
at the fair value less costs to sell, with any resultant
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which it arises. Fair value is based on the present value of
expected net cash flows from the ginseng and grapes. Costs
to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to
the disposals of an asset, mainly transportation cost and
excluding income taxes.

The related costs including picking cost and fertilisers and
pesticide cost incurred for harvest of ginseng and grapes
are capitalised, until such time the ginseng and grapes are
harvested.

LEASES

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets
are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold lands 2%-10%
L 2%-10%
Office premise 50%
NS/ 50%

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities,
lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the
restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or
otherwise the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-term
leases are leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or
less. Low-value assets are assets of value below US$5,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are
initially recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs except in the case of investments at fair
value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under financial
assets at amortised cost.

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowance for
expected credit losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

LOSS ALLOWANCES FOR EXPECTED
CREDIT LOSSES

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit
losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures
the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount equal to the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life
of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit
losses™) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit
losses that represents the expected credit losses that result
from default events on that financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
INSTRUMENTS

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer with reference to the
customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised product or service exceeds
one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the terms
of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a
performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over
time if:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

CONTINUED

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH

CUSTOMERS - CONTINUED

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue
is recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the product or service.

OTHER INCOME

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees, consultants and distributors.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants and
distributors are measured at the fair value of the services
rendered or if the fair value of the services rendered
cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. The fair value is measured at the date
the Group receives the services and is recognised as an
expense.

TAXATION

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

TAXATION - CONTINUED

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the
consolidated financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purpose
of allocating resources and assessing the performance of
the Group’s various lines of business.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

SEGMENT REPORTING - CONTINUED
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
productions processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

RELATED PARTIES

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity)
if any of the following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i1) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

CONTINUED

RELATED PARTIES - CONTINUED

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity)
if any of the following conditions applies: —
continued

) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible
assets except inventories and receivables to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS - CONTINUED

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES - CONTINUED

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events
are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

KEY ESTIMATES

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(A) ESTIMATED ALLOWANCES FOR

INVENTORIES

The management estimates the net realisable value
of inventories based primarily on the estimated
selling prices and current market conditions.
Where the expectation on the net realisable value
is lower than the cost, an impairment may arise.
The Group carries out an inventory review at end
of the reporting period and RMB20,189,000 (2022:
RMB7,265,000) on obsolete and slow moving items
to their net realisable values during the year ended
31 December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, the
carrying amount of inventories is approximately
RMB132,836,000 (2022: approximately
RMB170,332,000).
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4.

KEY ESTIMATES - CONTINUED

(B)

(©

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-
USE ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined
with reference to the present value of estimated
future cash flows. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected or there are unfavourable events
and change in facts and circumstance which result
in revision of future estimate cash flows, a material
impairment loss may arise.

On the above basis, the Group is of the view that
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are RMB19,858,000
(2022: RMB7,776,000) and RMB2,726,000 (2022:
RMB2,036,000) are charged to profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2023, respectively.

USEFUL LIVES OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

In applying the accounting policy on property,
plant and equipment with respect to depreciation,
the management estimates the useful lives of
various categories of property, plant and equipment
according to the industrial experiences over the
usage of property, plant and equipment and also
by reference to the relevant industrial norm. If the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
is less than the original estimate useful lives due
to changes in commercial and technological
environment, such difference will impact the
depreciation charge for the remaining useful lives.
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4.

KEY ESTIMATES - CONTINUED

(D)

(E)

IMPAIRMENT LOSS FOR BAD AND
DOUBTFUL DEBTS

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade
and other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in
the year in which such estimate has been changed.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

AND VALUATION PROCESSES OF
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The biological assets of the Group are measured at
fair value less costs to sell for financial reporting
purposes. In estimating the fair value of biological
assets, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The valuation team
works closely with the qualified external valuers
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The chief financial officer
reports the valuation team’s findings to the board
of directors of the Company every six months to
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of
the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable market
data to estimate the fair value less costs to sell of
the biological assets. Note 18 provides detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs
and key assumptions used in the determination
of the fair value of various assets and liabilities.
The change in fair value of biological assets
amounting to approximately RMB10,264,000 (2022:
approximately RMB12,049,000) was credited to
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023.
As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
biological assets is approximately RMB52,390,000
(2022: approximately RMB43,703,000).
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5.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and

interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management

programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

(A)

(B)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Certain transactions and monetary assets and
liabilities of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”) which is different from
the functional currency of the Group entities, i.e.
RMB, which expose the Group to currency risk.
The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge against its exposure to currency
risk. The management manages its foreign currency
risk by monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rate and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2023, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 10% against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s loss after
tax for the year would have been approximately
RMBI1,472,000 (2022: RMB1,090,000) be higher/
lower arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange differences on other payables and accruals
denominated in HKS$.

CREDIT RISK

The carrying amount of bank and cash balances,
other receivables, deposits and trade receivables
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial
assets.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings.
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S.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -
CONTINUED

(B)

CREDIT RISK - CONTINUED

In order to minimise credit risk, the directors
have delegated a team to be responsible for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures. In addition, the
directors review the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other debt regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period by comparing the risk of a default occurring
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following information is
used:

- internal credit rating;
- external credit rating (if available);

- actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
change to the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower;

D"

SV 5 L g 4 BE — A

(B)

1 £ M B — %

Jy ek ARG B EF O EIR
ANALB RO E £ IR fE E A
Jo oAt B AR FF o ML Ab > B E )
Wl 5 2R B A % H At A
T i T < R > AR A AT i (] i I
i R A 400 Tl fEL ARG 4H - BB > 3B
R0 A4 B 15 B R B KR
B

7 £ 1 37 4 B O AR P A B Ja e
JE\ Bz o 7% 2 A B F- 7 e B

45 S 5 90 25 00 0 O
45 FI A9 1 3 4 B e L 0 e
FI 00 0 40 JEL IR £ 4 Pl 7 1
{5 IR S 98 45 0 P 75 K W g
I 74 3 1 T £ A A
4 SRR W R S R R
gk

- NEER S
- ShERAS B AR (W) s

- HEEEBRERABITR
L BB Ty i B KB B Y 3¢
B ~ b 15w AL 9 R L Y
BT R A A )

W BN K S ARG I K

RPN



B R A TR A ) % T AR 133

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ot B B 755 WA Y

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

5.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - 5. Y e B AR B — A
CONTINUED

- significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower;

- significant changes in the value of the
collateral or in the quality of guarantees or
credit enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of
borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if
a debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 60 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. The Group normally categorises a loan or
receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments greater than 360 days past
due. Where loans or receivables have been written
off, the Group, if practicable and economical,
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade
receivables which reflect their credit risk and how
the loan loss provision is determined for each of the
categories. In calculating the expected credit loss
rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for
each category and adjusts for forward looking data.

Category Definition
il E #
Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay

S A A T B AR 9 K 1) S A e

Non-performing

AR i B L gy B 1

Significant increase in credit risk
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N 45 45%
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5.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - 5. W% B A B —
CONTINUED
(C) LIQUIDITY RISK (C) iEy % 4 M bs
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current A AR [ 2 UK T W B A% T
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that T2 B E oK MERAER 2
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its H) B 45 At AR - DA REAST 0 R R A
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. TEE AR e
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial ALEEGR A BN BSHNT

liabilities is as follow:

Less than
1 year or Total
repayable on Between Between  undiscounted Carrying
demand Ito2years  2to5 years cash flow amounts
—HENK AU BB &

RERIEE  —E@E  CELE HRAW il
RMB000  RMB'0OO  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000
ARBFE  AR%TFE  AREFE  ARW®TE  ARKTR

At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=ZFFZA=+—H

Trade payables 5 R iR 3k 8,909 = - 8,909 8,909

Other payables and accruals LA 208 R e T 11,667 = = 11,667 11,667

Amount due to a substantial shareholder FEft— & B R OR 13,452 - - 13,452 13,452

Lease liabilities HEAE 1,847 2213 1,307 5,367 5,006
35,875 2,213 1,307 39,395 39,034

At 31 December 2022 REBZZEF AR

Trade payables B 5 et ik 2,1 = - 2001 201

Other payables and accruals A A 0 T st 13,845 - - 13,845 13,345

Amount due to a substantial shareholder JE i — 4 F i R R 6,301 = = 6,301 6,301

Lease liabilities e g 832 161 - 993 913
23,199 161 - 23,360 23,280

(D) INTEREST RATE RISK (D) #% p, B&

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate 74K [ SR AT &5 R R 32 T 35 R R

risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market W 51 Bz B R 2R JE B

interest rate on bank balances.

The Group considered interest rate risk on bank A A T R SRAT &5 R 2 R R L B

balances is insignificant. AN E K o
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5.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - S.
CONTINUED
(E) FAIR VALUES
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.

(F) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

S 5 L g 4 B —

(E) &A1
A5 A 5 AR L3R Rk G A 4R
B A A < A B B0 IR T (L B
A BN TERA -

(F) BRTHZA=Z+—HWE@TH

BN
2023 2022
SEOSE BTG
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T7E ANRMETIC

Financial assets: 4 1l B R
Financial assets at amortised cost PN B AT 2 2 SRS E
(including cash and cash equivalents) (ELHE Bl KRB % EY) 213,716 205,890
Financial liabilities: R AN
Financial liabilities at amortised cost TS A B i 2 B il B AR 39,034 23,280
6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 6. AV R

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

OFE R R R W T 2 B R A B
JF 28 5 vt B AT A R
SCATHYAEAS o T 5108 (1 458 BR T A
P (EEH R BT 2 A E D7 5 A E
B S = A8 S5 A S TR AR

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

Group can access at the measurement date.

B AE A G T FE B H AT LIRS (0 (] 6 R A O B T 0 B (CRACFE ) o

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly.

5 AR A L R T B A (B (B — SR S R BR AL o

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

=B A B A R A AT B A E -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the
event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

A G2 ) Y SR A A SO B S R U
DLAE B R H O AR ER = AR R A AT A e A
1 A B L
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - 6. AR - &
CONTINUED
(A) DISCLOSURES OF LEVEL IN FAIR A BETZA=Zt+—HWATHE
VALUE HIERARCHY AT 31 DECEMBER: B i
Fair value measurements using:
Rk AVIEF T &
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 2023
- Y
F—# B8 BEH At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFE  ARWTx  AR®TE  ARWTx

Recurring fair value B T
measurements:
Biological assets — Ginseng EWEE- NS - - 52,390 52,390
Fair value measurements using:
TR TS R

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 2022

“ECE

- B B Hst

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT AR%®TE ARMFT  AR¥Tx

Recurring fair value AW A P&
measurements:

Biological assets — Ginseng EYEE- A2 = = 41,230 41,230

Grapes ik = = 2,473 2,473

- - 43,703 43,703
During the year ended 31 December 2023, there REBE_F _=ZF+_A=1+—
were no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2, or HIEERE R 85— &S —HF 2 M
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil). The Sl 40 A7 B 5 BF = SR A 5
Group’s policy is to recognise transfer between levels (TR T TR ) o REED
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting B 7y A 5 AR L Y 3R 5 K

period in which they occur. RN - A% THD 1 o 4 o
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - 6. 2P wl B — 8
CONTINUED
(B) RECONCILIATION OF ASSETS (B)  $&58 =802 P wh B % 5E g
MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE BASED B -
ON LEVEL 3:
Biological
assets
2023
W& B
RMB’000
ARW T
At 1 January 2023 W_Z _=4—H—H 43,703
Increase due to cultivation PR 855 A 1 44 o 3,647
Transfer to inventories A8 (5,224)
Total gains recognised in profit or loss (#) A8 2 TR 2 Uk 25 AR A (#) 10,264
At 31 December 2023 HoFE =T =1 —H 52,390
(#) include gains or losses for assets held (#) BIE 7 At A AR R 1
at end of reporting period gz iRy o 10,264
Biological
assets
2022
A )
RMB’000
ANRHT ot
At 1 January 2022 W_Z__4#—H—H 33,461
Increase due to cultivation PR 55 AL 1A 4 0 3,953
Transfer to inventories HAGFRE (5,760)
Total gains recognised in profit or loss (#) A 55 ERR 2 U 6 JERH (#) 12,049
At 31 December 2022 Mo_F T H=1—H 43,703
(#) include gains or losses for assets held (#) BL45 74 o TR R A 1Y

at end of reporting period B B 12,049
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS -
CONTINUED

(B)

(C)

RECONCILIATION OF ASSETS
MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE BASED
ON LEVEL 3: - CONTINUED

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
including those for assets held at end of reporting
period are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

DISCLOSURE OF VALUATION
PROCESS USED BY THE GROUP

AND VALUATION TECHNIQUES

AND INPUTS USED IN FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER:
The Group’s chief financial officer is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The chief financial
officer reports directly to directors for these fair
value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the chief
financial officer and directors at least twice a year.

As at the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the Group has engaged an independent valuer,
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited,
to determine the fair values of the ginseng and
grapes.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS -

CONTINUED

(C) DISCLOSURE OF VALUATION
PROCESS USED BY THE GROUP
AND VALUATION TECHNIQUES
AND INPUTS USED IN FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER: -
CONTINUED
Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements are mainly:

Description  Valuation technique and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
g G pESLIN BARTRERAL
Ginseng Income approach
% foAdk
The key inputs are:
TERAER:
(1) Effective cultivated arca; (1) Total effective cultivated area of ginseng planted in the
B AR farm land.
RS04 R AT
(2)  Production quantity; (2)  Production quantity of kilogram (*kg”) per mu of
EE; ginseng in effective cultivated area when ginseng aged 5.

FRHEBRASREEAS TR ((TH) EE-

(3)  Market price per kg of ginsengaged ; ~ (3)  Market price of ginseng aged 5.
and EENBHTe
BFRREASNHE &

4y Discount rate (4)  Discount rate, taking into account of nature of ginseng
fiR% industry and ginseng plantation market condition.

TRE (EEEASTENREURASHMATR) -

6. AV i — A

(O HEALMRtZ_A=1+—H
P £ I 0 A SRR DA B 4 T
w5 v BT R T 0 A % 9l B i
MG B - — 8

9= AT R G 2 R
pE TEONCES SR

Effect on
fair value
for increase
Range of inputs Fair value 2023 Fair value 2022
WALH S It et % S 3
(1] WFEZIBE A¥f AT
RMB'000 RMB000
ARKF7 NS
304.8mu (2022: 304.8mu) Increase
304880 (ZF 20 304800 i
1420kg/mu (2022: 1,420kg/mu) Increase

LAOFSE/BZF2E 40T %/

RMBI40 per kg (2022: RMBI40 per kg) Increase

BTRARKMOL (ZF22F: Hn
BTRARKIT)

16% (2022: 18%) Decrease

16% (ZZZ 250 18%) o

52390 41230

During the two years, there were no changes in the
valuation techniques used.

REVENUE

The Group manufactures and sells wine products to
the customers. Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products
and the customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

TP 5% AR A BE A > B A Al (BB 0l 31
e 5 )

7. W
A £ B AR NI 1) 7 R A A o AE
E i Y P 7 AE LR (R s T
52 W) HOMEME W] BE S BER T 4 S
W RIEAT BAE K& F CBEIUE i 10 & ik
Jor A R > R o
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REVENUE - CONTINUED

Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms
of 180 days (2022: 90 to 180 days). For new customers,
deposits or cash on delivery may be required. Deposits
received are recognised as a contract liability.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
to the customers as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of
time is required before the payment is due.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its reportable and operating
segments based on internal reports about components
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (i.e. the executive directors) of
the Company in order to allocate the resources to the
segment and to assess its performance. No operating
segments identified by chief operating decision maker have
been aggregated in arising at the reportable segments of the
Group.

The Group is principally engaged in the business of
manufacturing and sales of wine products. The Group is
organised based on the region of wine products delivered.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are identified based on
different geographical zones of wine products delivered in
the PRC: North-East Region, Northern Region, Eastern
Region, South-Central Region and South-West Region.

- North-East Region includes the provinces of Jilin,
Heilongjiang and Liaoning.

- Northern Region includes provinces of Hebei,
Shaanxi, Shanxi, Inner Mongolia Autonomous
Region, Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region, city of
Beijing and city of Tianjin.

- Eastern Region includes provinces of Anhui, Fujian,
Jiangsu, Jiangxi, Shandong, Zhejiang, and city of
Shanghai.

- South-Central Region includes provinces of
Guangdong, Hainan, Henan, Hubei and Hunan.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - 8. HEER -4
CONTINUED
- South-West Region includes provinces of Qinghai, - VG T A TS N E
Sichuan, Yunnan, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous M R B A I S B

Region and city of Chongqing.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating AR KA B g R BUOR B E R
segments are the same as those described in the summary w2 A (] o

of material accounting policies.

No revenue from transactions with a single external 3 4 7 BB — AN IR P OMEAT I 2S5 b
customer amounted to 10 per cent or more of the Group’s 15k A 42 1) 400 25 10% B 2L 1 A i £ -

total revenue.

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and all A B S T A v B T T A PR B Ah
revenue from external customers and non-current assets are EF s LB EE AR A KA
attributed to and located in the PRC. AR o
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets B T R A s R SR R - B
and liabilities: 2GR
North- South- South-
East Northern Eastern Central West
Region Region Region Region Region Total
FAL R LR 3 FH R ] 3 T4 1 it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEFE ARMFE  ARBFE ARWTFLT  ARBFE  ARETX

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ~ KE-Z =444

St—HIEEE
Segment revenue from K EIMBE P B
external customer 11,976 13,489 81,555 35,42 46,871 189,139
Segment (loss)/profit A (ER) R (2,412) 189 6,485 246 4,985 9,493
For the year ended N S |
31 December 2022 Zt-HIkEE
Segment revenue from external B H N E A 4
customer 25,537 19,771 39,601 36,388 24,821 146,118
Segment profit MR F 137 2,497 3,989 1,390 1,428 9,441
As at 31 December 2023 REBZZH4ZR
=t—H
Segment assets NEERE 5,708 7,021 51,583 22,728 30,207 117,247
Segment liabilities A 504 568 3433 1,484 1973 7,962
As at 31 December 2022 REZBZZESZA
=+-H
Segment assets AEHEE 0,111 9,437 4413 33,299 23,621 132,681

Segment liabilities AR 817 633 1,267 1,165 795 4,677
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - 8. I3 JE R — H
CONTINUED
RECONCILIATIONS OF REPORTABLE CE S %2 e -V Y £ B¢
SEGMENT REVENUE, PROFIT OR LOSS, A Hk:
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:
REVENUE W 22
No reconciliation of reportable and operating segment AL R A oy S AR R B B AN AR
revenue is provided as the total revenue for reportable and 9] A S A - I R AL R R O B R 0
operating segments is the same as Group’s revenue. i i Y AR
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

N ANRBETIT

Profit or loss i A 5% 48
Total profit of reportable segments A o3 Vi R AR 9,493 9,441
Unallocated amounts: KoL A
Change in fair value of biological assets AW E N T B ) 10,264 12,049
Depreciation of property, plant and DY SN i
equipment (16,920) (15,683)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets il ) RE S E AT B 3,731) (3,159)
Impairment loss on property, plant and W2~ W % Uk
equipment i 15 (19,858) (7,776)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets o8 P A O ek 4R (2,726) (2,036)
Write off of inventories g 7 & (20,189) (7,265)
Loss allowances for trade receivables 2 Gy W 3 M 8 4 A (12,196) (2,348)
Loss allowances for other receivables, oAb R R T A
deposits and prepayments AT 3K T s 18 48 (1,600) —
Share-based payments DA B 003 25 R T 11 £+ 33k (485) —
Other corporate income HoAth A ZE WA 387 4,270
Other corporate expenses HoAfth A28 3 (13,245) (15,047)

Consolidated loss for the year FINEE A IR (70,806) (27,554)
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - 8.
CONTINUED
REVENUE - CONTINUED
Reportable and operating segment profit represented
the profit incurred by each segment without allocation
of depreciation, loss allowances for trade receivables,
other receivables, deposits and prepayments, write off of
inventories, impairment on property, plant and equipment,
impairment on right-of-use assets, change in fair value of
biological assets, share-based payments, other corporate
expenses and other corporate income.

vig heg g |

W 2 — A

T e K R A AR A% o S AR Y
i Al RS BE I B~ B o I R K oAt
B WA I~ % S B TR A I A 1R A4~ e
B A7 B W S RS K A MR
O HE (L R A A (A
DA e 073 2 2 R ) ST 38K~ JH At £ 356 5 4 B I
oAl SE A -

2023 2022
RO TR
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T 75 AW T T

Assets B
Total assets of reportable segments A O E AR 117,247 132,681
Unallocated amounts: X 4 5H
Property, plant and equipment Y ENN Y& 108,717 141,228
Right-of-use assets it 1 RE & 36,236 36,986
Biological assets Y E 52,390 43,703
Inventories & 132,836 170,332
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments At RS WK T e 4 M
FEA FIH 4,974 5,700
Current tax recoverable B3 ] g ] Bt IR 5,551 5,551
Bank and cash balances SRAT S B 4 95,483 70,893
Consolidated total assets GeEEEME 553,434 607,074

Reportable and operating segment assets represent trade
receivables and prepaid other taxes.

AT e RS T R E IR 5 B UIR K
Be TR 9 FEA B K -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

8.  SEGMENT INFORMATION - 8. ABER-—#
CONTINUED
REVENUE - CONTINUED e 2 —
2023 2022
SE St SE .=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ANR¥T 5T

Liabilities £ 1%
Total liabilities of reportable segments CIE S iRk 7,962 4,677
Unallocated amounts: AT 4 4R
Trade payables A Ty AT IR 8,909 2,221
Other payables and accruals oAl JRE A B R E 5 A 10,759 15,295
Amount due to a substantial shareholder JE AT — 47 2 B R 13,452 6,301
Lease liabilities L A i 5,006 913
Current tax liabilities RV HA L IH & 1R 9,961 9,961
Consolidated total liabilities o AR 56,049 39,368
Reportable and operating segment liabilities comprise Al R KR AR A T H A
certain other payables and accruals. AT 3T K R -
REVENUE FROM MAJOR PRODUCTS: F B W 2 B 2R
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from DUTR £ A A2 ] 42 i 5 A 2 A a0 AT
its major products.
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T 5 NR¥ET I
Sweet wines it 8] % 30 46,432 52,960
Dry wines Hiz ] % T 101,103 66,815
Brandy F T b 28,033 6,625
Others HoAt 13,571 19,718

189,139 146,118
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

/A

L RESRE

SEGMENT INFORMATION - 8. 43 J R —
CONTINUED
TIMING OF REVENUE RECOGNITION B 2 W 2 W [ — A
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TF 5 YNEE i o
At a point in time A A IR R 189,139 146,118
OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HABWCA ~ Wtk BN 1
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRW TG UNY: S B
Bank interest income SRATFLE U A 337 244
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain SMIE (B54H) s TR 4 (467) 303
Sundry income AESH IS 50 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and Y R Bt A
equipment and right-of-use assets 67 R RE 2 i A — 3,723
(80) 4,270
FINANCE COSTS 10. W& AR
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF 55 YN e
Lease interests L&A E 190 137
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. BifaBth X

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as

the Group did not have any assessable profit arising from

Hong Kong for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the

tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

TR A 4 R 7 - A e S B A O 0 1

B B RUBL R A R 3 7 o L T R i 4

i o

T M8 B A 3BT A B IR (T 4R € B A5 Bt

1) B 3 B A5 Bk e > o R

J& N F 2 BB F25% o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

INCOME TAX EXPENSE - CONTINUED

No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
made as the Group did not have assessable profit subject
to PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year ended 31
December 2023. Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax was made based on the estimated assessable profits
calculated in accordance with the relevant income tax laws
applicable to the subsidiaries operated in the PRC for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The income tax expense for both years can be reconciled to
the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

i

i 43 B8 BH 3 — #

MR AEH®KRE __Z_=4F1+-A4
= Bk AR R A A R A 2 BT S
FE A B A vk R e Sl e o A 3 P A
FAE 13 e o PP B A SE TS B AR M R AR I
BE_EZ -t H=t+—HILEE
B A B e R A R 0 A B BT A
A e W G e = R

% W 8 4F J5 2 T 45 B B 32 B AR 4R 4 K
LAt 4 T Wi i 2 1A R B IR 4R RO 3B R
TE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRW Tt NG aTH
Loss before tax R, <Eisl (70,806) (27,554)
Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate e v [ A 2 P A5 BB FR25%
of 25% (2022: 25%) (ZFE - F:25%)
wHA R BLIE 17,702) (6,889)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax FRBLIE T & R Ty AR YA 1Y
purposes Tl TE R 2 (3,674) (3,239)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for SR T 5 AS W] ek B S 1
tax purpose ol I 5 2 11,914 6,451
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7 e SR B TE I 15 1) B TE R 11,163 3,677
Utilisation of tax losses previously not By A8 A R R 2 B IH s 1R
recognised (1,701) -

B 4584 B 32

Income tax expense

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately RMB159,227,000 (2022:
RMB121,381,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Unrecognised tax
losses of approximately RMB159,227,000 will expire from
2024 to 2028 (2022: RMBI121,381,000 will expire from 2023
to 2027), subject to final determination by tax authorities.

A A R > A SR [ 2 ok B B TE S 1R
# N R %159,227,0000C ( — & — —

N R #121,381,0007T) 0] JH ik 41 84 ok 2k
Yas Il o F A TR 28 i A O & A nl TE > i
A0 fife % 4B B T T E o R A RRBL IE S 1R
# N R #159,227,00070 #% i . F 0 4
EOF )N (CF D F AR
#121,381,000C#% it —F = =4 E =%
CRAEEIRA) o A TR B B A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

e S e 2

LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12, 4FEE#H
The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging the 7 A [ AR B s 4R T A Fn B DL 45 AR
following: #:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ANR#T ot
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S il P 4 1,370 1,370
Cost of inventories sold 2 & B A 115,523 85,666
Depreciation of property, plant and S ERY NS R
equipment 16,920 15,683
Depreciation of right-of-use assets i1 I RE & E T 8 5,026 4,563
Less: amounts included in property, W FE A S &
plant and equipment B A A (1,295) (1,404)
3,731 3,159
Staff costs (including directors’ BITHA (LIFEFME)
remuneration):
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind W HAE YR A 10,023 11,478
Sales commission B 4 4,199 3,157
Retirement benefit scheme contributions AR ARAE FF B L R 3,273 3,424
Equity-settled share-based payments DIRE i 5 5300 DL £
FEE B0 A K 485 -
17,980 18,059
Impairment loss on property, plant and S ERY S E L RN i
equipment 19,858 7,776
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets ot RE S WL (E S 4R 2,726 2,036
Write off of inventories (included in cost M B (IS
of sales) WA A) 20,189 7,265
Loss allowance for trade receivables 2 5y R B 3 s 18 3 12,196 2,348
Loss allowance for other receivables, S Afth JE S FROTE 4% 4 R
deposits and prepayments A R T e 18 4 A 1,600 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

13. DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. #H# R hAEBEGHA L2 M4
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(A) THE REMUNERATION OF EACH (A) B2 H M
DIRECTOR
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed R gl N DS/ R -
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is PR E AN FH T
as follows:
Salaries,
allowance Retirement Equity-
and benefits settled
benefits ~ Discretionary scheme share-based
Fee in kind bonus  contributions payments Total
VLR £ 55 51
i MM R BIKEA B Rh A
e Al Y € 4L atda  FEBERAEA At

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000
ARBEFE  ARBTT  AR®TE  ARETX  ARWTT  ARWTE

Executive Directors B ES
Mr. Wang Guangyuan Tk - 1,745 - - - 1,745
Mr. Zhang Hebin RAM S 4 - 631 - - - 631
Ms. Wang Lijun ETERELL - 593 - 17 = 610
Non-executive Directors FHfT#E S
Mr. Li Jerry Y.* 2RI A - - - - - -
Mr. Zhu Minghui* RUIBE A * = = = = = =
Independent Non-executive B3 JE ST # 3

Directors
Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert — Z & EA 163 = = = = 163
Mr. Yang Qiang Wi 4 120 - - - - 120
Dr. Cheng Vincent BEmEt 163 - - - - 163
Total for 2023 R MG 446 2,969 - 17 - 3,432
Executive Directors WS
Mr. Wang Guangyuan FobE s = 1,660 = = = 1,660
Mr. Zhang Hebin SRAM S 4 - 601 - - = 601
Ms. Wang Lijun TBELL - 564 - 17 - 581
Non-executive Directors FafTES
Mr. Li Jerry Y.* ZHR S - - - - - -
Mr. Zhu Minghui* RBIBOE A - - - - - -
Independent Non-executive %3 FE i 47 i 5

Directors
Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert R A 155 - - - - 155
M. Yang Qiang Tt e 120 = = = = 120
Dr. Cheng Vincent WEmEL 155 - - - - 155
Total for 2022 SR AEMGH 430 2,825 - 17 - 3,272
* Appointed on 31 August 2022 ¥ WoEZFENA =+ —HE

ZAE

There was no arrangement under which a director A A M 4B 2 S i B2 B[R] R R BE i
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during AT o P9 <55 119 22 B

the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

13. DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST

PAID INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS -

CONTINUED

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
The five highest paid individuals in the Group
during the year included three (2022: three) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments of the remaining

13.

g§&ﬁ&%%#kt2%ﬁ—

(B) Ttk mH AL
FRALEEZ A REHEANLE
A4 (TR T S EH
FLPH 4 s iy b SCR B 2 AT e
BIFMA (T F mWa) A

two (2022: two) individuals is set out below: T2 B A E R
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T 5t ANR¥EF ot
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind 37 4 ~ H % & B 9 45 7 1,192 1,370

Retirement benefits scheme AR AARAE AT E A

contributions 33 31
1,225 1,401

The emoluments fell within the following band: T < i i AT i
2023 2022
No. of No. of
employees employees
& B A% =P\ 4
Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 G LA R 2 2

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors of the Company or the five highest
paid individuals (including directors and employees)
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

14. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

14.

REE F SR
A=+ — B IREE > AL
A ] A A0] 4 0 ] 35 ol 4 I
FANL (B SE KRB AT
G 1E By A A 42 B SO0 A A 4
9] 5% 2 S b o1 2y ok O Al 1 o

B B
HHAEHEREE L =4+ H
== HIEFEEIRMMEAATRE (ZF
AE ) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

LOSS PER SHARE 15. B #
BASIC LOSS PER SHARE A5 B 2 s 10
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to YNGR ZEWN R R N R DL
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year BANFHAE NELFENERO AR
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately #80,199,0000C ( =& — — 4 AR
RMBS0,199,000 (2022: RMB26,403,000) and the weighted 26,403,0007C) K 4F A B 8 47 3% 4 i 2 fin
average number of ordinary shares of 301,562,000 (2022: BEF- 3 #301,562,000/% (& — —
293,397,000 (restated)) in issue during the year. 293,397,000/% (FE4k) ) 75 -
DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 9 JBe 3 8 05 1
No diluted loss per share is presented for the years BE X -_="FR_F__H+2A
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 as the exercise of the == H IR AT AL R RAT
Company’s outstanding share options would be anti- it 2 W R L R 5 N i 2 5 4
dilutive. JRC 4 e 48 o
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16, %% BiR K& 3% 5
Buildings Fixtures
and Plant and and office Motor Bearer  Construction
Structures machinery equipment vehicles plants in progress Total
BFR 18] & 4 B R
WED  RERER  RARRHE HH o EES ERIE Wit
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE  AR¥Tr AR¥TFT AR%Tx AR%Fx AR¥Tr AR¥ETxR
Cost A
At | January 2022 RZFZZF—-HA—H 499,192 414,156 16,285 4,051 41,873 8,550 984,107
Additions nE 11,298 368 - 122 4,206 11,659 27,653
Transfer L 11,009 - = = - (11,009) -
Disposals e (793) (48,562) = (131) = = (49,486)
At 31 December 2022 REZZZZF+ZH=1—H 520,706 365,962 16,285 4,042 46,079 9,200 962,274
Additions hE - 14 42 - 4211 - 4,267
At 31 December 2023 ZEZEETZASTA 520,706 365,976 16,327 4,042 50,290 9,200 966,541
Accumulated depreciation and ST E RO (E
impairment
At | January 2022 WZZ__F—H—H 421,457 385,660 13,173 3,680 21,578 1,520 847,068
Charge for the year Emin‘ﬂ 8,836 3,400 174 87 3,186 - 15,683
Transfer L 1,520 = = = L. (1,520) =
Disposals i (193) (48,562) . (126) i . (49.481)
Impairment loss BIHER 4,681 1,329 153 2 1,112 480 1,776
At 31 December 2022 REZZZFE+ZA=1—H 435,701 341,827 13,500 3,602 25,876 430 821,046
Charge for the year EWH 8,951 3,142 166 105 4,556 = 16,920
Impairment loss BEEH - - - - 19,858 - 19,858
At 31 December 2023 RZZFZ=ZF+ZA=+—H 444,652 344,969 13,666 3,767 50,290 430 857,824
Carrying amounts e (E
At 31 December 2023 REZZ=F+ZH=1—H 76,054 21,007 2,601 275 - 8,720 108,717
At 31 December 2022 RZFZZFE+ZA=+—H 85,005 24135 2,785 380 20,203 8,720 141,228
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 16. ¥ - W5 Kok fif — &
CONTINUED
The buildings are situated on land in the PRC. REAE AL P R BN | e
In January 2024, the Group decided to cease plantation AR AR — o A [ w4 E A
work on the grapevines and sub-letting the farm lands to A 09 R AR A > NI 40 RS b DA e BORH 4 -
earn rentals. The Group reviewed the recoverable amount A AL 2B A% HL R b A E A Y AT
of its bearer plants on the farm lands. It resulted in Wl a5 femE SRR E —F =
impairment losses of approximately RMB19,858,000 on the ToH=Zt—HIEFEE MR R R A
bearer plants recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 7 VA P W e 4R A N R 19,858,000
31 December 2023. For the details please refer to note 38. I o A B FE G 7 2 BB 38 -
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group BME_X 241 =Z1—HIE4
carried out review of the recoverable amount of its B B AT W T R AL
property, plant and equipment as a result of the SESRY/E A =N & & RN &
deterioration of the markets of the Group’s business. HEATEAZ - By a4 A Y 2 W E
Except for the aforesaid impairment losses on bearer A MR E ZF S+ A
plants, no further impairment losses (2022: impairment == B E R AR O — 2D i RR
losses of RMB7,776,000) have been recognised in profit or EHER (ZF - F M EER AR
loss for the year ended 31 December 2023. The recoverable 7,776,00070) ° #H B & 2 A9 0T [ 0k 4 A A
amount of the relevant assets of RMB108,717,000 (2022: [ #108,717,00000 ( & — 4 ANR¥
RMB141,228,000) has been determined on the basis of 141,228,00070) J5 4% F B B B 4 9k = 1 3
their value in use using discounted cashflow method. The i A A (E 8 2 o BT BR O 1 B B AR A
discount rate used was 12 (2022: 13) per cent. 12% (ZF 24 13%) »
LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17, RLEE K {0 B BE ¥
Disclosures of lease-related items: WM AMBEA -
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ET ANR#T 0
At 31 December: BR+H=+—H:
Right-of-use assets i M
— Leasehold lands —MHE T 30,720 35,395
— Office premise —WAEYE 5,516 1,591
36,236 36,986
The maturity analysis, based on FE TR TR A B3R 4
undiscounted cash flows, of the ALEFHMEAMEN
Group’s lease liabilities is as follows: F A AR
— Less than 1 year —— 4RI 1,847 832
— Between | and 2 years —— A E WA 2,213 161
— Between 2 and 5 years —MEEALF 1,307
5,367 993
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS -
CONTINUED

LT % 2 o0 0 o —

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
A RW T ANR¥F It
Year ended 31 December: BETHA=Z1T—HILSE:
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 68T R O ) T 85 B S
— Leasehold lands — & 2,323 2,530
— Office premise B VNS 2,703 2,033
Less: amounts included in property, B A BE R
plant and equipment B (1,295) (1,404)
3,731 3,159
Lease interests FH S F B 190 137
Total cash outflow for leases THEMBE 47 A 3,099 2,632
Addition of right-of-use assets A EERE 7,002 1,828
Disposal of right-of-use assets — leasehold lands 8 {ii ] #f & & — fill B 1 b = 217
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets el ) O E W (E S 4R 2,726 2,036

The Group leases various leasehold lands and office
premise. Lease agreements are typically made for fixed
periods of 2 to 50 years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants and the leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

In January 2024, the Group decided to cease plantation
work on the grapevines and sub-letting the farm lands
to earn rentals. The Group reviewed the recoverable
amount of its farm lands. It resulted in impairment losses
of approximately RMB2,726,000 on the bearer plants
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2023. For the details please refer to note 38.

AEEHELEMEE LW ERAEYE-
B 15 ok 19 1] € 1 BR 2 W 22 504F -
B ATy $ (0 B R AT RE T > B M
S T B AR 3 B Ab A o AHL R o e Sz 288 it i A
7 225 - T AH A AR A £ R
PR

A ZF T POAE— H > AR P E A A
A6t 1 T AE A > S 4 L 2 b DA B BRORH 4
7 A [ B 78 A% L i Y T 0 () 4 A o 4R T
MR E _E =4 +_A=1+—H
AE AR B 1 18 25 A R A M A (s
B4 N R ¥2,726,0007C < A B wf 15 55 2 M
B 5538 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS -
CONTINUED

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
carried out review of the recoverable amount of its right-of-
use assets as a result of the deterioration of the markets of
the Group’s business. Except for the aforesaid impairment
losses on right-of-use assets, no further impairment
losses (2022: impairment losses of RMB2,036,000) have
been recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2023. The recoverable amount of the relevant
assets of RMB36,236,000 (2022: RMB36,986,000) has
been determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cashflow method. The discount rate used was
12 (2022: 13) per cent.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Movements of biological assets, representing ginseng
planted and grapes growing on bearer plants, are
summarised as follows:

17.

18.

LS B A I A 2E 3 — A

BE-Z =+ _A=+—HIEFE,
MR AR B EB R T S AL
o FRE A 0 AT R BT A - B b
A1 ) MEE Y R (e AR A > MR A A A
SRR T A=t —HIEFEEWE
2 B ERR I E R (R

T 1R R ¥52,036,0000C) © A B & E
(4 AT I i 4 AR N R 95°36,236,00000 (&
TR AR 36,986,0000T) J5 B BG R
T 4 Y S s Lo (R o Fﬁﬁéﬂ%
RGBSR E12% (T A 1 13%)

o ¥
M) (4R N 2 % E Y A
Bk R ) S B T

RMB’000
NR ¥t
At 1 January 2022 o E T FE——H 33,461
Increase due to cultivation [R] 355 L T 1 3,953
Transfer to inventories HMAGFE (5,760)
Change in fair value of biological assets A ) N T AR ) 12,049
At 31 December 2022 REF =1 —H 43,703
Increase due to cultivation [R] 15 A 1 13 Jn 3,647
Transfer to inventories A7 & (5,224)
Change in fair value of biological assets EYEREATEES 10,264
At 31 December 2023 MEFE =T A=+ —H 52,390

Cultivation costs incurred as addition to the ginseng and
grapes.

PRI\ 22 70 1 2] 1) 434 o 78 A A IUAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS - CONTINUED

Ginseng wine products which generally use ginseng planted
for 5 years as raw materials and all ginseng has been
planted for four years (2022: three years) as at 31 December
2023. No ginseng are transferred to inventories of the
Group for production during the year ended 31 December
2023.

All grapes are harvested annually from August to
November of each year. The output of grapes was 694
tonnes (2022: 765 tonnes) during the year ended 31
December 2023. Grapes of approximately RMBS5,224,000
(2022: approximately RMBS5,760,000) are transferred
to inventories of the Group for production. The Group
has remeasured the fair value of the harvest at the spot
of transferring to inventories during the year. After the
harvests, plantation works commenced again on the
grapevines.

In January 2024, the Group decided to cease plantation
work on the grapevines and sub-letting the farm lands to
earn rentals. The Group reviewed the recoverable amount
of its grapes on the farm lands. As the unripe grapes on the
grapevines without the resale value, it resulted in the fair
value of grapes become zero. For the details please refer to
note 38.

The Group is exposed to a number of risks related to its
biological assets. The Group is exposed to the following
operating risks:

CLIMATE, DISEASE AND OTHER NATURAL
RISKS

The Group’s biological assets are exposed to the risk of
damage from climatic changes, diseases and other natural
forces. The Group has extensive processes in place aimed
at monitoring and mitigating these risks, including regular
inspections, disease controls, surveys and deinsectisation.

18.

A W % e — B

N 230 Z 50 EE i — i 0 AR A AR A
SERBEMBEMFTAE AZR -F =
E+ A=+ —HEMEMEWE(F
T EE) BMEFE =F1+_H
= H IR A S E AR E A
TR A

A E YN EEN AN E+— H T
Rik-#zEx 2= +_H=+—H
IRAFE B M A S5 694MF (&
765MA) o #) N R #55,224,00000 ( —F — .
A H N R 5,760,0000C ) 1Y A A B A
AHE A7 B AR A - R A NS B
IRF > AN 42 [0 5 B w1 & UG A S AH o
FRMC A% {5 T O A 7 8 A8 o

A AR — H s AR A P E A A
A6t 1 T AE A > NI 0 R b DA B BRORH 4z
A4 [ B A% HE b b R A Y AT i ] 4
B R R A A R G R A IR A
EE EMEREHENATHEHAEE - A ]
FEAH w2 BB R3S o

A S T T R BELFG A W) 2 A B 9 T L
Bk o A 2 1 Tl DA T A6 LR

SR ~ W B S0k 28 L BB

7 2 8] 1) 7 W) T B SR A AL - R
Je FoAts B SR 0 B 2 By - AR R B R
A7 B 2 4 e DA B A A 5 T B > L A
E AT AR ~ PO e ~ B B B i 5 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS - CONTINUED 18. AMd i — 4
FINANCIAL RISKS Y 5 b, B
The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from A A 9] T R RN 2 R0 A T A ) A AR
changes in the market price of ginseng and grapes. A 4 U5 B o A0l 7T A A A K B
significant increase/decrease in the estimated market b e B A ) A T E K e
price or the estimated production quantity would result H#m, b e
in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
biological assets.
The Group does not anticipate that the market price A B2 T FE A ON 22 R0 A 2 1Y TH B AE TR
of ginseng and grapes will decline significantly in the i\ O SR PR 2 7 N VA i = = 8
foreseeable future and, therefore, has not entered into B At & 40 DL BN S20R0 R A T A T Bk
derivative or other contracts to manage the risk of a decline 4 JEL RS o A 28 8 o A w3 2 T A
in market prices of ginseng and grapes. The Company M H > LA R A Ty B AT R R Y B
reviews its outlook for market prices of grapes regularly in Ja\ B o
considering the need for active financial risk management.
For the fair value measurement of biological assets please A W) E B TAE R R R 2B B G o
refer to note 6.
INVENTORIES 19. #&
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TF 55 YNESE i e
Raw materials and consumables T AE L Je 7 HE b 70,051 77,448
Work in progress TE 8 57,638 88,772
Finished goods B 5,147 4,112
132,836 170,332
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20.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. BB ME Wik 3k
The Group allows a credit period of 180 days (2022: 90 AEARTHESEFISOR (ZX =
to 180 days) to its trade customers except for the new 090 180K ) B A5 B 1 - kBT & 5 ZH R
customers which payment is made when wine products R 2 AT A 45 VPG 2 i IRE S R o DL A i
are delivered. The following is an aged analysis of trade e IR Fe B 2 H ) (B A 0 0k o e
receivables presented based on the invoice date at the end TR H AR ) 2810 2 S e i AR R Y T
of the reporting period, which approximated the respective I3 Hr e
revenue recognition dates.
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRW Tt YN
Trade receivables B2 o I Wi B 136,026 139,068
Less: loss allowances W ks IR A (18,779) (6,583)
117,247 132,485
The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the B Ty JRE A HR 34 0 S H O A8 IR A
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows: &2 R AT T
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRW Tt ANR¥ET 0
0 —90 days 0290k 67,725 40,699
91 — 180 days 91 180K 37,858 32,365
181 — 365 days 1812365k 11,664 59,421
117,247 132,485
Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables: B 5 IR WA s 18 48 A 1 SR
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRW Tt ANR¥T o0
At the beginning of the year R AEH) 6,583 4,235
Net increase in loss allowance for the year A A Jies 48 8 A 1 12,196 2,348
At the end of the year AR 18,779 6,583
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20.

21.

o £ B 5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

TRADE RECEIVABLES - CONTINUED 20.
The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS
9 to provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the invoice date aging. The expected credit losses also
incorporate forward looking information.
Within 91 -180
90 days days
YOKRUA  91EI80K
At 31 December 2023 /- Y 3 Y
=t h
Weighted average expected loss rate  JilTHE - 3% 78 30 i 48 2% 0.50% 10.30%
Receivable amount (RMB’000) RS E (AR 68,063 42,219
Loss allowance (RMB’000) TR (AR T o0 338 4,361
At 31 December 2022 REZBZZHETZA
=t
Weighted average expected loss rate  JilIHE - 3% 78 30 fis 48 2% 1.50% 5.60%
Receivable amount (RMB’000) ARS8 (AR 41,319 34,274
Loss allowance (RMB’000) TR (AR Tor) 620 1,909

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND  21.

B 5 HE Ol 3k — 4
A% S I R T 7 i B 5 0 2 2 ) S0 8 T T
1 5 55 7 5 K T 7 R 5 MG MOk 0 D 7
OV U B AR UM S IR T
AU R R - B 5 MO O AR iR
H 7] 15 B U5 B K 9% S IO BR G 4  o
TR 065 4RI o 4 M R

181 - 365 Over
days 365 days Total
181%365K 365KV E At

45.90% 100.00%
21,580 4,164 136,026
9,916 4,164 18,779

6.40% -
63,475 - 139,068
4,054 - 6,583

U I VB I~ 42 4 B TR A Ak O

PREPAYMENTS
2023 2022
G- =Y - S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRW Tt PNIERE: -
Current IR
Rental deposit HE% S 545 287
Receivables for disposal of property, IR/ ESY AN & 1093
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets i Y HE 5 2 2 RS IR = 1,900
Other tax receivables oAl R i R I 1,588 1,784
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H At B SRR I~ H 4 K
AR 441 325
2,574 4,296
Non-current Ik BP9
Prepayments for property, plant and W2 R B R Y
equipment T AT 2,400 —
Prepayments for intangible asset TV & I TEAS A 1,600 1,600
4,000 1,600
Less: loss allowances W IR A (1,600) -
2,400 1,600
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VA5

24.

o o B 5 i M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

BANK AND CASH BALANCES 22. BT RB LB
As at 31 December 2023, the bank balances carry interest MWZE =+ _HA=1+—H RI74
at average market rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.35% (2022: AR 1 5 F] 24 F0.01% %£.0.35% (=
0.01% to 0.3%) per annum. Conversion of approximately T 0.01% £0.3%) w5HE RIS - 49
RMB95,461,000 (2022: approximately RMB70,867,000) N B #95,461,0000C (= F 4 5 A
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign [ #70,867,00070 ) b3 /2 4 W5 JH &%
Exchange Control Regulations. ST A SR AR) 2 KRR
TRADE PAYABLES 23. 5 RN
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables LR By i i R He g SR H 240 0 &
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the Ty JREAST MR 1 BR #8% A0 # :
reporting period:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T ANRWT T
0 — 30 days 0230k 506 238
31 - 60 days 31 260K 6,999 220
61 — 90 days 6 1290k 1,404 1,763
8,909 2,221
The average credit period on purchase of raw materials PR B JEOAT ORI S 2 05 AR A 7 W 2 =8
ranges from two to three months. AR -
The Group has financial risk management policies in place A A [ L 1l A B G BB OR - AR T
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit i 7 E A B SKAE AR B A R A A o
timeframe.
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24,  H-fib 8 A 5k 5 B RE wil £
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARt AR 7T
Accrued expenses JE ST B 52 7,232 9,861
Other tax payables A JE A5} A I 7,054 6,127
Other payables A 1 AT 3 TR 4,435 3,984
18,721 19,972
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25.

26.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

AMOUNT DUE TO A SUBSTANTIAL

SHAREHOLDER

The amount due was unsecured, interest-free and repayable

25. MEAF— £ B HIB AR H

A% S AT ARIE T AL AN ALE RO %

on demand. FORME R o
LEASE LIABILITIES 26. MEAE
Present value of
Lease payments lease payments
L B 3k L A k0 LA
2023 2022 2023 2022
SEREOCE CER-CF CRBOCE ZE -
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFH AR¥®T1i AR¥WTFE AR¥T
Within one year —4ERAA 1,847 832 1,623 754
In the second to fifth years, inclusive  FA& 4 £ 55 #14F
(B2 EHEmF) 3,520 161 3,383 159
5,367 993 5,006 913
Less: Future finance charges W AR P S (361) (80)
Present value of lease liabilities HEAEYBIE 5,006 913
Less: Amount due for settlement T 121 B 2350 28 5 s Y
within 12 months (shown under PE (B A REAE)
current liabilities) (1,623) (754)
Amount due for settlement 121 F 8 21 1A 31 76 45 1 308
after 12 months 3,383 159

At 31 December 2023, the average effective borrowing rate
was 4.75% (2022: 4.75%). Interest rates are fixed at the
contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair value

interest rate risk.

e S i R <
B EFR E4.75% (&
4.75%) o FIRAFT A8 H R E > N
I A 7 4 [ B2 N T R 2R VB o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

SHARE CAPITAL 27. AR
2023 2022
R =4 - S
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Tt Tt
Authorised: WE :
1,000,000,000 (2022: 10,000,000,000) ordinary 4 B Ifi {E £50. 15 JC
shares of HK$0.1 (2022: HK$0.01) each (R A 0.01%T)
#71,000,000,000/1%
10,000,000,000/1% ) £ % Jii 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: CHEITEHR:
301,561,800 (2022: 2,940,548,000) ordinary B M T £50. 19 70
shares of HKS$0.1 (2022: HK$0.01) each (R4 0.01%T)
17301,561,800/%
2,940,548,000 8% ) 5 48 A 30,156 29,406
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARt AR WT 7T
Shown in the consolidated financial ARG WS 3k 2R
statements
At 31 December BtZHA=+—H 25,829 25,216

Movement of the number of shares issued and the share
capital during the current period is as follows:

A [ © AT et e H R A S B T

Number of

shares Amount

& 1 % B O

’000 HKS$ 000

T & Tt

At 1 January 2022 M_FE__HF—H—H 2,640,548 26,406
Allotment and issue of consideration shares Bt &5 & 8 17 1% & I {73

(note (a)) (B 5E (a)) 100,000 1,000

Exercise of share option (note 29) A7 (R JREHE (Bf 529) 200,000 2,000

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R _EF -4+ _H=+—H

E_F_=%—H—H 2,940,548 29,406

Share consolidation (note (b)) ety & HF (B EE (b)) (2,646,493) =
Allotment and issue of consideration shares Mt &5 & 8§ 17 1% & i {73

(note (a)) (Bff5E(a)) 7,507 750

At 31 December 2023 MW_E =4+ -H=+—H 301,562 30,156
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28.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

SHARE CAPITAL - CONTINUED

Notes:

(a) On 3 November 2021, the Company entered into a sales
and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “Vendor”) to acquire 100%
equity interest in Sino Trend International Limited.
Pursuant to the Agreement, the total of 402,600,000
Consideration Shares shall be allotted and issued in three
batch. The acquisition was completed on 30 November
2021 (the “Completion Date”). In addition, the Vendor
guarantees that the actual market value of ginseng
planted at the time of October 2024 shall not be less than
RMB60,000,000. If there is any shortfall, the consideration
shall be deemed to be reduced by the same amount but
subject to a cap of HK$7,500,000, which shall be paid in
cash by the Vendor to the Company as compensation (the
“Contingent receivables”). The directors of the Company
estimated the fair value of Contingent receivables is
minimal. First batch of 227,530,000 Consideration Shares
were allotted and issued to the Vendor on the Completion
Date. Second batch of 100,000,000 consideration shares
were allotted and issued to the Vendor on 30 November
2022. Third batch of 75,070,000 (after share consolidation:
7,507,000) consideration shares were allotted and issued to
the Vendor on 30 November 2023.

(b) On 8 September 2023, a special resolution has been
passed by the shareholders of the Company for a share
consolidation pursuant to which every ten (10) issued
and unissued existing shares of HKS$0.01 each will be
consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of HK$0.10
each. The share consolidation is completed on 12
September 2023. Details of the share consolidation are set
out in the Company’s circular dated 18 August 2023.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”)
adopted by the shareholders of the Company on 10 May
2019 was terminated on 16 June 2023 upon the adoption
of a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) by the
Company’s shareholders on 16 June 2023 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives or reward to eligible
participants (including directors, employees and service
providers of the Group) thereunder for their contribution
to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group.

27.

28.

JB A — 4
B

(a) AOE S —H=H AN A
—HBYE = F(E R T HH
Wk ([t )) DAk i =P A1 B
H PR R AR M e IR IR W B
3£402,600,000 % £ 18 B 13 6§ 73 = L i
BRE T EEHDOR _F - —F
+—A=+H8 (T5E B M) 5%/
WA B REBREAAAAZR F
AR R RR TT BAE (E R ER
A R #60,000,0007C - U0 A AT fa] 22 % >
A1 WL % MR R) 4 R WD > ME B IR
£57,500,000%5 JC - 5% B 7 DL 4 2
577 A 45 WA 2y A (T 808K I i 3K
TE ) o AR A HEF AL FE > oK B K E
B 28 (B EE AR o 28— 116227,530,000 848,
18 W 03 B 58 A% B E 8 e 35 AT TR
J7 o &5 —41£ 100,000,000 8 A4 RE 4y R
SR THE+ A R LT
T o 5 = 475,070,000 (5 &
A% 7,507,000/ ) £ 18 B 03 2 — %
CEFEtT AT RS BT TS
jjc

(b) R E T EESANE S AN BR
370 908 ) DR AT R A B
B (10) B B B (E0.0185 T 2 B %
T RRBATHA B A5 — () B
JBE T (50,1046 76 2 & BF 0y © I 03 & BF
Bl T EEAA B ER B
WEFZ BRI AAF B %
ZEFENH A VH Z K A e

DA JBe By 7 2% W W 458 K
VIR 26k 45 5730k JB A it

FEA AR BRI =% Z =4 A+ NH
PR A0 o B B RE ST (BT st ) 4% AR
AR —F — JUAFE R A+ H R A A
NI EE (TE R )R =% ==
FENH AN H AL R EIR E B H R
A ERSEE (AR ALMES - EA
T 5 A3 B 7 ) 3 A S T i A0 22 K i 17
e 56 2 {3 0D 5 M > BB A 4 T i
RGNS R ENCE WU EIE R S
B A EEN AT B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -
CONTINUED

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME - CONTINUED

At 31 December 2023, the aggregate shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the New Scheme was 29,405,480, representing 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. At
31 December 2022, no share option has been granted
and remained outstanding under the Old Scheme. The
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the New Scheme (as the case may be) is not
permitted to exceed 10% (2022: 30%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to any individual in within any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HKS$1 per grant. Options
may be exercised at any time from the date of acceptance
of the share options to such date as determined by the
directors of the Company but in any event not exceeding
10 years. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company, and will not be less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

Details of specific categories of outstanding options as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

28.

DL JBe By 7 & W W 458 K — 8
VIR 2ok 5% 570 DB M it 80 — A

MNoFE = A=+ —H o R
H OB A AR AT B R T v R
% 3 H8 B 55 29,405,480 1% - AH E Y A A A
R H B BT B 10% o i &

ToA=t o MEREES S RS
T 1o A AT 6 11 S A o AR 95 8wt & (WG
DU ) 452 B H 3 R AT Y P A i R AT
T 1 e A RE AT (148 7T T 3547 A9 e i i
By 5 N5 I AN T AT o] IR ] 5
T EI10% (=T = 4 :30%) « KR
AN F) R S e > AT AT 1240 A A [
I ) AT o] {8 BN 4 B 4% o B ] BE R Y
WS I HE V5 B 1) B AT B T 8 AT I 4 B
E R A5 68 3 A4S 20 7 A o] IR i 2 35 4T %
By HI1% -

52 0 ) i P AR 0 ZE % I IR RE R
AP — BN B E AT T
[ A P i A W N/
P A B A 1k 0 R R AT 0 > (A 7R
AT AT % DL R A B 0T T S A58 3 4 o A7 fH
B MARAFREEEE > B AREERLT
SHEMNEREA Q) AA AR R H
0 W A 5 i) B B AT R
3 H B 09 7 20T 8 5 K (i) A2 7
5 04 T (. o

I S N e R i p =
= F R AT A S A R A
FEIEAR

Number of Vesting period Exercisable period Performance

Date of grant options (both dates inclusive) (both dates inclusive) target attached Exercise price
il H Ji T HE S BREY(OFEERmMA) TEN(BHERERA) HEROESRAE Fr B
15 December 2023 29,405,480 15 December 2023 to 15 December 2024 to N/A HK$0.92

14 December 2024 14 December 2025
“ECEHEFTA 29,405,480 “ECZFE+TA “ECEEF A AR 0.92i# 7T

+HH THAE-Z-NE +THAE-ZCHA
+ZAt+EA +ZA+MHA
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - 28.  DLIBe Ay Ry 2wl iy 4 K — A
CONTINUED
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION DLRE 2 &5 53 0% JBe B il ) — &
SCHEME - CONTINUED
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TREBGALNFARKRE T ZF R
share options granted under the Scheme during the years X EFT A=+ HIEFEEREZ
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022: w52 L 10 RO Y B )
2023 2022
e Sy TR
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
share options price  share options price
TR - 35 JHEF-y
Ji Tt HE L fifef  WERAERA FrfiifE
HKS$ HKS$
iy T
Outstanding at the beginning of TR AR 1 R AT
the year - - 200,000,000 0.1
Exercised during the year AR AT = - (200,000,000) 0.1
Granted during the year JRAE N 29,405,480 0.92 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year  F 4K i K A7 i 29,405,480 0.92 - -
Exercisable at the end of the year AR AT AT - - - -

No share options were exercised (2022: 200,000,000),
lapsed (2022: Nil) or forfeited (2022: Nil) and 29,405,480
(2022: Nil) share options were granted during the year
ended 31 December 2023. The options outstanding as
at 31 December 2023 have a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 1.96 years and the exercise price is
$0.92. In 2023, 29,405,480 share options were granted on
15 December 2023 with one year vesting period. 2,940,548
share options were granted to Mr. Wang Guangxin who
is the brother of Mr. Wang Guangyuan and Ms. Wang
Lijun and remaining 26,464,932 share options were
granted to nine full-time employees of the Group. The
estimated fair values of the share options granted on those
dates are approximately HK$11,452,000 (approximately
RMB10,444,000).

HEF =+ H=Z+—HILE
BE o BRI R AT (R
200,000,000 ) ~ Jei (& = —4F
) Bk B U (T AR ) S R
29,405,4800 ( % — A 4 ) BERLRE
S s o e & et bl = I 151 B R
V147 5 I8 E 1 I REE T 22 7 5k 5 0 4 41,96
AR AT AE 50.92W g0 o Y T E AR
29,405,480 B RERS — & — =4+ R
THBZE B A — 4 2,940,548
e T Pt EE R ETBE L
+ 22 a5 F G e A TR 26,464,932
MR T ALEE LA 2 BES -
A% S H AR 0 R 1 A T A T
#15511,452,000% ¢ (49 A R #10,444,000
JT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -
CONTINUED

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME - CONTINUED

The fair value of the share options granted on 15
December 2023 was calculated using the Binomial Option
Pricing Model. The inputs into the model are as follows:

Closing price as at grant date (HKS)
Weighted average exercise price (HKS)

Expected volatility T 0%
Expected life T 4
Risk free rate I gy ] 2R
Expected dividend T S
RESERVES

(A) The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the

movements therein are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

(B) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES
@) Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in excess
of their par value per share and is not
distributable but may be applied in paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued
to the shareholders of the Company as fully
paid bonus shares or in providing for the
premiums payable on repurchase of shares.

(ii) Share options reserve
The share-based payment reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options granted
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

28.

o

DL JBe By 7 & W W 458 K — 8
VIR 2ok 5% 570 DB M it 80 — A

A S —

[ P/ <1

A EH PR G
o 3 O AR Rt

B o BTN 2 W A BRI

B 2 i E (T
InHEP- 4T (R AE (5 oT)

2023

e

0.92
0.92
77.63%
2 years
3.70%
0%

itk 4
(A) LB 2 SO TR 4
A 18t S H At A2 T i 5 3R DA
SGAMREEHREY -
(B) ffztEE X% HW
(@) i Gy vt 5
& Uy i A F5 DA A L g
T B 2 A A% 35 AT % 0y i 728
2w E > BN A A AE 4
UR o AH ] FAE ST 8T T
AN TR R AR 2 SR AT
B 2 A w) R BT Ay > B
P A U [ B 403 1T 2 S A 2
i 1
(i) I BE 4 S

DAy 72 2 B 2 AF 35 1ot
J5 4 B 4% TR B S E
BH 2 R AT BB 2
F{H > AR R AR S B R
B 5E29 b ik LA 45 &% I
DA 3 7% 2 B 119 15 35 BT 4%
Wz e at BUOR T DARERD -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023  # % —F " =4+ " H =+—H IL4FE

29. RESERVES - CONTINUED 29. filifhi—
(B) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES (B) fifii 2 PR & H W — &
— CONTINUED
(iii)  Other reserve Gii) -t 6o 5
The other reserve represents the fair value o Ath f38 M5 F AR 4B 45 S TS
of Consideration Shares to be allotted and e 2 BFF 5E28(a) FP Ak Wi B B
issued recognised in accordance with the J& o~ 7 BT B A B EE B
accounting policy adopted for acquisition of e SR A% T B8 K g AT 2 AR
subsidiaries in note 28(a) to the consolidated TRy 2 A T{HE
financial statements.
(C) RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (C) A2 ) fifk
Share
Share options Other  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve loss Total
JBE i AR HAth ik Bt At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETL AR¥TT ARETT AR®TLT AR¥TC
At 1 January 2022 WoEZZF—H—H 954,776 2,334 13,143 (843,844) 126,409
Total comprehensive expense AF 1A 2 18T B S AR A
for the year - - - (7,228) (7,228)
Consideration shares allotted L S g AT i R
and issued i 1 6,691 - (7,507) - (816)
Share option exercised O A7 {8 6 1 17,199 (2,334) - - 14,865
At 31 December 2022 /e Sy gy
=+—H 978,666 - 5,636 (851,072) 133,230
At 1 January 2023 WoZ-=#—H—H 978,666 - 563 (851,072 133,230
Total comprehensive expense A IR 2 1T B S AR
for the year - - - 9,171) 9,171)
Consideration shares allotted OB AT E
and issued JBe A7 5,023 - (5,636) - (613)
Share-based payments (note 29) DL R0 2 S 9 4 3K
( Bt 29) - 485 = = 485
At 31 December 2023 RE-ZBZ=FT2H
=+—H 983,689 485 - (860,243) 123,931
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B B 755 A M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  30. A2 ] B8R 3t %
OF THE COMPANY

2023 2022
RO —FE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHTE ARETIT

Non-current assets I B A
Investments in subsidiaries P B AR 2 E 30,224 30,224
Right-of-use assets R 413 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRRE AT o S 2 D K IR 133,794 138,647
164,431 168,871
Current assets B B
Deposits and prepayments ¥ 4 B LAY AR IE 189 231
Bank balances SRAT &5 21 25
210 256
Current liabilities i B £ 1K
Amount due to a substantial shareholder AT — 47 F2 BB R 2 I 10,608 6,301
Other payables and accruals Al JRE A5 I R E 52 A 3,850 4,380
Lease liabilities A ME 423 =
14,881 10,681
Net current liabilities i B £ {5V (14,671) (10,425)
NET ASSETS ¥ 149,760 158,446
Capital and reserves A B Ak i
Share capital e A 25,829 25,216
Reserves it 5 123,931 133,230
TOTAL EQUITY HE £ 48 48 149,760 158,446
The Company’s statement of financial position was HERERGR _FWE=ZH Z/CH A
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors RAZREFIEE AN A ABSIR DL > A6 f AT
on 28 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: ANERFEE:
Wang Guangyuan Zhang Hebin
Eo R AU
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

HH #HH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.

32.

33.

o £ B 5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31. ¥ A Bl B 4% 81
The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in AR AR A BB A DLREAR AR B N &
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BB A 15 A AR [7] IRF IR 27 4 L A A B
while maximising the return to shareholders through the RE i 1) T 1 5 TR T B R [l S o A £
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s 7] 1 2 O S B AR 4 RE AH W] o
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.
The capital structure of the Group consists of equity A ) E AR AN A A A
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued G HE A8 (136 O 8 AT IRAS - il % B 5t i
share capital, reserves and accumulated losses. B -
The management of the Group reviews the capital structure A A A L & T AT AN JE A - A AR
periodically. The Group considers the cost of capital and ] 2% i A A B S A R B - NI A
the risks associated with the capital, and will balance its I YR AT M S ~ AT ST R B W ) IR 00y DA e
overall capital structure through payment of dividends, TR M R R AR A () o
issuance of new shares and share buy-backs as well as the
raising of new debts, if required.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. BRI
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the A AR B IR RS AR 2 G ARSI T
reporting period are as follows:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR oo YN e
Capital expenditure in respect of the R A 2R AE R R
followings contracted for but not A A PSR R 1
provided in the consolidated financial A S
statements:
Acquisition of intangible assets W i AT 1,750 1,750
Development of wine estate and wine cellar %5 J& i i % F 25 11,900 2,300
13,650 4,050

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group
contributes certain percentage of relevant payroll costs to
the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme, which contribution
is matched by employees.

33.

SO A
A% S 11 i AT 5 A IR LB O
e R A )« A S I A T e A 1
s o 1 e 2 8 MR
UNCHIES AHE S
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33.

34.

o o B 5 i M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS - 33. BkHAEE — A
CONTINUED
Forfeited contribution can be used to reduce future 2 Wi Bt R AT R A D A B T R 2R i it
contribution of the Group. There was no utilisation of o A T T ARG ) R At R iR
forfeited contribution during 2023 and as at 31 December SR C=ZFEF A=+ —H WmERELR R
2023, there is no forfeited contribution receivable for Wi A3t 2k AR D R AR Ik K o
reduction of future contribution.
The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established 20N R AE B RS Y B JE s B R AR B S
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement rh R BRI Y B R PR A IR AR 4 R
benefit schemes operated by the PRC government. These 1B B o 5% 5 B 28 W ZE 4% — e Le iy
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage AR ) AR AR AR R E E AR o A8 4 MR
of payroll costs to the retirement benefits schemes to fund PRAR R 5T 30 0 M — T AE 2 1 s 4 8 Lo
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the specific
contributions.
The Group made contributions to the retirement benefits A R R FEE RS AR
schemes of RMB3,273,000 (2022: RMB3,424,000). B3 273,0007C (& = 4 : AR
3,424,0007T) °
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BT RY
COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT EL: X S PNE 1|
PERSONNEL
The remuneration of directors and other members of key RN o 5 R At 3 A N B 3 A0
management during the year was as follows: N
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRWT 55 ANR¥F o
Short-term benefits 1A 4= Al 4,969 4,963
Post-employment benefits I 1% A A 159 170
Equity-settled share-based payments DIHE 5 %5 B DA B0y 254
LB B9 A K 291 -
5,419 5,133

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the board of directors of the Company
(upon the recommendation of the remuneration committee)
having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

EHLEEETBABREMIT AN A
EFG (EFMZAEREET) K2 %M
TN A ) 2 B B i O M



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35.

o £ B 5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023  # % —F " =4+ " H =+—H IL4FE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 35.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2023 are as follows:

Name Place of incorporation  Issued and paid-up capital
#H kIR 3 S 2 CHITRAERA
Fullest Power Investments Limited The BVI US$100,000
ERBEHRAH EEELRR 100,000% ¢
Sino Trend International Limited Hong Kong HKS!1
AR WA Fit b5
Rich Treasure Link Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
HEBARAR Fitt 10,000 ¢
Topping Future Limited Hong Kong HKS$100
BIARAHE Eit 1004 72
Shine Wealth Hong Kong Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
WEEEEEARAA Fit 10,0001 72
Tonghua Tongtian Winery Co., Ltd. (note 1) The PRC RMBS7,110,000
BRI EA A iz AR H87,110,00078
Ji An Yaluo Wine Estate Co., Ltd. (note 1) The PRC HK$40,000,000
ERMAMEA WA (1) iz 40,000,000 ¢
Tonghua Tontine Green Agriculture Development The PRC HK$28,000,000
Co., Ltd. (note 1) T 28,000,000% 70
B R OREEEERA R (M)
Tonghua Tontine Trading Co., Ltd. (note 1) The PRC HK$40,000,000
BICEXFR AR (B3R HE 40,000,001 ¢

A RIS AT IR A R % T SRR

AR ) BB A F R

/NI S 3 /NN S By
H=+— AW HEsmT

Percentage
of the ownership
interest/voting power

fh i RS
BREEENL

Direct Indirect
Hik W #
100% -
100% -
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Principal activities

FEEH

Investment holding

fE R

Investment holding

BEER

Investment holding and
provision of administrative

services

BB P B AR T B

Investment holding

fE R

Investment holding

fE R

Manufacturing and sale of
wine products and
processing of grape juice

T R & AN i
mTHE

Manufacturing and sale of
wine products and
processing of grape juice

T RS & A i
mTHE

Grapes plantation

A

Wholesales and retail of

wine products

HERTZEGHEER
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35.

o o B 5 i M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL B,
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY -
CONTINUED

Name Place of incorporation  Issued and paid-up capital
i kAR 3 S 2 DRI RS RA
Yantai Baiyanghe Winery Co., Ltd. The PRC RMBA4,949,960

(“Yantai Baiyanghe”) (note 2) il AR 4,949,960 70

T A R A R
(MEREEM]) (W)

Tonghua City Hong Shuo Industrial Limited (Note 2) The PRC RMB405,063,300
BTEREEARAA (HiE2) il NE#405,063,3007¢
Notes

1 These companies are wholly-foreign owned enterprises

established in the PRC.

2 The Company is a sino-foreign owned enterprise
established in the PRC.

The following table shows information of the subsidiary
that has non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the
Group. The summarised financial information represents
amounts before inter-company eliminations.

A ] BB R A R — A

Percentage
of the ownership

interest/voting power Principal activities
1l e MW/
BEET L TREH
Direct Indirect
H#% Il %
- 60% Manufacturing and sale of

wine products and
processing of grape juice

RERHEHETEE DR
TRt

- 95% Ginsang plantation
EHEAZ

5 O W) o A6 TR B Y A T R

¥ 5

2 AR BT ERLE S E R

T RSB R BB AL E B K 2
P ([ hESR |) 2 [ & Rl &
Ao B At 2 BB R4 4 F K i 2
EH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ot B B 755 WA Y

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4+ -H =1 —H L4

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 35. A E BB A A wEN — A
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY -
CONTINUED
Name Yantai Baiyanghe
1 Rl Re |
2023 2022

Principal place of business/country of incorporation The PRC The PRC
S B RS B K ] o X

% of ownership interests/voting rights held by NCI 40% 40%

JIT A R S 3 LL T A2 IR 4 I B S
RMB’000 RMB’000
N & T PNESY i bl

At 31 December: RT_H=+—H:
Non-current assets B EE 29,717 32,818
Current assets ) E 214,002 174,786
Current liabilities it B AAE (16,522) (2,839)
Net assets A 227,197 204,765
Accumulated NCI ot I Bt i 90,879 81,906
Year ended 31 December: BRET_A=Z1T—HIL4E:
Revenue g 150,009 64,852
Profit/(loss) R (18 22,432 (3,964)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) il (B ) 4% 22,432 (3,964)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI T IR A
A (EE) 8,973 (1,585)

Dividends paid to NCI AT T IR B IR £ 2 R = -
Net cash inflow from operating activities BN BI R B e A T 7,886 3,418
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing BHEEHNHEERA

activities (i) WA 183 (318)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents {4 J Bl 4 %5 8 ¥ 14 fin 1% %4 8,069 3,100
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36.

37.

38.

o o B 5 i M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE _-F - =4FF_H=1—H L4

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or the future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
cash flows from financing activities.

36.

3 O A 2 114 2 B

R A AR T R ) A AR B A
By > 6155 B 4 K IF B4 AR ) o fll TS ) A
AMBEAB &R 2D & (HERKHE
T ) 0 S 2 A B I A ) E AR Y
HABHSGHENMARE:

Amount due to

Amount due to

Total liabilities

non-controlling a substantial Lease  from financing
shareholder shareholder liabilities activities
W s R —HEE T )
Bt 3 5 Bt 3 5 MEAK  WAREH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NG T INGL ST INGL ST ARHET
At 1 January 2022 RZEZZHFE—-A—H 1,089 5,929 1,580 8,598
Financing cash flows FEH 4R (1,089) 372 (2,632) (3,349)
Non-cash changes TRy
— Addition of leases — gt - - 1,828 1,828
- Finance costs incurred during the year — 4 A 1 A = - 137 137
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZH+ZA=Z+—H = 6,301 913 7,214
Financing cash flows MEHEHE - 7,151 (3,099) 4,052
Non-cash changes ERE
— Addition of leases —E A - - 7,002 7,002
- Finance costs incurred during the year — R A R R - - 190 190
At 31 December 2023 WZZZ=4+ZA=1—H - 13452 5,006 18,458
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 37. #EMmAEN
PERIOD
In January 2024, Tonghua Tontine Green Agriculture T AR — s AN Y[R 4 A
Development Co., Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned JB s ) A8 AL 4 R Ak R E B R A B
subsidiary of the Company, decided to cease the plantation PRE #1498 Y TR AR LA 5 S 43 A R
work on the grapevines and sub-letting the farm lands to DA S B 46 o B2 b A7 7 o ] 45 22 Hl I o i
earn rentals. The farm lands are located in Ji’An region of g AT RBESATEER
the PRC. Subsequent to the reporting period, certain farm T A 4 (6] 6 A 40 40 L 1v0 A L M 199 22 e -
lands were subleased to the local farmers and the Group
will continue to sub-letting the unleased farm lands.
APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED 38. bk & A Bk

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the directors on 28 March 2024.

EHERN ECPFE=ZH A NH R
BEHE T 3 A 45 B A S % -
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